Sebring Airport Authority
Board Meeting Agenda
July 17, 2025

1:30 p.m. Hendricks Field
Sebring Airside Center

1. OPENING ITEMS
a) Call to Order
b) Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation
¢) Roll Call
d) Announcements
Upcoming Meetings & Events

Date Time Meeting/Event Location
08/02 — 08/06 56" Annual Florida Airports Council Conference Tampa, Florida
08/21/2025 1:30pm SAA/CRA Board Meeting Hendricks Field Center

2. CONSENT AGENDA
a) Approve June 2025 Minutes and Invoices

3. MISCELLANEOUS

4. ACTION ITEMS

a) Federal Aviation Administration Grant Agreement — Taxiway Alpha Rehabilitation — Design Phase —
$333,878.00

b) AtkinsRéalis — Engineering Design Services for Taxiway Alpha Rehabilitation — $347,950.00

c) Federal Aviation Administration Grant Agreement — Fuel Farm Improvements — $540,222.00

d) ITB #25-07 Fuel Farm Improvements — Recommendation of Award and Contract — MDM Services, Inc.
—$728,843.55

e) AtkinsRéalis — Construction, Engineering and Inspection (CEI) Services for Fuel Farm Improvements —
$49,370.00

f) Interlocal Agreement — Sebring Airport Authority and Community Redevelopment Association (CRA) —
Webster Turn Drive Rehabilitation

g) Resolution 25-05 Approving Budget Amendment S25-04

h) Removal of Assets

1) Interlocal Agreement — Sebring Airport Authority and Community Redevelopment Association (CRA) —
Carroll Shelby Rehab Design

CONTINGENT ACTION ITEMS

5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

e FBO Report — Andrew Bennett



e High Grove Golf Club Presentation — Morgan Purvis, Director of Memberships

High Grove Golf Club in Venus, Florida, is a private, 250-member golf destination dedicated to
delivering an exceptional golfing experience. This exclusive club features a meticulously designed 18-
hole course by Hanse Golf Design, taking full advantage of the site’s natural ridges, orange groves,
and sandy terrain. The facility includes a practice area, clubhouse, 48-bedroom cabins, and a par-three
short course.

6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS
7. CONCERNS OF THE PUBLIC

8. ADJOURNMENT

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board at any meeting or hearing, he will need a verbatim
record of the proceedings. The record must include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be
based. Sebring Airport Authority also gives notice that the Chairman is authorized to cancel or postpone any
scheduled meeting or hearing by directing the Executive Director to so inform all Board members and any other
interested parties and the press. Sebring Airport Authority does not discriminate upon the basis of any
individual’s disability status. This non-discriminatory policy involves every aspect of the Board’s functions,
including one’s access to, participation in, employment of, or treatment in its programs or activities. Anyone
requiring reasonable accommodations as provided for in the Americans with Disabilities Act should contact
Jami Olive, Sebring Airport Authority at 863-314-1317.

Note: Note: Additional staff items may be considered if they come in after the agenda deadline.



SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
BOARD MEETING
June 19, 2025

The Sebring Airport Authority Board of Directors held a scheduled Board Meeting on June
19,2025, at 1:30 p.m. in person and by telephone-technology conference call. A quorum was
met with the following in attendance:

Stanley Wells
D. Craig Johnson

Mark Andrews -

Pete McDevitt

Also

Mike Willingham -
Colleen Plonsky -

Jami Olive
Bob Swaine

Jack Thompson -
Heather Meyer -
Blake Swafford -
Rex Thompson -
Sarah Beth Murphy -

Wayne Estes
Eric Menger
Craig Sucich

Jeffrey Cotter -

1. OPENING ITEMS

A.

B.

Chairman

Vice Chairman
Board Member
Board Member

Executive Director

Director of Finance

Executive Assistant

Swaine, Harris & Wohl, P.A.

Avcon, Inc.

AtkinsRéalis

Hanson Professional Services, Inc.
Allied Universal

Highlands County Economic Development
Sebring International Raceway

Hanson Professional Services (Teams)
RS&H (Teams)

Absolute Investment & Realty Services
(Teams)

Meeting was called to order at 1:30 p.m. by outgoing Chairman Stanley Wells.

Bob Swaine led the Invocation and led the Pledge.

Roll Call

Mark Andrews, D. Craig Johnson, Pete McDevitt, and Stanley Wells were present
at the meeting. Carl Cool, Jason Dunkel and Terrill Morris were absent.

Announcements

Stanley Wells asked if there were any other announcements than the ones
presented, which were, the executive offices will be closed Friday, July 4™ for
Fourth of July, the next board meeting will be Thursday July 17" at 1:30pm and
EAA AirVenture Oshkosh in Oshkosh, Wisconsin.



CONSENT AGENDA

Approve the Consent Agenda:

Chairman Stanley Wells asked if there was any public comment pertaining to the consent
agenda items, with no comment asked. There was a motion by Pete McDevitt to approve
the Consent Agenda with a second by Mark Andrews. The motion was passed with ayes
from Andrews, Johnson, McDevitt, and Wells.

MISCELLANEOUS

No items were presented.

ACTION ITEMS

Chairman Stanley Wells asked if there was any public comment pertaining to the consent agenda
items, with no comment asked.

A. ITB #25-05 Webster Turn Drive Reconstruction — Recommendation of Award
and Contract — Dickerson Infrastructure, Inc $2,292,389

This item was presented by Mike Willingham. Mike Willingham asked Heather Meyer
with AtkinsRéalis to give a brief presentation on the project and awarded contractor.
There was a brief discussion. There was a motion by Pete McDevitt to approve the item
as presented, with a second by D. Craig Johnson. The motion was passed with aye votes
by Andrews, Johnson, McDevitt and Wells.

B. RFQ #25-02 Professional Aviation Consulting Services — Hanson Professional
Services, Inc.

This item was presented by Mike Willingham. Mike Willingham asked Blake Swafford
to give a brief description of their company and the services they provide. Mr. Swafford
gave an introduction, and a brief discussion was held. Mr. Willingham asked the board if
we could approve both Professional Consulting Services contracts together, Chairman
Wells agreed.

C. RFQ #25-02 Professional Aviation Consulting Services — RS&H, Inc.

This item was presented by Mike Willingham. Mike Willingham asked Craig Sucich (by
Teams) to give us a brief description of their company and the services they provide. Mr.
Sucich gave a brief introduction. There was a motion by Mark Andrews to approve both
items B & C as presented, with a second by Pete McDevitt. The motion was passed with
aye votes by Andrews, Johnson, McDevitt and Wells.

D. AtkinsRéalis CEI Services for Webster Turn Drive Rehabilitation $324,415
This item was presented by Mike Willingham. Mike Willingham asked Heather Meyer
with AtkinsRéalis to give a brief presentation on the project. There was a brief
discussion. There was a motion by D. Craig Johnson to approve the item as presented,
with a second by Pete McDevitt. The motion was passed with aye votes by Andrews,
Johnson, McDevitt and Wells.

E. CivilSurv Design Group, Inc. — Post Design Services — Webster Turn Drive
Rehabilitation $63,750

This item was presented by Mike Willingham. There was a brief discussion. Heather
Meyer with AtkinsRéalis answered questions pertaining to the project. There was a



motion by Pete McDevitt to approve the item as presented, with a second by D. Craig
Johnson. The motion was passed with aye votes by Andrews, Johnson, McDevitt and
Wells.

F. Duke Energy Easement — Highlands County Animal Services

This item was presented by Mike Willingham. There was a brief discussion. There was a
motion by Pete McDevitt to approve the item as presented, with a second by D. Craig
Johnson. The motion was passed with aye votes by Andrews, Johnson, McDevitt and
Wells.

G. Resolution 25-04 Approving Budget Amendment S25-03
This item was presented by Colleen Plonsky. There was a brief discussion. There was a
motion by Pete McDevitt to approve the item as presented, with a second by Mark

Andrews. The motion was passed with aye votes by Andrews, Johnson, McDevitt and
Wells.

CONTINGENT ACTION ITEMS

No items were presented.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Executive Director Mike Willingham presented the Executive Director’s report.

Mike Willigham introduced Wayne Estes from the Sebring International Raceway. Mr. Estes
gave a presentation on this year’s 12 Hours of Sebring race, changes over the last 10 years,
upcoming events, and improvements that the raceway are looking into for the future.

DIRECTOR’S BUSINESS

Chairman Stanley Wells announced a reminder to complete your Form 1 by July 1%

Florida Association of Special Districts (FASD) Ethics Training — just a reminder to complete
Ethics training.

CONCERNS OF THE PUBLIC

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman adjourned meeting at 2:12 pm.

N

Mike Willingham, Executive Director

+.13.45

Approved by Board



Date
6/2/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025

6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025

6/6/2025

6/6/2025

6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/9/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025

6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025

6/11/2025

6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/18/2025

6/18/2025

6/18/2025
6/18/2025
6/18/2025

6/18/2025
6/18/2025
6/18/2025
6/18/2025

6/18/2025

SAA/FBO - Paid Invoices
Sage Payment Solutions
AAIM
Aaron's Carts Plus Inc.
All About Lawns, Inc.
Armando J. de Solo III
Ascent Aviation Group
CAMP Software Inc.
Cintas
Cintas
Copy Life Inc
CrawfordTech Government Solutions LI
Dustin Dennis

Federal Express Corporation
Florida Waste Solutions LLC
Heartland Spring Water, Inc.
Hicks Oil Co., Inc.

Kaplan Kirsch LLP

Leedy Electric West

Miller & Company P.C.
New Southern Concrete Inc.

Paul C Valladares Jr

Rapid Systems

RW Summers Railroad Contr.,Inc
Heartland National Bank, N.A.
Ascent Aviation Group

Bella Villa 31

Cintas

Dan D. Nale
Federal Express Corporation
Long's Air Conditioning, Inc.

Michael Byrd

Mid Florida Truck Parts Inc
SWK Technologies, Inc.
TechHouse:Intergrated

Air & Electrical Services, Inc

Bugs Bee-Ware Ext., Inc.

Cintas
CliftonLarsonAllen
Crosson & Payne Tree Service

Dustin Dennis

Lumen

Pitney Bowes Global Financial
SWK Technologies, Inc.

TechHouse:Intergrated

June 2025 Paid List

Amount
$5,229.84
$174.00
$95.00
$1,025.00
$20.00
$20,223.97
$297.50
$224.56
$130.00
$346.81
$2,030.40
$1,975.00

$42.03
$1,191.20
$300.00
$1,876.93
$540.00
$12,023.22

$737.50
$3,800.00

$270.00
$143.95
$1,356.00
$52.70
$46.00
$2,980.00
$649.19

$1,000.00
$7.61
$2,888.00

$550.00

$1,498.97
$498.75
$70.88
$137.50

$1,549.00

$224.56
$437.50
$1,500.00

$510.00
$1,151.82
$192.75
$172.50

$1,637.79

Description
SAA: Paya Exchange CC Fees May 2025
SAA: Director of Finance Human Resource Recertification
FBO: Repairs to 6 Seater Golf Cart
SAA: Sprinkler Timer Modules + Labor at Diversified CPC
SAA: Embroidery on Shirts for Staff
FBO: Jet-A Fuel @ KSEF
FBO: TFBO Software for 5 Users - June 2025
SAA/FBO: Weekly Svcs; Mats, Soap, GermX, Sanis Screens
SAA/FBO: Monthly Agreement for AED System
SAA/FBO: May 2025 Copies
SAA/CRA: May 2025 Board Packet Transcripts
SAA: Terminal Bldg. - Pressure Wash Exterior Walls, Walkways & Front
Curbing
SAA: Express Shipping
SAA/FBO: Monthly Waste Collection Services - May 2025
SAA/FBO: Delivery of 30 Cases of Spring Water
SAA/FBO: Diesel Fuel Purchased for KSEF
SAA: Legal Svcs; Aerobatic Practice Area Dispute
SAA: Replaced the Radiator, Hoses, Belts and Coolant on 250kW Generac
- Parts & Labor
SAA: Conference with Client & Tenant, Tecnam, to Discuss Benefits of
FTZ
SAA: Form, Prep, Pour and Sawcut Sidewalk Outside Rear of Terminal
Building
SAA/FBO: June 2025 Plant Services
SAA/FBO: May 2025 Monthly Internet for Control Tower
SAA: Q2 2025 Track Inspection @ SAA - Performed 06.02.2025
FBO: Deposit Slips - Printed with Main Street Checks
FBO: CC Heartland Warranty Fee/CC Communication Fee
SAA/FBO: May 2025 Cleaning of Terminal Building
SAA/FBO: Weekly Sves Mats, Soap, Germx Bi Weekly Logo Mat Service

SAA: DDN Consulting Services

SAA: Express Shipping

SAA: Fabrication & Install of AC Drain Pans for Commercial Units 48x96
PO#5338

SAA: Stripped and Waxed Floors at Runway Cafe Including Stripper,
Sealer, and Wax

FBO: Fuel Truck 5000-3 Repairs - Engine Rebuild

SAA: Monthly Fee for Sage 100 Secure Cloud Services

SAA: General IT Support - Printer Issues

SAA: Hangar 103 C-4 AC Drain Repair - Built in Pump Not Working,
Converted Drain To Gravity Drain

SAA: Quarterly Extermination on 06.11.25; Insecticide Application, Weed
Control; Spring Nutritional Mix, Herbicide Application

SAA/FBO: Weekly Svcs; Mats, Soap, GermX, Sanis Screens

SAA: Monthly Lease & SBITA Software Fees

SAA: Removal of Oak Tree and 2 Palm Trees; Area Clean Up and All
Debris Hauled Away

SAA/FBO: Detailing of Airport Vehicles

SAA/FBO: June 2025 Fiber Optics

SAA: Quarterly Lease of Postage Machine 04.30.2025 - 07.29.2025
SAA: Software Upgrade Support - Finalize Paperless Setup (Sage
Upgrade)

SAA: General IT Support - Accounting Forward AP Inbox; Deactivate
Login/Acct of Separated EE; Monthly Recurring Software Fees



6/19/2025
6/25/2025

6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025

6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025

6/25/2025

6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025

6/30/2025

Avon Park Chamber of Commerce
Alan Jay Automotive

All About Lawns, Inc.
Andrew H. Bennett

Atkins North America, Inc.
Avcon, Inc.

Avcon, Inc.
Avcon, Inc.
Bio-Tech Consulting Inc.
Bugs Bee-Ware Ext., Inc.

C & C Plumbing, Inc.

Cintas

Cintas Corporation No. 2 dba
CrawfordTech Government Solutions LI
Department of Management Svcs.
Heartland Spring Water, Inc.

JC White Architectural Interior Products
Joseph Paz

Kaplan Kirsch LLP

Robbins Nursery, Inc.
TechHouse:Intergrated

Ascent Aviation Group

Total Paid:

June 2025 Paid List

$350.00
$3,217.02

$2,895.00
$588.14
$41,005.00
$1,433.28

$600.24
$10,610.00
$3,900.00
$303.00

$415.03

$224.56
$83.08
$2,030.40
$338.23
$300.00
$2,561.19
$200.00
$1,295.00
$457.30
$254.64

$6.00

$144,875.54

SAA: Annual Membership Dues June 2025 - May 2026
SAA: 2023 Silver Explorer Repair of Damages-Parts, Body, Paint & Labor

SAA: Terminal Building Irrigation Inspection and Repair

SAA: Reimburse International Travel Expenses for Paris Airshow
SAA: May 2025 On-Call Consulting Services

SAA: April/May 2025 SEF High Mast Lighting Add Service - Grant
Reimbursement

SAA: April/May 2025 SEF High Mast Lighting - Grant Reimbursement
SAA: April/May 2025 General On-Call Services

SAA: Bi-Monthly Waterway Weed Control per Contract

SAA: Plant/Shrub Care-Insecticide/Fungicide. Building 22; Plant/Shrub
Care-Insecticide/Fungicide Building 103

SAA: Terminal Building - Repaired leaking 2" Adapter. Repaired Faucet
In Women's Bathroom

SAA/FBO: Weekly Sves; Mats, Soap, GermX, Sanis Screens

FBO: First Aid Cabinet Replenishment

SAA/CRA: May 2025 Board Packet Transcripts for ADA Compliance
SAA/FBO: May 2025 Audio Long Distance

SAA/FBO: Delivery of 30 Cases of Spring Water

SAA: Office Furniture/Equipment Deposit - Chairs for Admin/Accounting
SAA: Security Deposit Refund (T-Hangar)

SAA: Legal Services; Aerobatic Practice Area Dispute

SAA: Terminal Building Replace Plants and Fertilizer

SAA: General IT Support: Profile Update Accounting, Trouble shoot &
Update Boardroom, IT Connection Issues

FBO: Wingpoints Issued Thru 06.10.2025



Purchase Date Vendor Name

6/4/2025
6/4/2025
6/4/2025
6/4/2025
6/4/2025
6/5/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/6/2025
6/7/2025

6/7/2025
6/9/2025
6/9/2025
6/9/2025
6/9/2025
6/10/2025

6/10/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/12/2025
6/12/2025
6/12/2025
6/12/2025
6/12/2025
6/12/2025
6/12/2025
6/12/2025
6/13/2025
6/13/2025
6/13/2025
6/13/2025
6/14/2025
6/14/2025
6/15/2025
6/15/2025
6/15/2025
6/15/2025
6/15/2025
6/15/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/17/2025
6/17/2025
6/17/2025

AMAZON MKTPL NH5WP93L2
APEX OFFICE PRODUCTS INC
Griffins Cleaners

WAWA 5370

WAWA 5370

STARLINK INTERNET
CIRCLE K 07515

EXXON LAMOSS INC.

THE HOME DEPOT #6340
REMARKABLE

SUNPASS ACC133808069
Adobe Inc

Amazon.com NH1U92111

NIC -DEP FDEP PAYMENT
SNCF-VOYAGEURS

AMAZON MKTPL NH8TG4BDO

MIAMI AIRPORT

AMAZON MKTPL NH3JP2DKO0
CGF15923PAUL2 4063800
CGF15924STARB1 4063778
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
LIM'HOTEL 0407212

WAWA 5373

WM SUPERCENTER #666

WM SUPERCENTER #666

AVIS RENT-A-CAR
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
LinkedIn Pre P418935203

THE HOME DEPOT #6340
TRIANGLE HARDWARE
TRIANGLE HARDWARE

WAWA 5370

BLEND

INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
SC-MATSUYA
TRTAX&ACTGPROFESSIONAL
UBER TRIP

VOLVER

RENAISSANCE PARIS PLACE V
SC-FONTAINE JAD

SQ FLORIDA REALTY MEDIA
SUMUP HIBA MCS6SEFL

UBER TRIP

WaltHtel

BLACK ANGUS

CIRCLE K 07515
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION
RATP

(PC) 8072 EW SEBRING

AMAZON MKTPL NA49T09K 1
INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION

June 2025 P-Cards

Amount

$85.53
$509.00
$40.30
$33.68
$37.01
$540.00
$51.00
$75.18
$216.53
$3.02

$32.08
$239.90
$149.99
$125.00
$183.38
$104.59

$61.55
$52.72
$5.61
$9.90
$1.83
$54.96
$28.34
$58.21
$189.01
$402.73
$0.06
$0.10
$925.38
$308.92
$93.20
$7.90
$30.18
$30.71
$0.55
$37.57
$306.00
$15.97
$51.11
$4,265.51
$40.31
$1,125.00
$19.86
$15.05
$78.52
$51.69
$79.00
$0.15
$0.16
$0.20
$0.31
$0.38
$0.40
$0.51
$4.03
$42.66
$74.69
$71.60
$41.98
$0.52

Description

SAA: Office Supplies Pens, Tacks

SAA/FBO: Operating Supplies, Coffee Station Replenishment, Restroom Supplies
SAA: Dry Cleaning for Deputy Director Uniform Shirts

FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

SAA/FBO: Monthly Back-Up Satellite Internet Service

SAA: Fuel for Maintenance Truck

FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

FBO/SAA: Wasp Spray, Blacktop Patch, and Rags

SAA: Connect Subscription for reMarkable Pad to Connect Desktop to Pad to Share
Files

SAA: Out-of-Town Tolls Paid

SAA: Monthly Subscriptions

SAA: Computer Drives for Outfall Structure Videos

SAA: 2025-2026 FDEP Fuel Farm Placard Renewals

SAA: Transportation Expense for Deputy Director Paris Airshow

FBO: CSR Sweater, Frames for Certificates, Ice-pops for Linemen, Complimetary Mints

SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow
FBO: Drone Class/Training

SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow
SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow
SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow
FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

SAA: SD Cards for Drone Videos

FBO: Water Bottles and Microfiber Towels for FBO Line

SAA: Rental Car for Duc Propellers Facility Tour

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: Premium Company Subscription for Linkedin for Sebring Airport

SAA: Electrical Supplies for Hydraulic Door Upgrade

FBO: Fuel Samples and Fitting for Swift Tank Repair

SAA: Bolt and Nuts for Repairs for Maintenance

FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow
SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow
SAA: Monthly Subscription Fixed Asset Software

SAA: Transportation Expense for Deputy Director Paris Airshow

SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow
SAA: Lodging for Deputy Director for Paris Airshow

SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow
SAA: Drone Footage of Outfall Structures

SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow
SAA: Transportation Expense for Deputy Director Paris Airshow

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow
SAA: Fuel for Maintenance Truck

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

SAA: Transportation Expense for Deputy Director Paris Airshow

SAA: Electrical Supplies for Hydraulic Door Upgrade

FBO: Binder Tabs

SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director



June 2025 P-Cards

Purchase Date Vendor Name Amount  Description

6/17/2025 INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION $0.75 SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

6/17/2025 KOI $58.78 SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow

6/18/2025 FLORIDA AIRPORTS COUNC ($656.25) SAA: Refund for Staff Member - FAC Conference

6/18/2025 HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS 538 $65.98 FBO/SAA: 2 Sprayers for Weed Killer and Clorox

6/18/2025 INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION $0.59 SAA: Related to Travel Expense for Deputy Director

6/18/2025 L EPI D OR $68.33 SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow

6/18/2025 LE PARIS XV $55.59 SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow

6/18/2025 SENTRYLINK $19.95 SAA: Pre-Employment Background Check

6/18/2025 THE HOME DEPOT #6340 $159.94 FBO/SAA: Mold Remover for Building and Fuel Farm

6/18/2025 W & W LMB LAKE PLACID $100.94 FBO: Outdoor Clorox, Inner Tube for Lav Cart and Squirrel Trap

6/18/2025 WM SUPERCENTER #666 $12.00 FBO: Scraper for Applying Decals to FBO Equipment

6/19/2025 INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION $0.68 SAA: Related to Travel Expense for Deputy Director

6/19/2025 RG BRETONNERIE $29.17 SAA: International Meal Expense for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow

6/20/2025 AMAZON MKTPL NO2W31182 $171.02 SAA: Cafe Chair Leg Floor Protectors; Coat Hooks For Replacement in Restrooms

6/20/2025 CIRCLE K 07515 $55.00 SAA: Fuel for Maintenance Truck

6/20/2025 INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION $0.29 SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

6/20/2025 INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION $0.56 SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

6/20/2025 INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION $0.79 SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

6/20/2025 LOVE'S #0683 OUTSIDE $52.02 SAA: Fuel in Operations Vehicle

6/20/2025 MIA PARKING $258.00 SAA: Transportation Expense for Deputy Director for Paris Airshow

6/20/2025 ROISSY LEG7 4357276 $12.08 SAA: Meal for Deputy Director while Attending Paris Airshow

6/20/2025 SUMUP SOULEYMANE YAYA $86.27 SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

6/22/2025 AMAZON MKTPL NO48R6HH1 $103.46 FBO: Uniform Shorts for Line tech, Vinyl for Fuel Farm Decals

6/23/2025 INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION $0.12 SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

6/23/2025 INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION $0.86 SAA: International Travel Expense for Deputy Director

6/24/2025 AMAZON MKTPL NQ6WQ70M1 $161.83 FBO: Coffee Station Replenishment; Line Tech Uniform Pants; Cleaning Duster Cans

6/24/2025 NAPA AUTO PARTS SEBRING $23.48 FBO: Courtesy Vehicle Cabin Air Filter

6/24/2025 OFFICE DEPOT #1165 $48.98 SAA: Laminating Pouches and Sharpie Highlighters

6/24/2025 VBS VONAGE BUSINESS $450.37 SAA/FBO: Monthly Phone Service

6/24/2025 WAWA 5370 $36.80 FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

6/25/2025 FADED BISTRO & BEER GARDE $94.93 SAA: Lunch meeting with Florida Commerce & Highlands County Economic
Development

6/25/2025 RECHTIEN - FORT MYERS $545.05 FBO: Rod Bolts and Seal Kit for Jet-A Fuel Truck 5000-3

6/25/2025 SP AIRCRAFTVIBES $659.90 SAA: Artwork for SAA Boardroom and Terminal Atrium

6/25/2025 WAWA 5370 $20.17 FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

6/25/2025 WAWA 5370 $33.00 FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

6/25/2025 WAWA 5370 $50.63 FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

6/25/2025 WAWA 5373 $49.96 SAA: Fuel in Operations Vehicle

6/26/2025 AMAZON MKTPL NQ2VA90J1 $109.67 SAA: Wireless Mouse and Laptop Skin cover; Binders for Finance Reports

6/26/2025 Amazon.com NQ3T591M1 $53.80 FBO: Coffee Bar Replenishment, Ice-pops for Linemen

6/26/2025 APEX OFFICE PRODUCTS INC $169.46 SAA/FBO: Copy Paper for FBO; Multifold Towels for Restrooms

6/26/2025 EXXON LAMOSS INC. $37.29 FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

6/26/2025 INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTION $6.60 SAA: Related to Travel Expense for Deputy Director

6/26/2025 PAYPAL CUPPRINTLLC $616.21 FBO: Coffee Bar Replenishment - Custom Printed Cups Restocked

6/26/2025 SUNPASS ACC122820104 $12.32 SAA: Out-of-Town Tolls Paid

6/26/2025 VERIZONWRLSS RTCCR VB $1,378.60 SAA: Monthly Mobile Service June 2025

6/27/2025 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS #9524 $32.77 FBO: Bolt Repairs and Gaskets for Jet-A Fuel Truck 5000-3

6/27/2025 EXXON LAMOSS INC. $76.00 FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

6/27/2025 OFFICE DEPOT #1165 $82.99 SAA: Toner for Printer

6/27/2025 SP QUICKSHIPKEYS.COM $72.77 SAA: Extra/Replacement Keys for Locking Cabinets

6/27/2025 SQ MID FLORIDA TRUCK PAR $34.99 FBO: Oil Filter for Jet-A Truck 5000-3

6/27/2025 TRIANGLE HARDWARE $9.48 FBO: Bolts and Washers Repair for Jet-A Truck 5000-3

6/28/2025 AMAZON MKTPL N38T20LV2 $199.75 SAA: Office Supplies - Accounting Dept.

6/28/2025 ERAU- TOUCHNET DB 2 $1,198.00 SAA: Embry-Riddle Online Training - FBO MSM 1100 Facilities Management &
Financial Management for the FBO

6/29/2025 Mailchimp $26.50 SAA: Email Marketing Tool

6/30/2025 CIRCLE K 07515 $63.00 SAA: Fuel for Maintenance Truck

6/30/2025 ONLINE PAY FL $90.00 SAA: Annual Sebring Chamber Luncheon Registration for Staff

7/1/2025 DOLLAR GENERAL #24924 $9.75 SAA: Purchased Drain Cleaner for Maintenance - Toilet Drain Repair

7/1/2025 ERAU- TOUCHNET DB 2 $1,198.00 FBO: Embry-Riddle Online Training - FBO MSM 1100 Facilities Management &

Financial Management for the FBO
7/1/2025 WAWA 5373 $51.21 SAA: Fuel in Operations Vehicle



Purchase Date Vendor Name

7/1/2025
7/2/2025
7/2/2025
7/2/2025
7/3/2025
7/3/2025
7/3/2025

June 2025 P-Cards

Amount
WWW.EBRIDGE.COM $175.00
Griffins Cleaners $36.27
SP SRQCOFFEE.COM $117.90
SQ FLORIDA REALTY MEDIA $500.00
ENGINEERED SPECIALTY PRO $180.09
EXXON LAMOSS INC. $34.97
GOOGLE YouTube TV $94.25

Total Due: $20,510.89

Description

SAA: Monthly Fee for Record Retention

SAA: Dry Cleaning for Deputy Director Uniform Shirts

FBO: Coffee Station Replenishment - Coffee

SAA: Drone Footage of Outfall Structures

FBO: Pressure Gauges for Nozzle Fuel Testing on Trucks

FBO: Fuel in Courtesy Vehicle

SAA: Monthly Subscription for Terminal Building Waiting Area


https://WWW.EBRIDGE.COM

Accounts Payable Aged Invoice Report
Open Invoices - Aged by Invoice Date - As of 7/09/2025
Sebring Airport Authority (SAA)

Vendor No./ Invoice
Invoice No. Date Due Date
ATKINS Atkins North America, Inc.
2045226 SPCC 6/30/2025 7/30/2025
Vendor ATKINS Totals:
AVCON Avcon, Inc.
130879 TAXIWAY D 6/30/2025 7/30/2025
131031 HML 6/30/2025 7/30/2025
131032 HML 6/30/2025 7/30/2025

Vendor AVCON Totals:

CINTAS Cintas

4235683090 7/2/2025 8/1/2025

Vendor CINTAS Totals:

CIVILSU CivilSurv Design Group, Inc.

442-001001-24 6/30/2025 7/30/2025
Vendor CIVILSU Totals:
DIANARI Diana Ries Designs, Inc.
14750 6/30/2025 7/30/2025
Vendor DIANARI Totals:
JACKS Jack's Lawn Service
2479 7/1/2025 7/30/2025
2480 7/1/2025 7/30/2025
Vendor JACKS Totals:
SUMMIT Summitt Fire & Security, LLC
3366336 7/3/2025 8/2/2025
3366349 7/3/2025 8/2/2025

Vendor SUMMIT Totals:

SWAINE Swaine, Harris & Wohl, P.A.

166655 OC 6/30/2025 7/30/2025

Vendor SWAINE Totals:

Report Totals:

Invoice 30 60 90 120
Balance Current Days Days Days Days
15,056.00 15,056.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
15,056.00 15,056.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
646.00 646.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
964.27 964.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
26,610.27 26,610.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
424.63 424.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
424.63 424.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
360.00 360.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
360.00 360.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
863.00 863.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
863.00 863.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8,325.00 8,325.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
425.00 425.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8,750.00 8,750.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6,031.75 6,031.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
461.50 461.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6,493.25 6,493.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,756.09 1,756.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,756.09 1,756.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
60,313.24 60,313.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SAA: SEF SPCC Plan & SWPPP Updates 2024

SAA: June 2025 KSEF Taxiway D Design Grant
Reimbursement

SAA: June 2025 SEF High Mast Lighting - Grant
Reimbursement

SAA: June 2025 SEF High Mast Lighting - Grant
Reimbursement

SAA/FBO: Weekly Service Mats, Soap, Germx

SAA: Professional Services Webster Turn Drive

SAA/CRA: June 2025 Website Updates

SAA: July 2025 Lawn & Landscape Care

SAA: July 2025 Diversified CPC Lawn Care -
Reimbursed by Tenant

SAA: Annual Fire Extinguisher Inspection

SAA: Semi-Annual Fire Extinguisher Inspection -
Café

SAA: June 2025 General On-Call Services



Accounts Payable Aged Invoice Report

Open Invoices - Aged by Invoice Date - As of 7/09/2025

Sebring Airport Authority (FBO)
Vendor
No./Invoice No. Invoice

Date Due Date

ASCENT Ascent Aviation Group

1123247 6/25/2025 7/25/2025
M325860 7/1/2025 7/31/2025
Vendor ASCENT Totals:

Report Totals:

Invoice 30 60 90

Balance Current Days Days Days 120 Days

24,059.45 24,059.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
46.00 46.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

24,105.45 24,105.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

24,105.45 24,105.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

FBO: Jet-A Fuel @ APBR
FBO: CC Heartland Warranty Fee/CC Communication Fee



Sebring Airport Authority
Agenda Item Summary

Meeting Date: July 17, 2025

Presenter: Andrew Bennett

Agenda Item: Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Fiscal Year 2025 — Grant
Award - Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Airport
Infrastructure Grant (AlG) Project No. 3-12-0072-036-2025.

Background: The Airport Authority management team has requested
$333,878.00 in FAA Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Airport Infrastructure
Grant (AIG) funding, along with $40,000.00 from the Florida Department of
Transportation (FDOT). These funds will be utilized to secure design, permitting, and
bidding services for the rehabilitation of Taxiway Alpha. Taxiway A is the full-length
parallel taxiway to the primary runway (Runway 1-19). Design of the Taxiway A
Rehabilitation is expected to involve a mill and overlay of the existing asphalt pavement
(5300' x 50'). Project will include new markings and the replacement of taxiway edge
lights, signage, and electrical cable. Taxiway Connector A2 will be reconstructed to a
90-degree geometry to align with current FAA standards. FDOT Public Transportation
Grant Agreement 446384-1-94-01 has been received for the requested amount of
$40,000.00 and approved by the board on March 20, 2025.

Recommended Action: Approve and ratify the execution and delivery of FAA
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Airport Infrastructure Grant (AlG) award of
$333,878.00; and all actions taken by Airport Staff with respect thereto.

Board Action:

Approved _X
Denied

Tabled



3-12-0072-036-2025

U.S. Department Orlando Airports

“ of Transportation District Office:
( Federal Aviation 8427 South Park
v Administration Circle, Suite 524

Orlando, FL 32819

June 6, 2025

Mike Willingham
Executive Director
Sebring Airport Authority
128 Authority Lane
Sebring, FL 32870

Dear Mr. Willingham:

The Grant Offer for infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Airport Infrastructure Grant (AlG)
Project No. 3-12-0072-036-2025 at Sebring Regional Airport is attached for execution. This letter
outlines the steps you must take to properly enter into this agreement and provides other useful
information. Please read the conditions, special conditions, and assurances that comprise the grant offer
carefully.

You may not make any modification to the text, terms or conditions of the grant offer.

Steps You Must Take to Enter Into Agreement.
To properly enter into this agreement, you must do the following:

1. The governing body must give authority to execute the grant to the individual{s) signing the
grant, i.e., the person signing the document must be the sponsor’s authorized representative(s)
{hereinafter “authorized representative”).

2. The authorized representative must execute the grant by adding their electronic signature to
the appropriate certificate at the end of the agreement.

3. Once the authorized representative has electronically signed the grant, the sponsor’s attorney(s)
will automatically receive an email notification.

4. On the same day or after the authorized representative has signed the grant, the sponsor’s
attorney(s) will add their electronic signature to the appropriate certificate at the end of the
agreement.

5. If there are co-sponsors, the authorized representative(s) and sponsor’s attorney(s} must follow
the above procedures to fully execute the grant and finalize the process. Signatures must be
obtained and finalized no later than June 23, 2025,

6. The fully executed grant will then be automatically sent to all parties as an email attachment.

Payment. Subject to the requirements in 2 CFR § 200.305 (Federal Payment), each payment request for
reimbursement under this grant must be made electronically via the Delphi einvoicing System. Please
see the attached Grant Agreement for more information regarding the use of this System.

Project Timing. The terms and conditions of this agreement require you to complete the project without
undue delay and no later than the Period of Performance end date {1,460 days from the grant execution




3-12-0072-036-2025

date). We will be monitoring your progress to ensure proper stewardship of these Federal funds. We
expect you to submit payment requests for reimbursement of allowable incurred project expenses
consistent with project progress. Your grant may be placed in “inactive” status if you do not make draws
on a regular basis, which will affect your ability to receive future grant offers. Costs incurred after the
Period of Performance ends are generally not allowable and will be rejected unless authorized by the
FAA in advance.

Reporting. Until the grant is completed and closed, you are responsible for submitting formal reports as
follows:

» For all grants, you must submit by December 31* of each year this grant is open:
1. Asigned/dated SF-270 (Request for Advance or Reimbursement for non-construction
projects) or SF-271 or equivalent (Outlay Report and Request for Reimbursement for
Construction Programs), and

2. An SF-425 (Federal Financial Report).

» For non-construction projects, you must submit FAA Form 5100-140, Performance Report within
30 days of the end of the Federal fiscal year.

» For construction projects, you must submit FAA Form 5370-1, Construction Progress and
Inspection Report, within 30 days of the end of each Federal fiscal quarter.

Audit Requirements. As a condition of receiving Federal assistance under this award, you must comply
with audit requirements as established under 2 CFR Part 200. Subpart F requires non-Federal entities
that expend $1,000,000 or more in Federal awards to conduct a single or program specific audit for that
year. Note that this includes Federal expenditures made under other Federal-assistance programs.
Please take appropriate and necessary action to ensure your organization will comply with applicable
audit requirements and standards.

Closeout. Once the project(s) is completed and all costs are determined, we ask that you work with your
FAA contact indicated below to close the project without delay and submit the necessary final closeout
documentation as required by your Region/Airports District Office.

FAA Contact Information. William Farris, (407) 487-7232, bill.farris@faa.gov is the assigned program
manager for this grant and is readily available to assist you and your designated representative with the
requirements stated herein.

We sincerely value your cooperation in these efforts and look forward to working with you to complete
this important project.

Sincerely,
Gt

Juan C. Brown
Manager


mailto:bill.farris@faa.gov

3-12-0072-036-2025

e

U.S. Department
of Transportation
Federal Aviation
Administration

FY 2025 AIRPORT INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT
GRANT AGREEMENT
Part | - Offer

Federal Award Offer Date June 6, 2025

Airport/Planning Area Sebring Regional Airport

Airport Infrastructure Grant

3-12-0072-036-2025
Number

Unique Entity Identifier HYANYE4BN1Z4

TO: Sebring Airport Authority

(herein called the "Sponsor”) (For Co-Sponsaors, list all Co-Sponsor names. The word "Sponsor” in this Grant Agreement also
applies to a Co-Sponsor.)

FROM: The United States of America (acting through the Federal Aviation Administration, herein
called the "FAA")

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has submitted to the FAA a Project Application dated March 14, 2025, for a
grant of Federal funds for a project at or associated with the Sebring Regional Airport, which is included
as part of this Grant Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the FAA has approved a project for the Sebring Regional Airport (herein called the “Project”)
consisting of the following:

Rehabilitate Taxiway A Pavement (5,300 feet) and Rehabilitate Taxiway A Lighting- Design Phase
which is more fully described in the Project Application.

NOW THEREFORE, Pursuant to and for the purpose of carrying out the Infrastructure Investment and
Jobs Act(IlJA) (Public Law (P.L.) 117-58) of 2021; FAA Reauthorization Act of 2024 (P.L. 118-63); and the
representations contained in the Project Application; and in consideration of {a} the Sponsor’s adoption
and ratification of the attached Grant Assurances dated April 2025, interpreted and applied consistent
with the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2024; (b} the Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer; and (c} the




3-12-0072-036-2025

benefits to accrue to the United States and the public from the accomplishment of the Project and
compliance with the Grant Assurance and conditions as herein provided;

THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE UNITED STATES, HEREBY

OFFERS AND AGREES to pay (95) % of the allowable costs incurred accomplishing the Project as the
United States share of the Project.

Assistance Listings Number (Formerly CFDA Number): 20.106

This Offer is made on and SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

CONDITIONS

1. Maximum Obligation. The maximum obligation of the United States payable under this Offer is
$333,878.

The following amounts represent a breakdown of the maximum obligation for the purpose of
establishing allowable amounts for any future grant amendment, which may increase the foregoing
maximum obligation of the United States under the provisions of 49 U.5.C. § 47108{b):

S0 for planning

$333,878 for airport development or noise program implementation; and,

S0 for land acquisition.

2. Grant Performance. This Grant Agreement is subject to the following Federal award requirements:

a.

Period of Performance:

1.

Shall start on the date the Sponsor formally accepts this Agreement and is the date signed
by the last Sponsor signatory to the Agreement. The end date of the Period of Performance
is 4 years (1,460 calendar days) from the date of acceptance. The Period of Performance end
date shall not affect, relieve, or reduce Sponsor obligations and assurances that extend
beyond the closeout of this Grant Agreement.

Means the total estimated time interval between the start of an initial Federal award and
the planned end date, which may include one or more funded portions or budget periods {2
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) § 200.1) except as noted in 49 U.S.C § 47142(b).

Budget Period:

1.

For this Grant is 4 years (1,460 calendar days) and follows the same start and end date as
the Period of Performance provided in paragraph 2(a){1}. Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.403(h),
the Sponsor may charge to the Grant only allowable costs incurred during the Budget Period
and as stated in 49 U.S.C § 47142(b). Eligible project-related costs incurred on or after
November 15, 2021 that comply with all Federal funding procurement requirements and
FAA standards are allowable costs,

Means the time interval from the start date of a funded portion of an award to the end date
of that funded portion during which Sponsors are authorized to expend the funds awarded,
including any funds carried forward or other revisions pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.308.

Close Qut and Termination

Unless the FAA authorizes a written extension, the Sponsor must submit all Grant closeout
documentation and liquidate (pay-off) all obligations incurred under this award no later




3-12-0072-036-2025

than 120 calendar days after the end date of the Period of Performance. If the Sponsor does
not submit all required closeout documentation within this time period, the FAA will
proceed to close out the grant within one year of the Period of Performance end date with
the information available at the end of 120 days (2 CFR § 200.344). The FAA may terminate
this agreement and all of its obligations under this agreement if any of the following occurs:

{a} (1) The Sponsor fails to obtain or provide any Sponsor grant contribution as required by
the agreement;

{2} A completion date for the Project or a component of the Project is listed in the
agreement and the Recipient fails to meet that milestone by six months after the date
listed in the agreement;

{3) The Sponsor fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this agreement,
including a material failure to comply with the Project Schedule even if it is beyond the
reasonable control of the Sponsor;

{4) Circumstances cause changes to the Project that the FAA determines are
inconsistent with the FAA’s basis for selecting the Project to receive a grant; or

{5) The FAA determines that termination of this agreement is in the public interest.

{(b) In terminating this agreement under this section, the FAA may elect to consider only the
interests of the FAA.

{c) The Sponsor may request that the FAA terminate the agreement under this section,

Ineligible or Unallowable Costs. In accordance with P.L. 117-58, Division J, Title VI, and 49 U.S.C. §
47110, the Sponsor is prohibited from including any costs in the grant funded portions of the project
that the FAA has determined to be ineligible or unallowable, including costs incurred to carry out
airport development implementing policies and initiatives repealed by Executive Order 14148,
provided such costs are not otherwise permitted by statute.

Indirect Costs - Sponsor. The Sponsor may charge indirect costs under this award by applying the

indirect cost rate identified in the project application as accepted by the FAA, to allowable costs for
Sponsor direct salaries and wages.

Determining the Final Federal Share of Costs. The United States’ share of allowable project costs
will be made in accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 47109, the regulations, policies, and procedures of the
Secretary of Transportation (“Secretary”}, and any superseding legislation. Final determination of
the United States’ share will be based upon the fina! audit of the total amount of allowable project
costs and settlement will be made for any upward or downward adjustments to the Federal share of
costs.

Completing the Project Without Delay and in Conformance with Requirements. The Sponsor must
carry out and complete the project without undue delays and in accordance with this Agreement,
IJA (P.L. 117-58), and the regulations, policies, and procedures of the Secretary. Per 2 CFR

§ 200.308, the Sponsor agrees to report and request prior FAA approval for any disengagement from
performing the project that exceeds three months or a 25 percent reduction in time devoted to the




10.

11

12.

3-12-0072-036-2025

project. The report must include a reason for the project stoppage. The Sponsor also agrees to
comply with the grant assurances, which are part of this Agreement.

Amendments or Withdrawals before Grant Acceptance. The FAA reserves the right to amend or
withdraw this offer at any time prior to its acceptance by the Sponsor.

Offer Expiration Date. This offer will expire and the United States will not be obligated to pay any
part of the costs of the project unless this offer has been accepted by the Sponsor on or before June
23, 2025, or such subsequent date as may be prescribed in writing by the FAA.

Improper Use of Federal Funds and Mandatory Disclosure.

a. The Sponsor must take all steps, including litigation if necessary, to recover Federal funds spent
fraudulently, wastefully, or in violation of Federal antitrust statutes, or misused in any other
manner for any project upon which Federal funds have been expended. For the purposes of this
Grant Agreement, the term “Federal funds” means funds however used or dispersed by the
Sponsor, that were originally paid pursuant to this or any other Federal grant agreement. The
Sponsor must obtain the approval of the Secretary as to any determination of the amount of the
Federal share of such funds. The Sponsor must return the recovered Federal share, including
funds recovered by settlement, order, or judgment, to the Secretary. The Sponsor must furnish
to the Secretary, upon request, all documents and records pertaining to the determination of
the amount of the Federal share or to any settlement, litigation, negotiation, or other efforts
taken to recover such funds. All settlements or other final positions of the Sponsor, in court or
otherwise, involving the recovery of such Federal share require advance approval by the
Secretary.

b. The Sponsor, a recipient, and a subrecipient under this Federal grant must promptly comply
with the mandatory disclosure requirements as established under 2 CFR § 200.113, including
reporting requirements related to recipient integrity and performance in accordance with
Appendix XIl to 2 CFR Part 200.

United States Not Liable for Damage or Injury. The United States is not responsible or liable for
damage to property or injury to persons which may arise from, or be incident to, compliance with
this Grant Agreement.

System for Award Management (SAM) Registration and Unique Entity Identifier (UEI).

a. Requirement for System for Award Management (SAM): Unless the Sponsor is exempted from
this requirement under 2 CFR § 25.110, the Sponsor must maintain the currency of its
information in the SAM until the Sponsor submits the final financial report required under this
Grant, or receives the final payment, whichever is later. This requires that the Sponsor review
and update the information at least annually after the initial registration and more frequently if
required by changes in information or another award term. Additional information about
registration procedures may be found at the SAM website (currently at http://www.sam.gov).

b. Unique entity identifier (UEI) means a 12-character alpha-numeric value used to identify a
specific commercial, nonprofit or governmental entity. A UEI may be obtained from SAM.gov at
https://sam.gov/content/entity-registration.

Electronic Grant Payment(s). Unless otherwise directed by the FAA, the Sponsor must make each

payment request under this Agreement electronically via the Delphi elnvoicing System for
Department of Transportation (DOT) Financial Assistance Awardees.


http://www.sam.gov
https://sam.gov/content/entitv-registration

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

3-12-0072-036-2025

Informal Letter Amendment of HJA Projects. If, during the life of the project, the FAA determines
that the maximum grant obligation of the United States exceeds the expected needs of the Sponsor
by $25,000 or five percent (5%), whichever is greater, the FAA can issue a letter amendment to the
Sponsor unilaterally reducing the maximum obligation.

The FAA can, subject to the availability of Federal funds, also issue a letter to the Sponsor increasing
the maximum obligation if there is an overrun in the total actual eligible and allowable project costs
to cover the amount of the overrun provided it will not exceed the statutory limitations for grant
amendments. The FAA’s authority to increase the maximum obligation does not apply to the
“planning” component of Condition No. 1, Maximum GChbligation.

The FAA can also issue an informal letter amendment that modifies the grant description to correct
administrative errors or to delete work items if the FAA finds it advantageous and in the best
interests of the United States.

An informal letter amendment has the same force and effect as a formal grant amendment.

Environmental Standards. The Sponsor is required to comply with all applicable environmental
standards, as further defined in the Grant Assurances, for all projects in this grant. If the Sponsor
fails to comply with this requirement, the FAA may suspend, cancel, or terminate this Grant
Agreement.

Financial Reporting and Payment Requirements. The Sponsor will comply with all Federal financial
reporting requirements and payment requirements, including submittal of timely and accurate
reports.

Buy American. Unless otherwise approved in advance by the FAA, in accordance with 49 U.5.C.

§ 50101, the Sponsor will not acquire or permit any contractor or subcontractor to acquire any steel
or manufactured goods produced outside the United States to be used for any project for which
funds are provided under this Grant. The Sponsor will inctude a provision implementing Buy
American in every contract and subconiract awarded under this Grant.

Build America, Buy American. The Sponsor must comply with the requirements under the Build
America, Buy America Act (P.L. 117-58).

Maximum Obligation Increase. In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 47108(b)(3), as amended, the
maximum obligation of the United States, as stated in Condition No. 1, Maximum Obligation, of this
Grant:

a. May not be increased for a planning project;
b. May be increased by not more than 15 percent for development projects, if funds are available;

¢. May be increased by not more than the greater of the following for a land project, if funds are
available:

1. 15 percent; or

2. 25 percent of the total increase in allowable project costs attributable to acquiring an
interest in the land.

If the Sponsor requests an increase, any eligible increase in funding will be subject to the United
States Government share as provided in IJA (P.L. 117-58), or other superseding legislation if
applicable, for the fiscal year appropriation with which the increase is funded. The FAA is not
responsible for the same Federal share provided herein for any amount increased over the initial




19;

20.

21.

3-12-0072-036-2025

grant amount. The FAA may adjust the Federal share as applicable through an informal letter of
amendment.

Audits for Sponsors.

PUBLIC SPONSORS. The Sponsor must provide for a Single Audit or program-specific audit in
accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. The Sponsor must submit the audit reporting package to the
Federal Audit Clearinghouse on the Federal Audit Clearinghouse’s Internet Data Entry System at
http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/. Upon request of the FAA, the Sponsor shall provide one copy
of the completed audit to the FAA. Sponsors that expend less than $1,000,000 in Federal awards
and are exempt from Federal audit requirements must make records available for review or audit by
the appropriate Federal agency officials, State, and Government Accountability Office. The FAA and
other appropriate Federal agencies may request additional information to meet all Federal audit
requirements.

Suspension or Debarment. When entering into a “covered transaction” as defined by 2 CFR §

180.200, the Sponsor must:
a. Verify the non-Federal entity is eligible to participate in this Federal program by:

1. Checking the System for Award Management (SAM.gov) exclusions to determine if the non-
Federal entity is excluded or disqualified; or

2. Collecting a certification statement from the non-Federal entity attesting they are not
excluded or disqualified from participating; or

3. Adding a clause or condition to covered transactions attesting the individual or firm are not
excluded or disqualified from participating.

b. Require prime contractors to comply with 2 CFR § 180.330 when entering into lower-tier
transactions with their contractors and sub-contractors.

c. Immediately disclose in writing to the FAA whenever (1) the Sponsor learns it has entered into a
covered transaction with an ineligible entity or (2) the Public Sponsor suspends or debars a
contractor, person, or entity.

Ban on Texting While Driving.

a. Inaccordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging
While Driving, October 1, 2009, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While Driving,
December 30, 2009, the Sponsor is encouraged to:

1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted
drivers including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing any work for,
or on behalf of, the Federal government, including work relating to a grant or subgrant.

2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of the
business, such as:

i.  Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing programs to
prohibit text messaging while driving; and

ii.  Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks
associated with texting while driving.

b. The Sponsor must insert the substance of this clause on banning texting while driving in all
subgrants, contracts, and subcontracts funded with this Grant.


http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/

3-12-0072-036-2025

22. Trafficking in Persons.

1. Posting of contact information.

a. The Sponsor must post the contact information of the national human trafficking hotline
(including options to reach out to the hotline such as through phone, text, or TTY) in all
public airport restrooms.

2. Provisions applicable to a recipient that is a private entity.

a. Under this Grant, the recipient, its employees, subrecipients under this Grant, and
subrecipients employees must not engage in:

Severe forms of trafficking in persons;

The procurement of commercial sex act during the period of time that the grant or
cooperative agreement is in effect;

The use of forced labor in the performance of this grant; or any subaward; or
Acts that directly support or advance trafficking in person, including the following acts;

a) Destroying, concealing, removing, confiscating, or otherwise denying an employee
access to that employee’s identity or immigration documents;

b) Failing to provide return transportation of pay for return transportation costs to an
employee from a country outside the United States to the country from which the
employee was recruited upon the end of employment if requested by the
employee, unless:

1. Exempted from the requirement to provide or pay for such return
transportation by the federal department or agency providing or entering
into the grant; or

2. The employee is a victim of human trafficking seeking victim services or
legal redress in the country of employment or witness in a human trafficking
enforcement action;

c) Soliciting a person for the purpose of employment, or offering employment, by
means of materially false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises
regarding that employment;

d) Charging recruited employees a placement or recruitment fee; or

e} Providing or arranging housing that fails to meet the host country’s housing and
safety standards.

b. The FAA, may unilaterally terminate this Grant, or take any remedial actions authorized by
22 U.5.C 7104b({c}), without penalty, if any private entity under this Grant;

Is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph (2}{a} of this Grant;

Has an employee that is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph {2){a) of
this Grant through conduct that is either:

a) Associated with performance under this Grant; or

b) Imputed to the recipient or subrecipient using the standards and due process for
imputing the conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR




3-12-0072-036-2025

Part 180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Government-wide Debarment and
Suspension {Nonprocurement),” as implemented by the FAA at 2 CFR Part 1200.

3. Provision applicable to a recipient other than a private entity.

a.

The FAA may unilaterally terminate this award or take any remedial actions authorized by
22 U.S.C 7104b(c), without penalty, if subrecipient than is a private entity under this award;

i. Isdetermined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph (2){a) of this Grant or

ii. Has an employee that is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph (2)(a) of
this Grant through conduct that is either:

a) Associated with performance under this Grant; or

b} Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing the
conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR Part 180,
“OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension
{Nonprocurement),” as implemented by our agency at 2 CFR Part 1200.

4. Provisions applicable to any recipient.

a.

The recipient must inform the FAA and the DOT Inspector General, immediately of any
information you receive from any source alleging a violation of a prohibition in paragraph
{2)(a) of this Grant,

The FAA’s right to unilaterally terminate this Grant as described in paragraph {(2){b) or (3}{a)
of this Grant, implements the requirements of 22 U.S.C. chapter 78 and is addition to all
other remedies for noncompliance that are available to the FAA under this Grant:

The recipient must include the requirements of paragraph (2)(a) of this Grant award term in
any subaward it makes to a private entity.

If applicable, the recipient must also comply with the compliance plan and certification
requirements in 2 CFR 175.105(b).

5. Definitions. For purposes of this Grant award, term:

4.

“Employee” means either:

i.  Anindividual employed by the recipient or a subrecipient who is engaged in the
performance of the project or program under this Grant; or

ii. Another person engaged in the performance of the project or program under this Grant
and not compensated by the recipient including, but not limited to, a volunteer or
individual whose services are contributed by a third party as an in-kind contribution
toward cost sharing or requirements.

“Private entity” means:

i. Any entity, including for profit organizations, nonprofit organizations, institutions of
higher education, and hospitals. The term does not include foreign public entities,
Indian Tribes, local governments, or states as defined in 2 CFR 200.1.

ii. The terms “severe forms of trafficking in persons,” “commercial sex act,” “sex
trafficking,” “Abuse or threatened abuse of law or legal process,” “coercion,” “debt

10




23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

3-12-0072-036-2025

bondage,” and “involuntary servitude” have the meaning given at section 103 of the
TVPA, as amended {22 U.S.C. 7102).

INA Funded Work Included in a PFC Application. Within 120 days of acceptance of this Grant
Agreement, the Sponsor must submit to the FAA an amendment to any approved Passenger Facility
Charge (PFC) application that contains an approved PFC project also covered under this Grant
Agreement as described in the project application. The airport sponsor may not make any
expenditure under this Grant Agreement until project work addressed under this Grant Agreement
is removed from an approved PFC application by amendment.

Exhibit “A” Property Map. The Exhibit “A” Property Map dated July 2020, is incorporated herein by
reference or is submitted with the project application and made part of this Grant Agreement.

Employee Protection from Reprisal. In accordance with 2 CFR § 200.217 and 41 U.S.C. § 4701, an
employee of a grantee, subgrantee contractor, recipient or subrecipient must not be discharged,
demoted, or otherwise discriminated against as a reprisal for disclosing to a person or body
described in paragraph {a){2) of 41 U.S.C. 4712 information that the employee reasonably believes is
evidence of gross mismanagement of a Federal contract or grant, a gross waste of Federal funds, an
abuse of authority relating to a Federal contract or grant, a substantial and specific danger to public
health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a Federal contract {including the
competition for or negotiation of a contract) or grant. The grantee, subgrantee, contractor,
recipient, or subrecipient must inform their employees in writing of employee whistleblower rights
and protections under 41 U.S.C. § 4712. See statutory requirements for whistleblower protections at
10U.S.C. §4701,41 U.S.C. §4712,41 U.S.C. §4304, and 10 U.S.C. § 4310.

Prohibited Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services and Equipment. The Sponsor
agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to use and procurement of certain
telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment in compliance with the National
Defense Authorization Act [P.L. 115-232 § 889(f}] and 2 CFR § 200.216.

Critical Infrastructure Security and Resilience. The Sponsor acknowledges that it has considered
and addressed physical and cybersecurity and resilience in its project planning, design, and
oversight, as determined by the DOT and the Department of Homeland Security (DHS). For airports
that do not have specific DOT or DHS cybersecurity requirements, the FAA encourages the voluntary
adoption of the cybersecurity requirements from the Transportation Security Administration and
Federal Security Director identified for security risk Category X airports.

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. As a condition of a grant award, the Sponsor shall demonstrate that
it complies with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.5.C. §§ 2000d et seq)
and implementing regulations (49 CFR part 21), the Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49
U.S.C. § 47123), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.), Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.}, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.S.C. § 12101, et seq.), U.S. Department of Transportation and Federal Aviation Administration
(FAA) Assurances, and other relevant civil rights statutes, regulations, or authorities, including any
amendments or updates thereto. This may include, as applicable, providing a current Title VI
Program Plan to the FAA for approval, in the format and according to the timeline required by the
FAA, and other information about the communities that will be benefited and impacted by the
project. A completed FAA Title VI Pre-Grant Award Checklist is required for every grant application,
unless excused by the FAA. The Sponsor shall affirmatively ensure that when carrying out any
project supported by this grant that it complies with all federal nondiscrimination and civil rights
laws based on race, color, national origin, sex, creed, age, disability, genetic information, in

11




29.

30.

31,

32.

3-12-0072-036-2025

consideration for federal financial assistance. The Department’s and FAA’s Office of Civil Rights may
provide resources and technical assistance to recipients to ensure full and sustainable compliance
with Federal civil rights requirements. Failure to comply with civil rights requirements will be
considered a violation of the agreement or contract and be subject to any enforcement action as
authorized by law.

FAA Reauthorization Act of 2024. This grant agreement is subject to the terms and conditions
contained herein including the terms known as the Grant Assurances as they were published in the
Federal Register April 2025. On May 16, 2024, the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2024 made certain
amendments to 49 U.S.C. chapter 471. The Reauthorization Act will require the FAA to make certain
amendments to the assurances in order to best achieve consistency with the statute. Federal law
requires that the FAA publish any amendments to the assurances in the Federal Register along with
an opportunity to comment. In order not to delay the offer of this grant, the existing assurances are
attached herein; however, the FAA shall interpret and apply these assurances consistent with the
Reauthorization Act. To the extent there is a conflict between the assurances and Federal statutes,
the statutes shall apply. The full text of the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2024 is at

https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/3935/text

Applicable Federal Anti-Discrimination Laws. Pursuant to Section (3)(b)(iv), Executive Order 14173,
Ending lllegal Discrimination and Restoring Merit-Based Opportunity, the sponsor:

a. Agrees that its compliance in all respects with all applicable Federal anti-discrimination laws is
material to the government’s payment decisions for purposes of 31 U.S.C. 3729(b)(4); and

b. certifies that it does not operate any programs promoting diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI)
initiatives that violate any applicable Federal anti-discrimination laws.

Federal Law and Public Policy Requirements. The Sponsor shall ensure that Federal funding is

expended in full accordance with the United States Constitution, Federal law, and statutory and
public policy requirements: including but not limited to, those protecting free speech, religious
liberty, public welfare, the environment, and prohibiting discrimination; and the Sponsor will
cooperate with Federal officials in the enforcement of Federal law, including cooperating with and
not impeding U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) and other Federal offices and
components of the Department of Homeland Security in and the enforcement of Federal
immigration law.

National Airspace System Requirements

a. The Sponsor shall cooperate with FAA activities installing, maintaining, replacing, improving, or
operating equipment and facilities in or supporting the National Airspace System, including
waiving permitting requirements and other restrictions affecting those activities to the
maximum extent possible, and assisting the FAA in securing waivers of permitting or other
restrictions from other authorities. The Sponsor shall not take actions that frustrate or prevent
the FAA from installing, maintaining, replacing, improving, or operating equipment and facilities
in or supporting the National Airspace System.

b. If the FAA determines that the Sponsor has violated subsection (a), the FAA may impose a
remedy, including:

(1) additional conditions on the award;

12


https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/3935/text

3-12-0072-036-2025

{2} consistent with 43 U.S.C chapter 471, any remedy permitted under 2 C.F.R. 200.339-
200.340, including withholding of payments; disallowance of previously reimbursed
costs, requiring refunds from the Recipient to the USDOT,; suspension or termination of
the award; or suspension and debarment under 2 CFR part 180; or

{3) any other remedy legally available.

¢. Inimposing a remedy under this condition, the FAA may elect to consider the interests of only
the FAA,

d. The Sponsor acknowledges that amounts that the FAA requires the Sponsor to refund to the
FAA due to a remedy under this condition constitute a debt to the Federal Government that the
FAA may collect under 2 CFR 200.346 and the Federal Claims Collection Standards (31 CFR parts
900-904).

33. Signage Costs for Construction Projects. The airport grant recipient hereby agrees that it will
require the prime contractor of a Federally- assisted airport improvement project to post signs
consistent with a DOT/FAA-prescribed format, as may be requested by the DOT/FAA, and further
agrees to remove any signs posted in response to requests received prior to February 1, 2025.

34, Title 8 - U.5.C,, Chapter 12, Subchapter Il - Immigration. The sponsor will follow applicable federal
laws pertaining to Subchapter 12, and be subject to the penalties set forth in 8 U.S.C. § 1324,
Bringing in and harboring certain aliens, and 8 U.S.C. § 1327, Aiding or assisting certain aliens to
enter

13




3-12-0072-036-2025

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

35. Buy American Executive Orders. The Sponsor agrees to abide by applicable Executive Orders in
effect at the time this Grant Agreement is executed, including Executive Order 14005, Ensuring the
Future Is Made in All of America by All of America’s Workers.

14




3-12-0072-036-2025

The Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer and ratification and adoption of the Project Application
incorporated herein shall be evidenced by execution of this instrument by the Sponsor, as hereinafter
provided, and this Offer and Acceptance shall comprise a Grant Agreement, constituting the contractual
obligations and rights of the United States and the Sponsor with respect to the accomplishment of the
Project and compliance with the Grant Assurances, terms, and conditions as provided herein. Such Grant
Agreement shall become effective upon the Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or
sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and
withdraw your consent at any time.

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.’

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

4;(.2%

(Signature)
Juan C. Brown
(Typed Name}
Manager
(Title of FAA Official)

1 Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.S.C.
§ 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

15




3-12-0072-036-2025

Part Il - Acceptance
The Sponsor does hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties,
covenants, and agreements contained in the Project Application and incorporated materials referred to
in the foregoing Offer, and does hereby accept this Offer and by such acceptance agrees to comply with
all of the Grant Assurances, terms, and conditions in this Offer and in the Project Application.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or
sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and
withdraw your consent at any time.

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.?

Dated June 6,2025

Sebring Airport Authority

{Name of Sponsor)

O RS

{Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official)

By: Andrew Bennett

(Typed Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official)
Title: Deputy Director

{Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official)

2 Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.S.C.
§ 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

16




3-12-0072-036-2025

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR’S ATTORNEY
I, Robert Swaine » acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify:

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the
laws of the State of Florida. Further, | have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the actions
taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor’s official representative, who has been duly authorized to execute
this Grant Agreement, which is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the
said State; the Infrastructure Investment and lobs Act {IlJA) (P.L. 117-58) of 2021; FAA Reauthorization
Act of 2024 (P.L. 118-63); and the representations contained in the Project Application. In addition, for
grants involving projects to be carried out on property not owned by the Sponsor, there are no legal
impediments that will prevent full performance by the Sponsor. Further, it is my opinion that the said
Grant Agreement constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor in accordance with the terms
thereof.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or
sign documents electronically. if you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and
withdraw your consent at any time,

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.?

Dated at June 10,2025

bt Spvacine
By:

{Signature of Sponsor’s Attorney)

3 Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18
U.5.C. § 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

17




3-12-0072-036-2025

ASSURANCES
AIRPORT SPONSORS

A. General.

1. These assurances shall be complied with in the performance of grant agreements for airport
development, airport planning, and noise compatibility program grants for airport sponsors,

2. These assurances are required to be submitted as part of the project application by sponsors
requesting funds under the provisions of Title 49, U.S.C., subtitle VIi, as amended. As used
herein, the term "public agency sponsor" means a public agency with control of a public-use
airport; the term "private sponsor" means a private owner of a public-use airport; and the term
“sponsor"” includes both public agency sponsors and private sponsors.

3. Upon acceptance of this grant offer by the sponsor, these assurances are incorporated in and
become part of this Grant Agreement.

B. Duration and Applicability.

1. Airport Development or Noise Compatibility Program Projects Undertaken by a Public Agency
Sponsor.

The terms, conditions, and assurances of this Grant Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect throughout the useful life of the facilities developed or equipment acquired for an
airport development or noise compatibility program project, or throughout the useful life of
the project items installed within a facility under a noise compatibility program project, but in
any event not to exceed twenty (20) years from the date of acceptance of a grant offer of
Federal funds for the project. However, there shall be no limit on the duration of the
assurances regarding Exclusive Rights and Airport Revenue so long as the airport is used as an
airport. There shall be no limit on the duration of the terms, conditions, and assurances with
respect to real property acquired with federal funds. Furthermore, the duration of the Civil
Rights assurance shall be specified in the assurances.

2. Airport Development or Noise Compatibility Projects Undertaken by a Private Sponsor.

The preceding paragraph (1} also applies to a private sponsor except that the useful life of
project items installed within a facility or the useful life of the facilities developed or equipment
acquired under an airport development or noise compatibility program project shall be no less
than ten (10} years from the date of acceptance of Federal aid for the project.

3. Airport Planning Undertaken by a Sponsor.

Unless otherwise specified in this Grant Agreement, only Assurances 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 13, 18, 23, 25,
30, 32, 33, 34, 37, and 40 in Section C apply to planning projects. The terms, conditions, and
assurances of this Grant Agreement shall remain in full force and effect during the life of the
project; there shall be no limit on the duration of the assurances regarding Exclusive Rights and
Airport Revenue so long as the airport is used as an airport.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page1cf13




3-12-0072-036-2025

C. Sponsor Certification.

The sponsor hereby assures and certifies, with respect to this grant that:

1.

General Federal Requirements

The Sponsor will comply with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, executive orders, policies,
guidelines, and requirements as they relate to the application, acceptance, and use of Federal funds
for this Grant. Performance under this agreement shall be governed by and in compliance with the
following requirements, as applicable, to the type of organization of the Sponsor and any applicable
sub-recipients. The applicable provisions to this agreement include, but are not limited to, the

following:
FEDERAL LEGISLATION

a. 49 U.S.C. subtitle VI, as amended.

b. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended — 40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3144, 3146, and 3147, et seq.!

c. Federal Fair Labor Standards Act — 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq.

d. Hatch Act—5 U.S.C. § 1501, et seq.?

e. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 42
U.S.C. 4601, et seq.> 2

f.  National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 — Section 106 — 54 U.S.C. § 306108.1

g. Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 — 54 U.S.C. § 312501, et seq.}

h. Native Americans Grave Repatriation Act — 25 U.S.C. § 3001, et seq.

i. Clean Air Act, P.L. 90-148, as amended — 42 U.5.C. § 7401, et seq.

j.  Coastal Zone Management Act, P.L. 92-583, as amended — 16 U.S.C. § 1451, et seq.

k. Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 — Section 102(a) - 42 U.S.C. § 4012a.}

I. 49 U.5.C. § 303, (formerly known as Section 4{f)).

m. Rehabilitation Act of 1973 - 29 U.S.C. § 794.

n. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 {42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.) (prohibits discrimination on the
basis of race, color, national origin).

0. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.) {prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability).

p. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 -42 U.S.C. § 6101, et seq.

g. American Indian Religious Freedom Act, P.L. 95-341, as amended.

r. Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended — 42 U.S.C. § 4151, et seq.?

s. Powerplant and Industrial Fuel Use Act of 1978 - Section 403 — 42 U.S.C. § 8373.1

t. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act — 40 U.S.C. § 3701, et seq.!

u. Copeland Anti-kickback Act — 18 U.S.C. § 874.!

v. National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 — 42 U.S.C. § 4321, et seq.}

-

w e

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 20f 18




3-12-0072-036-2025

w. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, P.L. 90-542, as amended — 16 U.S.C. § 1271, et seq.
x. Single Audit Act of 1984 — 31 U.5.C. § 7501, et seq.?
y. Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 —41 U.S.C. §§ 8101 through 8105.

z. The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, as amended (P.L. 109-282, as
amended by section 6202 of P.L. 110-252).

aa. Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, P.L. 100-2589,

bb. Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, P.L. 117-58, Title VIII.
cc. Build America, Buy America Act, P.L. 117-58, Title IX.

dd. Endangered Species Act — 16 U.5.C. 1531, et seq.

ee. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended — 20 U.S.C. 1681-1683 and 1685—
1687.

ff. Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as amended — 21 U.S.C. 1101, et seq.

gg. Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970, P.L. 91-
616, as amended — 42 U .S.C. § 4541, et seq.

hh. Appropriated Funds to Influence Certain Federal Contracting and Financial Transactions — 31
U.S.C. § 1352,

EXecuTive ORDERS
a. Executive Order 11990 — Protection of Wetlands

b. Executive Order 11988 - Floodplain Management
c. Executive Order 12372 — Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs

d. Executive Order 12699 — Seismic Safety of Federal and Federally Assisted New Building
Construction®

e. Executive Order 14005 — Ensuring the Future is Made in all of America by All of America’s
Workers

f. Executive Order 14149 — Restoring Freedom of Speech and Ending Federal Censorship

g. Executive Order 14151 — Ending Radical and Wasteful Government DE| Programs and
Preferencing

h. Executive Order 14154 — Unleashing American Energy

i. Executive Order 14168 — Defending Women from Gender Ideology Extremism and Restoring
Biological Truth to the Federal Government

j. Executive Order 14173 — Ending !llegal Discrimination and Restoring Merit-Based Opportunity

FEDERAL REGULATIONS
a. 2 CFRPart 180 — OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension
{Nonprocurement).

b. 2 CFRPart 200 and 1201 — Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards. >%°

c. 2 CFR Part 1200 — Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page3of 19




3-12-0072-036-2025

d. 14 CFR Part 13 — Investigative and Enforcement Procedures.
e. 14 CFR Part 16 — Rules of Practice for Federally-Assisted Airport Enforcement Proceedings.
f. 14 CFR Part 150 — Airport Noise Compatibility Planning.

g. 28 CFR Part 35 — Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government

Services.
h. 28 CFR § 50.3 — U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for the Enforcement of Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964.

i. 29 CFR Part 1 - Procedures for Predetermination of Wage Rates.!

j- 29 CFR Part 3 — Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in
Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States.!

k. 29 CFR Part 5 — Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed
and Assisted Construction (Also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction
Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act).!

I. 41 CFR Part 60 — Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment
Opportunity, Department of Labor (Federal and Federally-assisted contracting requirements).!

m. 49 CFR Part 20 — New Restrictions on Lobbying.

n. 49 CFR Part 21 — Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of
Transportation - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

0. 49 CFR Part 23 — Participation by Disadvantage Business Enterprise in Airport Concessions.

p. 49 CFR Part 24 — Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition for Federal and
Federally-Assisted Programs.* 2

a. 49 CFR Part 26 — Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of
Transportation Financial Assistance Programs.

r. 49 CFR Part 27 — Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in Programs or Activities Receiving
Federal Financial Assistance.!

s. 49 CFR Part 28 — Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs or
Activities Conducted by the Department of Transportation,

t. 49 CFR Part 30 — Denial of Public Works Contracts to Suppliers of Goods and Services of
Countries That Deny Procurement Market Access to U.S. Contractors.

u. 49 CFR Part 32 — Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace {Financial
Assistance).

v. 49 CFR Part 37 — Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA).

w. 49 CFR Part 38 — Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)} Accessibility Specifications for
Transportation Vehicles.

X. 49 CFR Part 41 — Seismic Safety.

FoOTNOTES TO ASSURANCE (C){1}

! These laws do not apply to airport planning sponsors.
2 These laws do not apply to private sponsors.

o - e e i e o VIR, F% s ST L A TTTMSTN e T TASREY ST ECRTR Fa

Airport Sponsocs Assurances Page 4 of 19




3

4

5

3-12-0072-036-2025

2 CFR Part 200 contains requirements for State and Local Governments receiving Federal
assistance. Any requirement levied upon State and Local Governments by this regulation shall
apply where applicable to private sponsors receiving Federal assistance under Title 49, United
States Code,

Cost principles established in 2 CFR Part 200 subpart € must be used as guidelines for
determining the eligibility of specific types of expenses.

Audit requirements established in 2 CFR Part 200 subpart F are the guidelines for audits.

SPECIFIC ASSURANCES

Specific assurances required to be included in grant agreements by any of the above laws, regulations or
circulars are incorporated by reference in this Grant Agreement.

2. Responsibility and Authority of the Sponsor.

a.

Public Agency Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant, and to finance and carry out the proposed project;
that a resolution, motion or similar action has been duly adopted or passed as an official act of
the applicant’s governing body authorizing the filing of the application, including all
understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing the person
identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in connection with the
application and to provide such additional information as may be required.

Private Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant and to finance and carry out the proposed project
and comply with all terms, conditions, and assurances of this Grant Agreement. It shall
designate an official representative and shall in writing direct and authorize that person to file
this application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein; to act in
connection with this application; and to provide such additional information as may be
required.

3. Sponsor Fund Availability.

It has sufficient funds available for that portion of the project costs which are not to be paid by the
United States. It has sufficient funds available to assure operation and maintenance of items funded
under this Grant Agreement which it will own or control.

4. Good Title.

a.

It, a public agency or the Federal government, holds good title, satisfactory to the Secretary, to
the landing area of the airport or site thereof, or will give assurance satisfactory to the
Secretary that good title will be acquired.

For noise compatibility program projects to be carried out on the property of the sponsor, it
holds good title satisfactory to the Secretary to that portion of the property upon which Federal
funds will be expended or will give assurance to the Secretary that good title will be obtained.

5. Preserving Rights and Powers.

a.

It will not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of the rights and
powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms, conditions, and assurances in this Grant
Agreement without the written approval of the Secretary, and will act promptly to acquire,

extinguish or modify any outstanding rights or claims of right of others which would interfere

e st e = . o - = e 7o — - - e e

Airport Sponsars Assurances Page 50f 19




3-12-0072-036-2025

with such performance by the sponsor. This shall be done in a manner acceptable to the
Secretary.

b. Subject to 49 U.S.C. 47107{a){16) and (x}, it will not sell, lease, encumber, or otherwise transfer
or dispose of any part of its title or other interests in the property shown on Exhibit A to this
application or, for a noise compatibility program project, that portion of the property upon
which Federal funds have been expended, for the duration of the terms, conditions, and
assurances in this Grant Agreement without approval by the Secretary. If the transferee is
found by the Secretary to be eligible under Title 49, United States Code, to assume the
obligations of this Grant Agreement and to have the power, authority, and financial resources
to carry out all such obligations, the sponsor shall insert in the contract or document
transferring or disposing of the sponsor's interest, and make binding upon the transferee all of
the terms, conditions, and assurances contained in this Grant Agreement.

c. Forall noise compatibility program projects which are to be carried out by another unit of local
government or are on property owned by a unit of local government other than the sponsor, it
will enter into an agreement with that government. Except as otherwise specified by the
Secretary, that agreement shall obligate that government to the same terms, conditions, and
assurances that would be applicable to it if it applied directly to the FAA for a grant to
undertake the noise compatibility program project. That agreement and changes thereto must
be satisfactory to the Secretary. It will take steps to enforce this agreement against the local
government if there is substantial non-compliance with the terms of the agreement.

d. For noise compatibility program projects to be carried out on privately owned property, it will
enter into an agreement with the owner of that property which includes provisions specified by
the Secretary. It will take steps to enforce this agreement against the property owner
whenever there is substantial non-compliance with the terms of the agreement.

e. If the sponsor is a private sponsor, it will take steps satisfactory to the Secretary to ensure that
the airport will continue to function as a pubtlic-use airport in accordance with these assurances
for the duration of these assurances.

f. If an arrangement is made for management and operation of the airport by any agency or
person other than the sponsor or an employee of the sponsor, the sponsor will reserve
sufficient rights and authority to ensure that the airport will be operated and maintained in
accordance with Title 49, United States Code, the regulations and the terms, conditions and
assurances in this Grant Agreement and shall ensure that such arrangement also requires
compliance therewith. i

g. Sponsors of commercial service airports will not permit or enter into any arrangement that
results in permission for the owner or tenant of a property used as a residence, or zoned for
residential use, to taxi an aircraft between that property and any location on airport. Sponsors
of general aviation airports entering into any arrangement that results in permission for the
owner of residential real property adjacent to or near the airport must comply with the
requirements of Sec. 136 of Public Law 112-95 and the sponsor assurances.

6. Consistency with Local Plans.

The project is reasonably consistent with plans {existing at the time of submission of this
application) of public agencies that are authorized by the State in which the project is located to
plan for the development of the area surrounding the airport.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page6of 19




3-12-0072-036-2025

7. Consideration of Local Interest.

It has given fair consideration to the interest of communities in or near where the project may be
located.

8. Consultation with Users.

In making a decision to undertake any airport development project under Title 49, United States
Code, it has undertaken reasonable consultations with affected parties using the airport at which
project is proposed.

9. Public Hearings.

In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway, or a major runway extension, it
has afforded the opportunity for public hearings for the purpose of considering the economic,
social, and environmental effects of the airport or runway location and its consistency with goals
and objectives of such planning as has been carried out by the community and it shall, when
requested by the Secretary, submit a copy of the transcript of such hearings to the Secretary.
Further, for such projects, it has on its management board either voting representation from the
communities where the project is located or has advised the communities that they have the right
to petition the Secretary concerning a proposed project.

10. Metropolitan Planning Organization.

In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway, or a major runway extension at a
medium or large hub airport, the sponsor has made available to and has provided upon request to
the metropolitan planning organization in the area in which the airport is located, if any, a copy of
the proposed amendment to the airport layout plan to depict the project and a copy of any airport
master plan in which the project is described or depicted.

11. Pavement Preventive Maintenance-Management.

With respect to a project approved after January 1, 1995, for the replacement or reconstruction of
pavement at the airport, it assures or certifies that it has implemented an effective airport
pavement maintenance-management program, and it assures that it will use such program for the
useful life of any pavement constructed, reconstructed, or repaired with Federal financial assistance
at the airport. It will provide such reports on pavement condition and pavement management
programs as the Secretary determines may be useful.

12, Terminal Development Prerequisites.

For projects which include terminal development at a public use airport, as defined in Title 49, it
has, on the date of submittal of the project grant application, all the safety equipment required for
certification of such airport under 49 U.S.C. 44706, and all the security equipment required by rule
or regulation, and has provided for access to the passenger enplaning and deplaning area of such
airport to passengers enplaning and deplaning from aircraft other than air carrier aircraft.

13. Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requirements.

a. It shall keep all project accounts and records which fully disclose the amount and disposition by
the recipient of the proceeds of this Grant, the total cost of the project in connection with
which this Grant is given or used, and the amount or nature of that portion of the cost of the
project supplied by other sources, and such other financial records pertinent to the project. The
accounts and records shall be kept in accordance with an accounting system that will facilitate
an effective audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984,

e

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 7 of 19




3-12-0072-036-2025

b. It shall make available to the Secretary and the Comptroller General of the United States, or
any of their duly authorized representatives, for the purpose of audit and examination, any
books, documents, papers, and records of the recipient that are pertinent to this Grant. The
Secretary may require that an appropriate audit be conducted by a recipient. In any case in
which an independent audit is made of the accounts of a sponsor relating to the disposition of
the proceeds of a grant or relating to the project in connection with which this Grant was given
or used, it shall file a certified copy of such audit with the Comptroller General of the United
States not later than six {6) months following the close of the fiscal year for which the audit was
made,

14. Minimum Wage Rates.

It shall include, in all contracts in excess of $2,000 for work on any projects funded under this Grant
Agreement which involve labor, provisions establishing minimum rates of wages, to be
predetermined by the Secretary of Labor under 40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3144, 3146, and 3147, Public
Building, Property, and Works), which contractors shall pay to skilled and unskilled labor, and such
minimum rates shall be stated in the invitation for bids and shall be included in proposals or bids for
the work.

15. Veteran's Preference.

It shall include in all contracts for work on any project funded under this Grant Agreement which
involve labor, such provisions as are necessary to insure that, in the employment of labor {except in
executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), preference shall be given to Vietnam era
veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, disabled veterans, and small
business concerns owned and controlled by disabled veterans as defined in 49 U.S.C. 47112.
However, this preference shall apply only where the individuals are available and qualified to
perform the work to which the employment relates.

16. Conformity to Plans and Specifications.

It will execute the project subject to plans, specifications, and schedules approved by the Secretary.
Such plans, specifications, and schedules shall be submitted to the Secretary prior to
commencement of site preparation, construction, or other performance under this Grant
Agreement, and, upon approval of the Secretary, shall be incorporated into this Grant Agreement.
Any modification to the approved plans, specifications, and schedules shall also be subject to
approval of the Secretary and incorporated into this Grant Agreement.

17. Construction Inspection and Approval.

It will provide and maintain competent technical supervision at the construction site throughout the
project to assure that the work conforms to the plans, specifications, and schedules approved by
the Secretary for the project. It shall subject the construction work on any project contained in an
approved project application to inspection and approval by the Secretary and such work shall be in
accordance with regulations and procedures prescribed by the Secretary. Such regulations and
procedures shall require such cost and progress reporting by the sponsor or sponsors of such
project as the Secretary shall deem necessary.

18. Planning Projects.
In carrying out planning projects:

a. It will execute the project in accordance with the approved program narrative contained in the
project application or with the modifications similarly approved.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 8 of 19




b.

3-12-0072-036-2025

It will furnish the Secretary with such periodic reports as required pertaining to the planning
project and planning work activities.

It will include in all published material prepared in connection with the planning project a
notice that the material was prepared under a grant provided by the United States.

It will make such material available for examination by the public and agrees that no material
prepared with funds under this project shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any
other country.

It will give the Secretary unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and otherwise
use any of the material prepared in connection with this grant.

It will grant the Secretary the right to disapprove the sponsor's employment of specific
consultants and their subcontractors to do all or any part of this project as well as the right to
disapprove the proposed scope and cost of professional services,

It will grant the Secretary the right to disapprove the use of the sponsor's employees to do all
or any part of the project.

It understands and agrees that the Secretary's approval of this project grant or the Secretary's
approval of any planning material developed as part of this grant does not constitute or imply
any assurance or commitment on the part of the Secretary to approve any pending or future
application for a Federal airport grant.

19. Operation and Maintenance.

a.

The airport and all facilities which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users of the airport,
other than facilities owned or controlled by the United States, shall be operated at all times in a
safe and serviceable condition and in accordance with the minimum standards as may be
required or prescribed by applicable Federal, state, and local agencies for maintenance and
operation. It will not cause or permit any activity or action thereon which would interfere with
its use for airport purposes. It will suitably operate and maintain the airport and all facilities
thereon or connected therewith, with due regard to climatic and flood conditions. Any proposal
to temporarily close the airport for non-aeronautical purposes must first be approved by the
Secretary. In furtherance of this assurance, the sponsor will have in effect arrangements for:

1. Operating the airport's aeronautical facilities whenever required;

2. Promptly marking and lighting hazards resulting from airport conditions, including
temporary conditions; and

3. Promptly notifying pilots of any condition affecting aeronautical use of the airport. Nothing
contained herein shall be construed to require that the airport be operated for
aeronautical use during temporary periods when snow, flood, or other climatic conditions
interfere with such operation and maintenance. Further, nothing herein shall be construed
as requiring the maintenance, repair, restoration, or replacement of any structure or
facility which is substantially damaged or destroyed due to an act of God or other
condition or circumstance beyond the control of the sponsor.

It will suitably operate and maintain noise compatibility program items that it owns or controls
upon which Federal funds have been expended.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 9of 19




3-12-0072-036-2025

20. Hazard Removal and Mitigation.

It will take appropriate action to assure that such terminal airspace as is required to protect
instrument and visual operations to the airport {(including established minimum flight altitudes} will
be adequately cleared and protected by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or
otherwise mitigating existing airport hazards and by preventing the establishment or creation of
future airport hazards.

21. Compatible Land Use.

it will take appropriate action, to the extent reasonable, including the adoption of zoning laws, to
restrict the use of land adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of the airport to activities and
purposes compatible with normal airport operations, including landing and takeoff of aircraft. in
addition, if the project is for noise compatibility program implementation, it will not cause or permit
any change in land use, within its jurisdiction, that will reduce its compatibility, with respect to the
airport, of the noise compatibility program measures upon which Federa! funds have been
expended.

22. Economic Nondiscrimination.

a. It will make the airport available as an airport for public use on reasonable terms and without
unjust discrimination to all types, kinds and classes of aeronautical activities, including
commercial aeronautical activities offering services to the public at the airport.

b. Inany agreement, contract, lease, or other arrangement under which a right or privilege at the
airport is granted to any person, firm, or corporation to conduct or to engage in any
aeronautical activity for furnishing services to the public at the airport, the sponsor will insert
and enforce provisions requiring the contractor to:

1. Furnish said services on a reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, basis to all users
thereof, and

2. Charge reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, prices for each unit or service,
provided that the contractor may be allowed to make reasonable and nondiscriminatory
discounts, rebates, or other similar types of price reductions to volume purchasers.

c. Each fixed-based operator at the airport shall be subject to the same rates, fees, rentals, and
other charges as are uniformly applicable to all other fixed-based operators making the same or
similar uses of such airport and utilizing the same or similar facilities.

d. Each air carrier using such airport shall have the right to service itself or to use any fixed-based
operator that is authorized or permitted by the airport to serve any air carrier at such airport.

e. Each air carrier using such airport (whether as a tenant, non-tenant, or subtenant of another air
carrier tenant) shall be subject to such nondiscriminatory and substantially comparable rules,
regulations, conditions, rates, fees, rentals, and other charges with respect to facilities directly
and substantially related to providing air transportation as are applicable to all such air carriers
which make similar use of such airport and utilize similar facilities, subject to reasonable
classifications such as tenants or non-tenants and signatory carriers and non-signatory carriers.
Classification or status as tenant or signatory shall not be unreasonably withheld by any airport
provided an air carrier assumes obligations substantially similar to those already imposed on air
carriers in such classification or status.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 10 of 19




3-12-0072-036-2025

f. It will not exercise or grant any right or privilege which operates to prevent any person, firm, or
corporation operating aircraft on the airport from performing any services on its own aircraft
with its own employees {including, but not limited to maintenance, repair, and fueling) that it
may choose to perform.

g. Inthe event the sponsor itself exercises any of the rights and privileges referred to in this
assurance, the services involved will be provided on the same conditions as would apply to the
furnishing of such services by commercial aeronautical service providers authorized by the
sponsor under these provisions.

h. The sponsor may establish such reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, conditions to be
met by all users of the airport as may be necessary for the safe and efficient operation of the
airport.

i. The sponsor may prohibit or limit any given type, kind or class of aeronautical use of the airport
if such action is necessary for the safe operation of the airport or necessary to serve the civil
aviation needs of the public.

23. Exclusive Rights.

It will permit no exclusive right for the use of the airport by any person providing, or intending to
provide, aeronautical services to the public. For purposes of this paragraph, the providing of the
services at an airport by a single fixed-based operator shall not be construed as an exclusive right if
both of the following apply:

a. It would be unreasonably costly, burdensome, or impractical for more than one fixed-based
operator to provide such services, and

b. If allowing more than one fixed-based operator to provide such services would require the
reduction of space leased pursuant to an existing agreement between such single fixed-based
operator and such airport. It further agrees that it will not, either directly or indirectly, grant or
permit any person, firm, or corporation, the exclusive right at the airport to conduct any
aeronautical activities, including, but not limited to charter flights, pilot training, aircraft rental
and sightseeing, aerial photography, crop dusting, aerial advertising and surveying, air carrier
operations, aircraft sales and services, sale of aviation petroleum products whether or not
conducted in conjunction with other aeronautical activity, repair and maintenance of aircraft,
sale of aircraft parts, and any other activities which because of their direct relationship to the
operation of aircraft can be regarded as an aeronautical activity, and that it will terminate any
exclusive right to conduct an aeronautical activity now existing at such an airport before the
grant of any assistance under Title 49, United States Code.

24, Fee and Rental Structure.

It will maintain a fee and rental structure for the facilities and services at the airport which will
make the airport as self-sustaining as possible under the circumstances existing at the particular
airport, taking into account such factors as the volume of traffic and economy of collection. No part
of the Federal share of an airport development, airport planning or noise compatibility project for
which a Grant is made under Title 49, United States Code, the Airport and Airway Improvement Act
of 1982, the Federal Airport Act or the Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970 shall be
included in the rate basis in establishing fees, rates, and charges for users of that airport.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 11 of 19




3-12-0072-036-2025

25, Airport Revenues.

a. All revenues generated by the airport and any local taxes on aviation fuel established after
December 30, 1987, will be expended by it for the capital or operating costs of the airport; the
focal airport system; or other local facilities which are owned or operated by the owner or
operator of the airport and which are directly and substantially related to the actual air
transportation of passengers or property; or for noise mitigation purposes on or off the airport.
The following exceptions apply to this paragraph:

1. If covenants or assurances in debt obligations issued before September 3, 1982, by the
owner or operator of the airport, or provisions enacted before September 3, 1982, in
governing statutes controlling the owner or operator's financing, provide for the use of the
revenues from any of the airport owner or operator's facilities, including the airport, to
support not only the airport but also the airport owner or operator's general debt
obligations or other facilities, then this limitation on the use of all revenues generated by
the airport {(and, in the case of a public airport, local taxes on aviation fuel) shall not apply.

2. If the Secretary approves the sale of a privately owned airport to a public sponsor and
provides funding for any portion of the public sponsor’s acquisition of land, this limitation
on the use of all revenues generated by the sale shall not apply to certain proceeds from
the sale. This is conditioned on repayment to the Secretary by the private owner of an
amount equal to the remaining unamortized portion {amortized over a 20-year period) of
any airport improvement grant made to the private owner for any purpose other than land
acquisition on or after October 1, 1996, plus an amount equal to the federal share of the
current fair market value of any land acquired with an airport improvement grant made to
that airport on or after October 1, 1996,

3. Certain revenue derived from or generated by mineral extraction, production, lease, or
other means at a general aviation airport (as defined at 49 U.5.C. 47102), if the FAA
determines the airport sponsor meets the requirements set forth in Section 813 of Public
Law 112-95.

b. As part of the annual audit required under the Single Audit Act of 1984, the sponsor will direct
that the audit will review, and the resulting audit report will provide an opinion concerning, the
use of airport revenue and taxes in paragraph (a), and indicating whether funds paid or
transferred to the owner or operator are paid or transferred in a manner consistent with Title
49, United States Code and any other applicable provision of law, including any regulation
promulgated by the Secretary or Administrator.

c. Any civil penalties or other sanctions will be imposed for violation of this assurance in
accordance with the provisions of 49 U.S.C. 47107.

26. Reports and Inspections.
It will:

a. submit to the Secretary such annual or special financial and operations reports as the Secretary
may reasonably request and make such reports available to the public; make available to the
public at reasonable times and places a report of the airport budget in a format prescribed by
the Secretary;

b. for airport development projects, make the airport and all airport records and documents
affecting the airport, including deeds, leases, operation and use agreements, regulations and

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 12 of 19




3-12-0072-036-2025

other instruments, available for inspection by any duly authorized agent of the Secretary upon
reasonable request;

c. for noise compatibility program projects, make records and documents relating to the project
and continued compliance with the terms, conditions, and assurances of this Grant Agreement
including deeds, leases, agreements, regulations, and other instruments, available for
inspection by any duly authorized agent of the Secretary upon reasonable request; and

d. inaformat and time prescribed by the Secretary, provide to the Secretary and make available
to the public following each of its fiscal years, an annual report listing in detail:

1. allamounts paid by the airport to any other unit of government and the purposes for
which each such payment was made; and

2. all services and property provided by the airport to other units of government and the
amount of compensation received for provision of each such service and property.

27. Use by Government Aircraft.

It will make available all of the facilities of the airport developed with Federal financial assistance
and all those usable for landing and takeoff of aircraft to the United States for use by Government
aircraft in common with other aircraft at all times without charge, except, if the use by Government
aircraft is substantial, charge may be made for a reasonable share, proportional to such use, for the
cost of operating and maintaining the facilities used. Unless otherwise determined by the Secretary,
or otherwise agreed to by the sponsor and the using agency, substantial use of an airport by
Government aircraft will be considered to exist when operations of such aircraft are in excess of
those which, in the opinion of the Secretary, would unduly interfere with use of the landing areas
by other authorized aircraft, or during any calendar month that:

a. Five (5) or more Government aircraft are regularly based at the airport or on land adjacent
thereto; or

b. The total number of movements (counting each landing as a movement) of Government
aircraft is 300 or more, or the gross accumulative weight of Government aircraft using the

airport {the total movement of Government aircraft multiplied by gross weights of such
aircraft) is in excess of five million pounds.

28. Land for Federal Facilities.

It will furnish without cost to the Federal Government for use in connection with any air traffic
control or air navigation activities, or weather-reporting and communication activities related to air
traffic control, any areas of land or water, or estate therein as the Secretary considers necessary or
desirable for construction, operation, and maintenance at Federal expense of space or facilities for
such purposes. Such areas or any portion thereof will be made available as provided herein within
four months after receipt of a written request from the Secretary.

29. Airport Layout Plan.

a. The airport owner or operator will maintain a current airport layout plan of the airport
showing:

1. boundaries of the airport and all proposed additions thereto, together with the boundaries

of all offsite areas owned or controlled by the sponsor for airport purposes and proposed
additions thereto;

momer e aswa S

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 13 of 19




3-12-0072-036-2025

2. the location and nature of all existing and proposed airport facilities and structures {such
as runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal buildings, hangars and roads), including all
proposed extensions and reductions of existing airport facilities;

3. the location of all existing and proposed non-aviation areas and of all existing
improvements thereon; and

4. all proposed and existing access points used to taxi aircraft across the airport’s property
boundary.

b. Subject to subsection 49 U.S.C. 47107(x), the Secretary will review and approve or disapprove
the plan and any revision or modification of the plan before the plan, revision, or modification
takes effect.

¢. The owner or operator will not make or allow any alteration in the airport or any of its facilities
unless the alteration—

1. is outside the scope of the Secretary’s review and approval authority as set forth in
subsection {x}; or

2. complies with the portions of the plan approved by the Secretary.

d. When the airport owner or operator makes a change or alteration in the airport or the
facilities which the Secretary determines adversely affects the safety, utility, or efficiency of
any federally owned, leased, or funded property on or off the airport and which is not in

conformity with the airport layout plan as approved by the Secretary, the owner or operator
will, if requested, by the Secretary:

1. eliminate such adverse effect in a manner approved by the Secretary; or

2. bear all costs of relocating such property or its replacement to a site acceptable to the
Secretary and of restoring the property or its replacement to the level of safety, utility,
efficiency, and cost of operation that existed before the alteration was made, except in
the case of a relocation or replacement of an existing airport facility due to a change in the
Secretary’s design standards beyond the control of the airport sponsor.

30. Civil Rights.

It will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that no person in the United States shall, on
the grounds of race, color, and national origin {including limited English proficiency) in accordance
with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.5.C. 2000d to 2000d-4}); creed and
sex per 49 U.S.C. 47123 and related requirements; age per the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and
related requirements; or disability per the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and related
requirements, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise

subjected to discrimination in any program and activity conducted with, or benefiting from, funds
received from this Grant.

a. Using the definitions of activity, facility, and program as found and defined in 49 CFR 21.23(b)
and 21.23(e), the sponsor will facilitate all programs, operate all facilities, or conduct all
programs in compliance with all non-discrimination requirements imposed by or pursuant to
these assurances.

b. Applicability

=T a e e

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 14 of 19




3-12-0072-036-2025

1. Programs and Activities. If the sponsor has received a grant (or other federal assistance)
for any of the sponsor’s program or activities, these requirements extend to all of the
sponsor’s programs and activities.

2. Facilities. Where it receives a grant or other federal financial assistance to construct,
expand, renovate, remodel, alter, or acquire a facility, or part of a facility, the assurance
extends to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection therewith,

3. Real Property. Where the sponsor receives a grant or other Federal financial assistance in
the form of, or for the acquisition of real property or an interest in real property, the
assurance will extend to rights to space on, over, or under such property.

c. Duration.

The sponsor agrees that it is obligated to this assurance for the period during which Federal
financial assistance is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is
to provide, or is in the form of, personal property, or real property, or interest therein, or
structures or improvements thereon, in which case the assurance obligates the sponsor, or any
transferee for the longer of the following periods:

1. Solong as the airport is used as an airport, or for another purpose involving the provision
of similar services or benefits; or

2. Solong as the sponsor retains ownership or possession of the property.

d. Required Solicitation Language. It will include the following notification in all solicitations for
bids, Requests For Proposals for work, or material under this Grant Agreement and in all
proposals for agreements, including airport concessions, regardless of funding source:

“The Sebring Airport Authority, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders or
offerors that it will affirmatively ensure that for any contract entered into pursuant to this
advertisement, all businesses will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in
response to this invitation and no businesses will be discriminated against on the grounds of
race, color, national origin {including limited English proficiency), creed, sex, age, or disability
in consideration for an award.”

e. Required Contract Provisions.

1. It willinsert the non-discrimination contract clauses requiring compliance with the acts and
regulations relative to non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the
Department of Transportation {DOT), and incorporating the acts and regulations into the
contracts by reference in every contract or agreement subject to the non-discrimination in
Federally-assisted programs of the DOT acts and regulations.

2. it will include a list of the pertinent non-discrimination authorities in every contract that is
subject to the non-discrimination acts and regulations.

3. It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses as a covenant running with the land, in
any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real property,
structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a sponsor.

4. [t will insert non-discrimination contract clauses prohibiting discrimination on the basis of
race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), creed, sex, age, or

o . RS, s e T

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 15 of 19




3-12-0072-036-2025

disability as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, license, permits,
or similar instruments entered into by the sponsor with other parties:

a. For the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the
applicable activity, project, or program; and

b. For the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property
acquired or improved under the applicable activity, project, or program.

f. It will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the
Secretary to give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees,
contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in interest, and other
participants of Federal financial assistance under such program will comply with all
requirements imposed or pursuant to the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.

g. It agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any
matter arising under the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.

31. Disposal of Land.

a. Forland purchased under a grant for airport noise compatibility purposes, including land
serving as a noise buffer, it will dispose of the land, when the land is no longer needed for such
purposes, at fair market value, at the earliest practicable time. That portion of the proceeds of
such disposition which is proportionate to the United States' share of acquisition of such land
will be, at the discretion of the Secretary, (1) reinvested in another project at the airport, or (2)
transferred to another eligible airport as prescribed by the Secretary. The Secretary shall give
preference to the following, in descending order:

1. Reinvestmentin an approved noise compatibility project;

2. Reinvestment in an approved project that is eligible for grant funding under 49 U.5.C.
47117(e};

3. Reinvestmentin an approved airport development project that is eligible for grant funding
under 49 U.S.C. 47114, 47115, or 47117,

4. Transfer to an eligible sponsor of another public airport to be reinvested in an approved
noise compatibility project at that airport; or

5. Payment to the Secretary for deposit in the Airport and Airway Trust Fund.

If land acquired under a grant for noise compatibility purposes is leased at fair market value
and consistent with noise buffering purposes, the lease will not be considered a disposal of the
land. Revenues derived from such a lease may be used for an approved airport development
project that would otherwise be eligible for grant funding or any permitted use of airport
revenue.

b. Forland purchased under a grant for airport development purposes (other than noise
compatibility), it will, when the land is no longer needed for airport purposes, dispose of such
land at fair market value or make available to the Secretary an amount equal to the United
States' proportionate share of the fair market value of the land. That portion of the proceeds of
such disposition which is proportionate to the United States' share of the cost of acquisition of
such land will, upon application to the Secretary, be reinvested or transferred to another
eligible airport as prescribed by the Secretary. The Secretary shall give preference to the
following, in descending order:

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 16 of 19




32.

33.

34,

35.

3-12-0072-036-2025

1. Reinvestmentin an approved noise compatibility project;

2. Reinvestment in an approved project that is eligible for grant funding under 49 U.S.C.
47117(e);

3. Reinvestment in an approved airport development project that is eligible for grant funding
under 49 U.S.C. 47114, 47115, or 47117;

4. Transfer to an eligible sponsor of another public airport to be reinvested in an approved
noise compatibility project at that airport; or

5. Payment to the Secretary for deposit in the Airport and Airway Trust Fund.

c. Land shall be considered to be needed for airport purposes under this assurance if (1) it may be
needed for aeronautical purposes (including runway protection zones) or serve as noise buffer
land, and (2) the revenue from interim uses of such land contributes to the financial
self-sufficiency of the airport. Further, land purchased with a grant received by an airport
operator or owner before December 31, 1987, will be considered to be needed for airport
purposes if the Secretary or Federal agency making such grant before December 31, 1987, was
notified by the operator or owner of the uses of such land, did not object to such use, and the
land continues to be used for that purpose, such use having commenced no later than
December 15, 1989.

d. Disposition of such land under (a), (b), or (c) will be subject to the retention or reservation of
any interest or right therein necessary to ensure that such land will only be used for purposes
which are compatible with noise levels associated with operation of the airport.

Engineering and Design Services.

If any phase of such project has received Federal funds under Chapter 471 subchapter 1 of Title
49 U.S.C,, it will award each contract, or sub-contract for program management, construction
management, planning studies, feasibility studies, architectural services, preliminary engineering,
design, engineering, surveying, mapping or related services in the same manner as a contract for
architectural and engineering services is negotiated under Chapter 11 of Title 40 U S.C., or an
equivalent qualifications-based requirement prescribed for or by the sponsor of the airport.

Foreign Market Restrictions.

It will not allow funds provided under this Grant to be used to fund any project which uses any
product or service of a foreign country during the period in which such foreign country is listed by
the United States Trade Representative as denying fair and equitable market opportunities for
products and suppliers of the United States in procurement and construction.

Policies, Standards, and Specifications.

It will carry out any project funded under an Airport Improvement Program Grant in accordance
with policies, standards, and specifications approved by the Secretary including, but not limited to,
current FAA Advisory Circulars (https://www.faa.gov/sites/faa.gov/files/aip-pfc-checklist 0.pdf) for
AIP projects as of March 14, 2025.

Relocation and Real Property Acquisition.

a. It will be guided in acquiring real property, to the greatest extent practicable under State law,
by the land acquisition policies in Subpart B of 49 CFR Part 24 and will pay or reimburse
property owners for necessary expenses as specified in Subpart B.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 17 of 19


https://www.faa.gov/sites/faa.gov/files/aip-pfc-checklist_O.pdf

3-12-0072-036-2025

b. It will provide a relocation assistance program offering the services described in Subpart C of 49
CFR Part 24 and fair and reasonable relocation payments and assistance to displaced persons as
required in Subpart D and E of 49 CFR Part 24.

c. It will make available within a reasonable period of time prior to displacement, comparable
replacement dwellings to displaced persons in accordance with Subpart E of 49 CFR Part 24.

36. Access By Intercity Buses.

The airport owner or operator will permit, to the maximum extent practicable, intercity buses or
other modes of transportation to have access to the airport; however, it has no obligation to fund
special facilities for intercity buses or for other modes of transportation.

37. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises.

The sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex, in the award
and performance of any DOT-assisted contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26, or in the award and
performance of any concession activity contract covered by 49 CFR Part 23. In addition, the sponsor
shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the administration of its
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise {DBE) and Airport Concessions Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise {ACDBE) programs or the requirements of 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26. The sponsor shall take
all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the
award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts, and/or concession contracts. The sponsor’s
DBE and ACDBE programs, as required by 49 CFR Parts 26 and 23, and as approved by DOT, are
incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of these programs is a legal obligation
and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification
to the sponsor of its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impose
sanctions as provided for under Parts 26 and 23 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for
enforcement under 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31
U.S.C. §§ 3801-3809, 3812).

38. Hangar Construction.

If the airport owner or operator and a person who owns an aircraft agree that a hangar is to be
constructed at the airport for the aircraft at the aircraft owner’s expense, the airport owner or
operator will grant to the aircraft owner for the hangar a long term lease that is subject to such
terms and conditions on the hangar as the airport owner or operator may impose.

39. Competitive Access.

a. |If the airport owner or operator of a medium or large hub airport (as defined in 49 U.S.C.
§ 47102) has been unable to accommodate one or more requests by an air carrier for access to
gates or other facilities at that airport in order to allow the air carrier to provide service to the
airport or to expand service at the airport, the airport owner or operator shall transmit a report
to the Secretary that:

1. Describes the requests;
2. Provides an explanation as to why the requests could not be accommodated; and

3. Provides a time frame within which, if any, the airport will be able to accommodate the
requests.

NEND PP N N e e e AT A e e E - e

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 18 of 19




b.

3-12-0072-036-2025

Such report shall be due on either February 1 or August 1 of each year if the airport has been
unable to accommodate the request(s} in the six-month period prior to the applicable due
date.

40.Access to Leaded Aviation Gasoline

a.

If 100-octane low lead aviation gasoline (100LL) was made available at an airport, at any time
during calendar year 2022, an airport owner or operator may not restrict or prohibit the sale of,
or self-fueling with 100-octane low lead aviation gasoline.

This requirement remains until the earlier of December 31, 2030, or the date on which the
airport or any retail fuel seller at the airport makes available an unleaded aviation gasoline that
has been authorized for use by the FAA as a replacement for 100-octane low lead aviation
gasoline for use in nearly all piston-engine aircraft and engine models; and meets either an
industry consensus standard or other standard that facilitates the safe use, production, and
distribution of such unleaded aviation gasoline, as determined appropriate by the FAA.

An airport owner or operator understands and agrees, that any violation of this grant assurance
is subject to civil penalties as provided for in 49 U.S.C. § 46301{a)(8).

LI 22 SN A Ar ERS TR T SR T

N

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 19 of 19




Sebring Airport Authority
Agenda Item Summary

Meeting Date: July 17, 2025

Presenter: Andrew Bennett

Agenda Item: Professional Engineering Services - Taxiway Alpha Rehabilitation —
AtkinsRealis - Design Contract

Background: Under the Authority’s general on-call consulting services agreement with
AtkinsRealis, staff commissioned the firm to provide engineering design services for the
rehabilitation of Taxiway Alpha. Design services and technical support include project
administration and coordination including attending design meetings during design
development phase and final design Phase, preliminary site review, design
development and final design documents and associated quality control, and bidding
assistance.

This design project is 95% funded by FAA Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (lIJA)
Airport Infrastructure Grant (AIG) funds and 5% from Florida Department of
Transportation grant funds.

Requested Motion: Move to approve and authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman
and Secretary or Assistant Secretary to execute contract in the amount of Three
Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty Dollars ($347,950.00).

Board Action:

Approved _X
Denied

Tabled



CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES
FOR THE TAXIWAY A REHAB DESIGN AT THE SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT
(ATKINSREALLIS)
DATED July 17, 2025

This Contract is between the SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a body politic and corporate of the
State of Florida (herein referred to as the “AUTHORITY”) and ATKINSREALLIS, a foreign profit
corporation (herein referred to as the “CONSULTANT”).

PREMISE.

The AUTHORITY and CONSULTANT entered into a Continuing Contract pursuant to the Consultants’
Competitive Negotiation Act on May 15, 2025. The parties wish to include the design services and
bidding assistance for the Taxiway A Rehabilitation project under the Contract. The services are more
particularly described in Attachment A and shall hereafter be referred to as “Services.”
CONSULTANT represents that it has examined the Project site thoroughly before entering this
agreement and is knowledgeable of all site conditions and issues relevant to the performance of the
Services. CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to an increase in price or time by virtue of any site
condition requirement.

ARTICLE 1 — PRICE

The AUTHORITY shall pay to CONSULTANT a lump sum amount for all fees and expenses of Three
Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand, Nine Hundred Fifty dollars ($347,950.00) as the total price for the
Services, including CONSULTANT’s direct expenses and expenses of subconsultants and
subcontractors. The price is based on the assumptions included on Attachment B. On or about the
first day of each month, CONSULTANT shall make application for payment based upon percentages
of completion of the Services completed up to the last day of the previous month, less the aggregate
of previous payments. AUTHORITY’s Executive Director and engineer must approve each payment
request. Each payment application shall also:

A. detail an explanation of Services completed by CONSULTANT and its subconsultants
and subcontractors requesting payment; and

B. include a certification that the amount of the invoice is accurate in relation to the
Services performed under any subcontractor contract.

ARTICLE 2 - COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION DATES

CONSULTANT hereby agrees to commence work under this contract when the Contractor begins
work and to continue work until the Project is complete.

ARTICLE 3 — PAYMENT OF INVOICES

Prior to payment, invoices received from the CONSULTANT pursuant to his Contract will be reviewed
and approved by the initiating department, indicating that services have been rendered in conformity
with the contract. The Authority shall pay CONSULTANT on a monthly invoiced basis for the
percentage of the work completed in each monthly reporting period. Upon CONSULTANT’s
application for payment, the Executive Director, or his designee, will make inspection and if he finds
the Services are acceptable under the contract, he will submit the payment request to the Finance
Director for payment.



ARTICLE 4 — TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE

The signing of this Contract by the CONSULTANT shall act as the execution of a truth-in-negotiation
certificate certifying that the wage rates and costs used to determine the compensation provided for
in this Contract is accurate, complete and current as of the date of this Contract.

The said rates and costs shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums should the AUTHORITY
determine that the rates and costs were increased due to the inaccurate, incomplete or noncurrent
wage rates or due to inaccurate representations of fees paid to outside consultants. The AUTHORITY
shall exercise its rights under this provision within one year following final payment.

ARTICLE 5 — TERMINATION

This Contract may be terminated by the CONSULTANT upon 30 days prior written notice to the
AUTHORITY in the event of substantial failure by the AUTHORITY to perform in accordance with the
terms of this Contract through no fault of the CONSULTANT. It may also be terminated by the
AUTHORITY with or without cause upon 30 days written notice to the CONSULTANT. Unless the
CONSULTANT is in breach of this Contract, the CONSULTANT shall be paid for services rendered
to the AUTHORITY through the date of termination. After receipt of a Termination Notice and except
as otherwise directed by the AUTHORITY, the CONSULTANT shall:

A. Stop work on the date and to the extent specified.

B. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the performance of
terminated work.

C. Transfer all work in process, completed work, and other material related to the
terminated work to the AUTHORITY.

D. Continue and complete all parts of the work that have not been terminated.

ARTICLE 6 - PERSONNEL

The CONSULTANT represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel
required to perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or
have any contractual relationship with the AUTHORITY.

All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the CONSULTANT or under its
supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if
required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services.

Any changes or substitutions in the CONSULTANT’s key personnel must be made known to the
AUTHORITY’s representative and written approval granted by the AUTHORITY before said change
or substitution can become effective.

ARTICLE 7 — KEY PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT

The CONSULTANT and the AUTHORITY agree to assign the following key personnel required to
perform the services necessary under this Contract:




ARTICLE 8 - SUBCONTRACTING

CONSULTANT reserves the right to select any subcontractors that may be necessary.

The AUTHORITY reserves the right to accept the use of a subcontractor or to reject the selection of
a particular subcontractor and to inspect all facilities of any subcontractors in order to make a
determination as to the capability of the subcontractor to perform properly under this Contract. The
CONSULTANT is encouraged to seek minority and women business enterprises for participation in
subcontracting opportunities.

If a subcontractor fails to perform or make progress, as required by this Contract, and it is necessary
to replace the subcontractor to complete the work in a timely fashion, the CONSULTANT shall
promptly do so, subject to acceptance of the new subcontractor by the AUTHORITY.

The Price includes all costs and fees of all subcontractors.

ARTICLE 9 — FEDERAL AND STATE TAX

The AUTHORITY is exempt from Federal Tax and State Tax for Tangible Personal Property. The
AUTHORITY will sign an exemption certificate submitted by the CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT
shall not be exempted from paying sales tax to its suppliers for materials to fulfill contractual
obligations with the AUTHORITY, nor shall the CONSULTANT be authorized to use the
AUTHORITY’s Tax Exemption Number in obtaining such materials.

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for payment of its own taxes.

ARTICLE 10 — AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The obligations of the AUTHORITY under this Contract are subject to the availability of funds lawfully
appropriated for its purpose by the Board of the Sebring Airport Authority and the federal government.

ARTICLE 11 — INSURANCE

A. The CONSULTANT shall not commence work under this Agreement until it has
obtained all insurance required under this paragraph and that insurance has been
approved by the AUTHORITY.

B. All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized or approved to do
business under the laws of the State of Florida. The CONSULTANT shall furnish
Certificates of Insurance to the AUTHORITY prior to the commencement of work under
this Contract. The Certificates shall clearly indicate that the CONSULTANT has
obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classifications required for strict
compliance with this Article. Compliance with the foregoing requirements shall not
relieve the CONSULTANT of its liability and obligations under this Contract.

C. The CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain professional liability or malpractice or
errors or omissions insurance with minimum limits of $2,000,000 per occurrence. If a
claims made form of coverage is provided, the retroactive date of coverage shall be no
later than the inception date of claims made coverage, unless the prior policy was
extended indefinitely to cover prior acts. Coverage shall be extended beyond the policy



year either by a supplemental extended reporting period (ERP) of as great duration as
available, and with no less coverage and with reinstated aggregate limits, or by
requiring that any new policy provide a retroactive date no later than the inception date
of claims made coverage.

D. The CONSULTANT shall maintain, during the life of this Contract, comprehensive
general liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence to protect the
CONSULTANT from claims of damages which may arise from any operations under
this Contract whether such operations be by the CONSULTANT or by anyone directly
employed by or contracting with the CONSULTANT. Coverage A shall include bodily
injury and property damage liability for premises, operations, independent contractors,
contractual liability covering this agreement, broad form property damage, and
property damage resulting from explosion, collapse or underground (x,c,u) exposures.
Coverage B shall include personal injury. The CONSULTANT is required to continue
to purchase products and completed operations coverage, at least to satisfy this
agreement for a minimum of two years beyond AUTHORITY’s acceptance of
renovation or construction projects.

E. The CONSULTANT shall maintain, during the life of this Contract, comprehensive
automobile liability insurance in the amounts of $500,000 combined single limit for
bodily injury and property damage to protect the CONSULTANT from claims for
damages for bodily injury, including wrongful death, as well as from claims from
property damage, which may arise from the ownership, use, or maintenance of owned
and non-owned automobiles, including rented automobiles whether such operations
be by the CONSULTANT or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the
CONSULTANT.

F. The CONSULTANT shall maintain, during the life of this Contract, adequate
Workman’s Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance in at least
such amounts as are required by law for all of its employees performing work for the
AUTHORITY pursuant to this Contract.

G. All insurance, other than Professional Liability and Workman’s Compensation, to be
maintained by the CONSULTANT shall specifically include the AUTHORITY as an
“Additional Insured.”

ARTICLE 12 - WARRANTY

The CONSULTANT warrants that all services shall be performed by skilled and competent personnel
to generally accepted professional standards.

ARTICLE 13 — INDEMNIFICATION

Subject to limitations of Florida law, the CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless the
AUTHORITY, and its officers and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including,
but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness,
or intentionally wrongful conduct of the CONSULTANT and other persons employed or utilized by the
CONSULTANT in the performance of the contract. CONSULTANT’s liability for indemnification shall
be limited to $2,000,000.00.

ARTICLE 14 — SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS




The AUTHORITY and the CONSULTANT each binds itself and its partners, successors, executors,
administrators and assigns to the other party of this Contract and to the partners, successors,
executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Contract.
Neither the AUTHORITY nor the CONSULTANT shall assign, convey or transfer its interest in the
Contract without the written consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any
personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of the AUTHORITY which may be a party hereto,
nor shall it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than the
AUTHORITY and the CONSULTANT.

ARTICLE 15 — REMEDIES

This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any and all legal action necessary
to enforce the Contract will be held in Highlands County, Florida, and the Contract will be interpreted
according to the laws of the State of Florida. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended
to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall
be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or by statute
or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall
preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

ARTICLE 16 — CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The CONSULTANT represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either
direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required
hereunder, consistent with the intent and declaration of policy stated in Section 112.311, Florida
Statutes. The CONSULTANT further represents that no person having any interest shall be employed
for said performance.

The CONSULTANT shall promptly notify the AUTHORITY in writing of potential conflicts of interest
for any prospective business associations, interest or other circumstances which may influence or
appear to influence the CONSULTANT’s judgment or quality of services being provided under a
specific Consultant Services Agreement. Such written notification shall identify the prospective
business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the CONSULTANT may
undertake and request an opinion of the AUTHORITY as to whether the association, interest or
circumstance would, in the opinion of the AUTHORITY, constitute a conflict of interest if entered into
by the CONSULTANT. The AUTHORITY agrees to notify the CONSULTANT of its opinion by certified
mail within 30 days of receipt of notification by the CONSULTANT. If, in the opinion of the
AUTHORITY, the prospective business association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a
conflict of interest by the CONSULTANT, the AUTHORITY shall so state in the notification, and it shall
be deemed not to be a conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the AUTHORITY by the
CONSULTANT under the terms of this Contract.

ARTICLE 17 — EXCUSABLE DELAYS

The CONSULTANT shall not be considered in default by reason of any failure in performance if such
failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the CONSULTANT’s control and without its fault or
negligence. Such causes may include, but are not limited to: acts of God, the AUTHORITY’s omissive
and commissive failures; natural or public health emergencies; labor disputes; freight embargoes; and
severe weather conditions. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for the timely completion of
subcontractor’s work.



Upon the CONSULTANT’s request, the AUTHORITY shall consider the facts and extent of any failure
to perform the work and, if the CONSULTANT’s failure to perform was due to causes reasonably
beyond the CONSULTANT’s control and without its fault or negligence, the Contract Schedule and/or
other affected provision of this Contract shall be revised accordingly, subject to the AUTHORITY’s
rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time.

ARTICLE 18 — ARREARS

The CONSULTANT shall not pledge the AUTHORITY’s credit or make the AUTHORITY a guarantor
of payment or surety for any contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien or any form of indebtedness.
The CONSULTANT further warrants and represents that it has no obligation or indebtedness that
would impair its ability to fulfill the terms of this Contract.

ARTICLE 19 —DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

The CONSULTANT shall deliver to the AUTHORITY, if requested, reproducibles and computer files
of all final documents and materials prepared by and for the AUTHORITY under this Contract.

Submission or distribution of documents to meet official regulatory requirements or for similar
purposes in connection with the Project or tasks assigned the CONSULTANT is not to be construed
as publication in derogation of any right therein reserved by the CONSULTANT.

If, however, the AUTHORITY uses for any other purpose the CONSULTANT’s documents, drawings,
and specifications, or reuses them without written verification or adaptation by the CONSULTANT for
the specific purpose intended, it will be at the AUTHORITY’s sole risk and without liability or legal
exposure to the CONSULTANT or to the CONSULTANT’s independent professional associates or
consultants. Any such verification or adaptation will entitle the CONSULTANT to further compensation
at rates to be agreed upon by the AUTHORITY and the CONSULTANT.

The CONSULTANT shall have the right to include representations of the design of the project(s)
including photographs of the exterior and interior, among the CONSULTANT’s promotional and
professional material. The CONSULTANT’s materials shall not include the AUTHORITY’s
confidential or proprietary information if the AUTHORITY advises the CONSULTANT of the specific
information considered to be confidential or proprietary.

ARTICLE 20 — INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT RELATIONSHIP

The CONSULTANT is, and shall be, in the performance of all work, services, and activities under this
Contract an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, or servant of the AUTHORITY. All
persons engaged in any of the work or services performed pursuant to this Contract shall at all times,
and in all places, be subject to the CONSULTANT’s sole direction, supervision, and control. The
CONSULTANT shall exercise control over the means and manner in which it and its employees
perform the work, and in all respects the CONSULTANT’s relationship and the relationship of its
employees to the AUTHORITY shall be that of an independent contractor and not as employees or
agents of the AUTHORITY.

The CONSULTANT does not have the power or authority to bind the AUTHORITY in any promise,
agreement or representation other than specifically provided for in this Contract or amendment
thereto.

ARTICLE 21 — CONTINGENT FEES




The CONSULTANT warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than
a bona fide employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Contract and that
it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a
bona fide employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or
any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract.

ARTICLE 22 — ACCESS AND AUDITS

The CONSULTANT shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, expenses, and costs
incurred in performing work pursuant to this Contract for at least three (3) years after completion of
this Contract. The AUTHORITY shall have access to such books, records, and documents as required
in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during normal business hours, at the
AUTHORITY’s cost, upon five (5) days written notice. Consultant shall also permit review of all records
pertaining to this project that fall within the purview of Florida Statute 119.07.

ARTICLE 23 — NONDISCRIMINATION

The CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee employed in the performance of this
contract, or against any applicant for employment because of age, race, sec, creed, color, handicap,
national origin, or marital status.

ARTICLE 24 — HARASSMENT-FREE WORKPLACE

The CONSULTANT shall provide a harassment-free workplace, with any allegation of harassment
given priority attention and action by management. The CONSULTANT shall insert a provision in
accordance with this Article in all subcontracts for services in relation to this contract.

ARTICLE 25 — PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a
public entity crime may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or
services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity
for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or
replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a
contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not
transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in s. 287.017 for
CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted
vendor list.

ARTICLE 26 — DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

CONSULTANT acknowledges that The Authority is a drug-free work place. CONSULTANT
covenants that all employees of CONSULTANT working upon The Authority property shall be subject
to implementation of all possible provisions to maintain a drug-free environment and that
CONSULTANT will adhere to the provisions of Florida Statute 287.087.

ARTICLE 27 — COMPLIANCE WITH DAVIS-BACON ACT REQUIREMENTS

The CONSULTANT hereby agrees, where required on Federal Grant assisted projects, to comply
with applicable portions of the Davis-Bacon and related acts which regulate employee wages and
benefits. The CONSULTANT further acknowledges the possible necessity for amending the Contract


http://www.flsenate.gov/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=287.133&URL=CH0287/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=287.133&URL=Ch0287/Sec017.HTM

in order to comply with Federal guidelines applicable to Grant Assisted projects which may be
undertaken by the AUTHORITY.

ARTICLE 28 — SURVIVAL

All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein, or otherwise made in writing
by any party pursuant hereto, including but not limited to any representations made herein relating to
disclosure or ownership or documents, shall survive the execution and delivery of this Contract and
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

ARTICLE 29 — ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT

The AUTHORITY and the CONSULTANT agree that this Contract sets forth the entire agreement
between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein.
None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Contract may be added to, modified,
superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto.

ARTICLE 30 — ENFORCEMENT COSTS

In any action brought by either party for the interpretation or enforcement of the obligations of the
other party, including the establishment of a right to indemnification, the prevailing party shall be
entitled to recover from the losing party all reasonable attorney’s fees, paralegal fees, court and other
costs, even if not taxable as court costs, whether incurred before or at trial, on appeal, in bankruptcy
or in post judgment collections.

ARTICLE 31 — AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE

The CONSULTANT hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all
licenses and approvals required to conduct its business, that it will at all times conduct its business
activities in a reputable manner, and that it will maintain for duration of this Contract a current
certificate of registration required under Chapter 471, Florida Statutes.

ARTICLE 32 - SEVERABILITY

If any term or provision of this Contract, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances
shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Contract, or the application
of such term or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid
or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Contract shall be
deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE 33 — AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATION

No amendments and/or modifications of this Contract shall be valid unless in writing and signed by
each of the parties.

The AUTHORITY reserves the right to make changes in the scope of work, including alterations,
reductions therein or additions thereto. Upon receipt by the CONSULTANT of the AUTHORITY’s
notification of a contemplated change, the CONSULTANT shall, if requested by AUTHORITY: (1)
provide an estimate for the increase or decrease in cost due to the contemplated change, (2) notify
the AUTHORITY of any estimated change in the completion date, and (3) advise the AUTHORITY in



writing if the contemplated change shall effect the CONSULTANT’s ability to meet the completion
dates or schedules of this Contract.

If the AUTHORITY so instructs in writing, the CONSULTANT shall suspend work on the portion of the
work affected by a contemplated change, pending the AUTHORITY’s decision to proceed with the
change.

If the AUTHORITY elects to make the change, the AUTHORITY shall issue a Contract Amendment
or Change Order and the CONSULTANT shall not commence work on any such change until such
written amendment or change order has been issued and signed by each of the parties.

ARTICLE 34 — AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Provided such information is reasonably required by the CONSULTANT to perform its services under
this Contract, the AUTHORITY shall:

1. Provide full information regarding requirements for the projects and tasks.

2. Designate a representative authorized to act on the AUTHORITY’s behalf with respect
to the projects or tasks. The AUTHORITY or that authorized representative shall render
decisions in a timely manner pertaining to documents submitted by the CONSULTANT
in order to avoid unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the
CONSULTANT’s services.

3. Furnish to the extent in its possession, surveys describing available information on
utility locations, written legal descriptions of the sites, easements, encroachments,
zoning, deed restrictions, and other available information to assist the CONSULTANT
in developing proper scopes of service and fulfilling project or task objectives.

4. Assist in gaining access to and make all provisions for access required for the
CONSULTANT to enter upon public and private property as required for the
CONSULTANT to perform services under this Contract.

5. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other
documents presented by the CONSULTANT and render decisions and comments
regarding them within a reasonable time so as not to delay the services of the
CONSULTANT.

ARTICLE 35 — NOTICE

All notices required in this Contract shall be sent certified mail, return receipt requested, and shall be
mailed to:

AUTHORITY: CONSULTANT:

Executive Director Heather Meyer, Project Manager - Aviation
Sebring Airport Authority AtkinsRealis Construction (USA), INC.

128 Authority Lane 1514 Broadway, Suite 202

Sebring, FL 33870 Fort Myers, FL 33901



ARTICLE 36 — LAWS AND REGULATIONS

CONSULTANT shall comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, orders and regulations relating to
performance of the Services and the protection of persons and property.

ARTICLE 37 —CHANGE ORDERS

No changes in the Services covered by this contract shall be made without prior written approval of the
Authority. Charges or credits for Services on the approved changes shall be as mutually
determined by the parties. Without invalidating this contract, the AUTHORITY may order extra
Services or make changes by altering, adding to or deducting from the Services with the contract price
being adjusted accordingly. All extra Services shall be paid for at the price agreed to between the
parties and no claims for any extras shall be allowed unless order in writing by the AUTHORITY with the
price stated in such order.

ARTICLE 38 — ASSIGNMENT

CONSULTANT shall not assign this contract, in whole or in part, or any monies due or to become due
hereunder, without the written consent of The Authority.

ARTICLE 39 — PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED

In addition to the notices, requirements and certifications included in the attached “Legal Provisions”
document, each and every term of “Legal Provisions” is incorporated herein by reference as if fully
included herein. Each and every other provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this
document shall be deemed to be inserted herein and the contract shall be read and enforced as though
it were included, and if, through mistake or otherwise, any such provision is not inserted, or is not
correctly inserted, then upon application of either party, the contract shall forthwith be physically
amended to make such insertion or correction.

ARTICLE 40 — PUBLIC RECORDS

CONSULTANT is required to keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily
would be required by SAA in order to perform the service sought herein. CONSULTANT is
required to provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions
that SAA would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in
Ch. 119.07 et seq., Fla. Stat. or as otherwise provided by law. CONSULTANT must ensure
that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure
requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law and must meet all requirements for
retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to SAA all public records in possession of the
contractor upon termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public records that are
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records
stored electronically must be provided to SAA in a format that is compatible with the

information technology systems of the public agency. IF CONSULTANT HAS
QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA
STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT MIKE
WILLINGHAM, THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS at 863-314-1300,

mike@sebring-airport.com or 128 AUTHORITY LANE, SEBRING, FL 33870.


mailto:mike@sebring-airport.com

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals

effective the date first written above.

WITNESSES:

Chn O 0iue

PrlntedUame Jami-Olive

Ca 3 o (5
Printed Name: _Andcerd Do naeW

WITNESSES:
Printed Name: " KEV e pMECACy o

Wt Jocrs

/Printed Name:

SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a
body politic and corporate of the State of

SN W e

IZ/StanIey Wells, as its Chair or
(1 D. Craig Johnson, as its Vice Chair

AtteSt W/ ‘ulHu,,

#~Carl Cool, as its Sécretary or ' \RPORT ./ 4
1 Jason Dunkel, as its Asst. SecretaTb "“ ----- (/ &
5 . @) ':
(Corporate Seal) Ia: Ao
S SEAL ==

\F‘

CONSULTANT: ATKINSREALIS USA, .. |
INC., a foreign profit corporation o

W
KN l"luu\\“
M \

Darin R. Larson, as its Vice President




ATKINSREALIS SCOPE OF WORK
TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION
SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT

ATTACHMENT A
SCOPE OF WORK

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES
FOR
TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION
AT
SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT
SEBRING, FLORIDA
FEBRUARY 2025

The lump sum fees to be paid to the ENGINEER under this contract (Attachment C) are based
upon the Scope of Work detailed herein and the list of Basic Assumptions stipulated in Attachment
B.

I. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT SCOPE

The Sebring Airport Authority (OWNER) has selected AtkinsRéalis (CONSULTANT) as the design
engineer for the Taxiway A Rehabilitation Project. The scope of this project will consist of providing
professional design services and technical support during the design phase. Design services and
technical support include project administration and coordination including attending design
meetings during Design Development Phase and Final Design Phase, preliminary site review,
Design Development and Final Design documents and associated Quality Control, and bidding
assistance. Airfield design will be completed per relevant FAA and FDOT standards.

OWNER Sebring Airport Authority (SAA)
CONSULTANT/ENGINEER AtkinsRéalis

FAA Federal Aviation Administration

FDOT Florida Department of Transportation (District 1)

lll. SCOPE

The existing Taxiway A at Sebring International Raceway was initially constructed in 2001. Regular
maintenance was completed on the taxiway, including patching in 2019. The latest airfield
pavement program was completed in 2024 by the Florida Department of Transportation and the
report indicated the PCl was between 67 and 81. The southern part of the taxiway has the lower
indexes. Based on the PCI and the taxiway reaching its 20-year useful life, there is a need to
rehabilitate the taxiway in the form of a mill and overlay. See Figure 1 — FDOT Pavement Index
below.

6205 (70) |
e
i ""i(j-m (81) 145 (74) \/1‘_15(74;‘/150(211)___ J /5105(811
AN z T

5110 (67) \
\ 1145 (76)
‘\\_ / (76) 130 (93]
T 7 ) ‘

105 (74) e — ) o \ ‘ ~ | 155 (78)
. o
| ) 115 (76) 135 (100} 150 (81 L
\\_ ,\120 ) (76) (100 )

125 (90) 160 (88)

Figure 1 - FDOT Pavement Index

Page 1 of 8 FEBRUARY 2025



ATKINSREALIS SCOPE OF WORK
TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION
SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT

The FDOT Distress Report shows the primary pavement distresses include weathering and
raveling. These types of distress do not indicate any underlying issues with the subbase or base
course, which makes the taxiway a good candidate for a mill and overlay. Drainage pipe
replacement projects have been completed creating splices into the original pavement, however
these projects have not shown any additional issues with the pavement or base material.

Taxiway A Mill and Overlay

Based on FAA rehabilitation guidance and existing pavement design, AtkinsRéalis is proposing a
variable depth mill and 2” overlay of the entire Taxiway A. Taxiway Connectors A1 and A4 will be
milled to the runway hold position markings; runway hold position markings will be re-marked.
Based on the future ALP design aircraft, a Gulfstream V, the current taxiway geometry is sufficient
to accommodate the design aircraft, therefore, no additional geometric updates will be completed
on the taxiways or connectors. Pavement Markings will be brought up to FAA AC150/5300-13B
standard radii. The anticipated area to be milled and resurfaced is 34,158 SY. The limits of mill and
overlay for Taxiway A are shown in red in Figure 2 — Project Limits, below.

Taxiway A2 Connector Reconstruction

At the request of the FAA ADO, the A2 taxiway connector will be realigned to be 90 degrees to the
runway for safety reasons. The connector will be designed based on FAA AC150/5370-13B Design
Guidelines. The pavement design will be completed using FAARFIELD 2.0 based on a 20-year
useable life and proposed future aircraft forecasts. Borings will be taken to verify existing soils. The
pavement design is anticipated as 4” asphalt on 6” of aggregate base on 12" of stabilized subgrade.
The limits of the realignment are shown in green in Figure 2 — Project Limits, below.

OVERALL PROJECT LIMITS

Figure 2 - Project Limits

Taxiway Run-Up Area Mill and Overlay

The existing run-up areas located on each end of Runway 1-19, shown in blue in Figure 2, have
met their usable pavement life based on the FDOT pavement report. AtkinsRéalis is proposing a 2”
mill and overlay of the run-up area with no additional geometric updates. The existing geometry
allows for the operation of ADG I/TDG 1A and 1B aircraft, which meets the expected aircraft traffic
using the run-up areas. Taxiway edge markings and centerline markings will be placed based on
FAA AC150/5370-13B design standards. The run-up area on the Runway 1 end will accommodate
a single centerline, while the run-up area on the Runway 19 end will allow for two centerlines while
maintaining appropriate wingtip clearance.

Page 2 of 8 FEBRUARY 2025



ATKINSREALIS SCOPE OF WORK
TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION
SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT

1

I RUN—UP MILL & OVERLAY
AREA: 3,293 SYD

RUNWAY RUN-UP AREA (RWY 1) RUNWAY RUN-UP AREA (RWY 19)

Airfield Electrical Upgrades

The existing taxiway edge lighting, taxiway signage, and runway signage is intended to be replaced
with new primary wiring, conduit raceways, light bases (basecans), and LED lighting. Fixtures or
raceways deemed by the airport to be suitable for re-use will be noted for re-use within the Contract
Documents. Restoration of the project site will be completed at the end of the project.

Task 1: Project Administration and Coordination
AtkinsRéalis will manage the overall design effort. The following is included:
- Project Management
o Data Collection
o FAA & FDOT Coordination
o Storage of all necessary project related documentation
o FAA & FDOT Grant Documentation Assistance
- Project Schedule Management and Quality Control
- Coordination Meetings Between AtkinsRéalis, SAA, and Airport Stakeholders
o Includes Creating Meeting Agenda and Meeting Minutes

Task 2: Preliminary Site Review

AtkinsRéalis will review existing site and pavement conditions as well as electrical layouts for
taxiway edge lights and signage to prepare for Design Development Phase. Topographic survey will
be completed by AtkinsRéalis and SUE survey will be completed by a subconsultant. Pavement
cores will be taken along the length of the taxiway to verify pavement depths. Boring will be
completed near the relocated Taxiway A connector to verify exiting soil conditions and determine
pavement design. The survey and geotechnical reports will be reviewed and implemented into the
design. One (1) site visit will be completed to verify existing plans, and address comments by the
owner and stakeholders.

AtkinsRéalis anticipates eight (8) weeks of preliminary site review. Within this AtkinsRéalis expects
four (4) weeks to complete survey and four (4) weeks to complete geotechnical services.

Task 3: CATEX/Burrowing Owl Survey and Permitting

AtkinsRéalis will complete the necessary FAA CATEX documentation for this project and will assist
with coordination between the FAA and Airport regarding this effort. By the end of the
Developmental Design Phase, AtkinsRéalis will also complete a burrowing owl survey to verify
nesting within the project limits. Permitting documentation associated with the burrowing owls
surveying will be completed by AtkinsRéalis and provided to the Airport. This work is anticipated to
take place over a six (6) week period.

Page 3 of 8 FEBRUARY 2025



ATKINSREALIS SCOPE OF WORK
TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION
SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT

Task 4: Design Development Phase (60% Phase)

The Design Development Phase will provide Sebring Regional Airport a preliminary design for the
Taxiway A Rehabilitation. The intent of the design development phase is to provide the airport an
initial estimate of the project as well as initial design of the project. AtkinsRéalis will attend two (2)
Design Development meetings for the owner and stakeholder comments.

AtkinsRéalis will provide the airport with the following documentation at the Design Development
Phase:

- Preliminary Technical Specifications
- Design Development Plan Production:
o Cover Sheet
General Notes
Safety and Security Notes
Preliminary Site Access and Layout Sheet
Preliminary Phasing Sheets
Preliminary Part 77 Sheet
Existing Conditions Sheets
Geometry Sheets
Typical Pavement Detail Sheets
Electrical Layout Sheets
o Electrical Circuit Layout Sheets
- Design Development Engineers Design Report
- Design Development Engineers Estimate
- Design Development CSPP

O O O O O O O OO0

AtkinsRéalis will perform a Quality Control Program as part of this task as well as submit plans, and
engineers report to the ADO for review.

AtkinsRéalis anticipates eight (8) weeks for design development. Within the eight weeks,
AtkinsReéalis anticipates two (2) weeks for QC Review. AtkinsRéalis anticipates one (1) week for
airport to review and respond after submittal. AtkinsRéalis anticipates one (1) meeting for a page
turn with the owner.

AtkinsRéalis will submit the Part 77 Notice of Proposed Construction, CSPP, plans and technical
specifications to the FAA for review. FAA document review and response is approx. 45 days but
may be up to 90 days.

Task 5: Final Design Phase (100%)

The Final Design Phase will provide Sebring Regional Airport a design for the Taxiway A
Rehabilitation. The intent of the final design is to provide a full plan set, final technical specifications,
and final estimate of the project. AtkinsRéalis will attend two (2) Final Design meetings for owner
and stakeholder comments.

AtkinsRéalis will provide the airport with the following documentation at the Final Design Stage:

- Final FAA Technical Specifications
- Final Design Plan Production:
o Cover Sheet
o Sheet Index and Summary of Quantity Sheet

Page 4 of 8 FEBRUARY 2025



ATKINSREALIS

SCOPE OF WORK
TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION
SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT

O 0O O OO OO OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0oOOo

@)

General Notes Sheet

Safety and Security Notes Sheet
Final Site Layout and Access Sheet
Final Phasing Sheets

Final Part 77 Sheet

Survey Control Plan Sheet

Existing Conditions Sheets
Geometry Sheets

Typical Pavement Detail Sheets
Grading Sheets

Elevation Sheets

Erosion Control Sheets

Stormwater Pollution and Prevention Plan (SWPPP) Sheet
Electrical Layout Sheets

Electrical Circuit Layout Sheets

- Final Design Engineers Design Report
- Final Design Engineers Estimate
- Contractor Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP)

AtkinsReéalis anticipates twelve (12) weeks for final design/FAA review and responses and two (2)
weeks for QC Review. AtkinsRéalis anticipates two (2) weeks for airport to review and response.
AtkinsRéalis anticipates one (1) meeting for a page turn with owner 1 week after submission to the

airport.

Task 6: Issued for Bid Documents
AtkinsRéalis will provide a signed and sealed set of issued for bid documents including the

following:

- Final FAA Technical Specifications
- Final Design Plan Production:

@)

O OO OO OO OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0O OO O

@)

Cover Sheet

Sheet Index and Summary of Quantity Sheet
General Notes Sheet

Safety and Security Notes Sheet

Final Site Layout and Access Sheet

Final Phasing Sheets

Final Part 77 Sheet

Survey Control Plan Sheet

Existing Conditions Sheets

Geometry Sheets

Typical Pavement Detail Sheets

Grading Sheets

Elevation Sheets

Erosion Control Sheets

Stormwater Pollution and Prevention Plan (SWPPP) Sheet
Pavement Marking Sheets

Electrical Layout Sheets

Electrical Circuit Layout Sheets

- Final Design Engineers Design Report
- Final CSPP

Page 5 of 8

FEBRUARY 2025



ATKINSREALIS SCOPE OF WORK
TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION
SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT

- Front End SAA Documents

AtkinsRéalis will perform a Quality Control Program as part of this task. Templates for Front End
SAA Documents will be provided by the airport and completed per project specs by AtkinsRéalis.
The Airport will be expected to provide bidding time, date, and location to be added.

AtkinsRéalis anticipates four (4) weeks for Final Construction Documents.

Task 7: Bidding Assistance

AtkinsReéalis will provide answers to questions regarding the final construction plans prior to
construction bid closing. Whenever original contract documents are changed, AtkinsRéalis will
submit a set of signed and sealed plans with the revised reproducible and electronic files in
AutoCAD and .pdffiles. After bids have been received, AtkinsRéalis will prepare a bid tab using the
SAA preferred format and using the final pay items and quantities. AtkinsRéalis will also provide a
bid recommendation based on bids received.

AtkinsRéalis anticipates four (4) weeks to complete project bidding.
Anticipated Project Schedule

Key Milestones

Notice to Proceed (NTP) TBD

Preliminary Site Review 8 Weeks after NTP

Developmental Design Phase (60% Phase) 14 Weeks after NTP

- Submittal of Plans/Specs to FAA for

review
- Submittal of CSPP/7460 to FAA for
Review
Final Design Phase 26 Weeks after NTP
Issued for Bid Documents 30 Weeks after NTP
Bidding Assistance TBD

Page 6 of 8 FEBRUARY 2025




ATKINSREALIS SCOPE OF WORK

TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION
SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT

ATTACHMENT B

BASIC ASSUMPTIONS

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES
FOR
TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION
AT
SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT
SEBRING, FLORIDA
FEBRUARY 2025

The following is a list of assumptions that are made with respect to the work efforts required for this
project and on which the fee proposal is based. These assumptions shall be considered general
conditions to this Contract. Any change is considered a change in scope and would be justification
for consideration of a revision to the fee.

The following is a list of assumptions forming the basis of the design cost proposal included herein,
as Attachment B, for providing the services detailed in the Scope of Services for this project. Any
modification and/or revision to these basic assumptions will constitute a change in the project scope
and may result in a revision to the design cost proposal.

1.

The fees for the provision of design phase services are based a duration of Thirty (30)
weeks and an assumed level of staff effort as described herein. In the event the design
duration or level of effort required of the designer is greater than estimated and specified
herein, the designer shall be entitled to additional compensation, and the terms of this
agreement shall be re-negotiated and amended as needed.

AtkinsRéalis anticipates one (1) site visit and two (2) meetings in Design Development and
Final Design Phases, each, and one (1) meeting for bidding assistance. In the event
additional meetings are needed, the designer shall be entitled to additional compensation,
and the terms of this agreement shall be re-negotiated and amended as needed.

Documents will be created in the designer’s standard format.
All drawings will be created in black and white AutoCAD format using English units.

All fees associated with the county design reviews and permitting will be the responsibility of
the Owner and shall be paid directly to the county. The designer shall not be responsible for
any coordination of fee payment.

The designer will design this project based on the best available information at the time of
design and shall not be responsible for changes based on differing exiting conditions
information.

This scope of services does not include preparation for or testimony during any mediation or
litigation which might arise from disputes between the Owner and Contractor. Such
preparation for or testimony during litigation or mediation, should it be necessary, shall be
considered outside the scope of this contract.

Page 7 of 8 FEBRUARY 2025



ATKINSREALIS SCOPE OF WORK

TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION
SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT

10.

11.

12.

Itis anticipated that all FAA reviews will take a minimum of 45 days up to 90 days for review
of all documents submitted to them.

Existing pavement geometry and paint markings were built to a previous design standard for
fillet geometry. No geometric modification will occur under this project beyond the relocated
Taxiway A connector which will be designed to FAA AC 150/5300-13B.

It is assumed that the electrical vault building and CCRs powering the airfield circuits are
operational without modifications required to the vault building, CCRs, or airfield lighting
control system. Itis further assumed the vault has capacity for the project and net decrease
in load is expected with the upgrades to LED fixture type. It is assumed that runway guard
lights are not used at SEF and not include in the project. If RGLs are existing, they will be
reused.

Any other service not specifically delineated within this scope is not included and would only
be performed at Client’s request and approved fee.

An Environmental Assessment (EA) is not included as part of this scope of work. If the FAA

determines that an EA is necessary for this project, AtkinsRéalis can provide that service for
an additional fee.

END OF ATTACHMENT B

Page 8 of 8 FEBRUARY 2025



Sebring Airport Authority
Agenda Item Summary

Meeting Date: July 17, 2025

Presenter: Andrew Bennett

Agenda Item: Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Fiscal Year 2025 — Grant
Award - Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Airport
Infrastructure Grant (AlG) Project No. 3-12-0072-037-2025.

Background: The Airport Authority management team has requested
$540,222.00 in FAA Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Airport Infrastructure
Grant (AIG) funding, along with $301,828.00 from the Florida Department of
Transportation (FDOT). The fuel farm improvements project will include the installation,
testing, and approval of a new 12,000-gallon Jet-A tank and a new 10,000-gallon UL94
fuel tank. The UL94 tank is a replacement for the current 1,000 UL94 fuel tank. In
addition to the tank, required piping/hosing for delivery and dispensing of fuel will be
installed along with necessary electrical hookup to the existing panel box for the fuel
pump, fuel tank monitoring system, associated alarm system, and ladder/catwalk
assembly. FDOT Public Transportation Grant Agreement 455926-1-94-01 has been
received for the requested amount of $301,828.00 and approved by the board on April
17, 2025.

Recommended Action: Approve and ratify the execution and delivery of FAA
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Airport Infrastructure Grant (AlG) award of
$540,222.00; and all actions taken by Airport Staff with respect thereto.

Board Action:

Approved X

Denied

Tabled



3-12-0072-037-2025

U.S. Department Orlando Airports

“ of Transportation District Office:
( Federal Aviation 8427 South Park
U Administration Circle, Suite 524

Orlando, FL 32819

June 24, 2025

Mike Willingham
Executive Director
Sebring Airport Authority
128 Authority Lane
Sebring, FL 32870

Dear Mr. Willingham:

The Grant Offer for Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Airport Infrastructure Grant (AlG)
Project No. 3-12-0072-037-2025 at Sebring Regional Airport is attached for execution. This letter
outlines the steps you must take to properly enter into this agreement and provides other useful
information. Please read the conditions, special conditions, and assurances that comprise the grant offer
carefully.

You may not make any modification to the text, terms or conditions of the grant offer.

Steps You Must Take to Enter Into Agreement.
To properly enter into this agreement, you must do the following:

1. The governing body must give authority to execute the grant to the individual(s} signing the
grant, i.e., the person signing the document must be the sponsor’s authorized representative(s)
(hereinafter “authorized representative”).

2. The authorized representative must execute the grant by adding their electronic signature to
the appropriate certificate at the end of the agreement.

3. Once the authorized representative has electronically signed the grant, the sponsor’s attorney(s)
will automatically receive an email notification.

4. On the same day or after the authorized representative has signed the grant, the sponsor’s
attorney(s) will add their electronic signature to the appropriate certificate at the end of the
agreement.

5. |If there are co-sponsors, the authorized representative(s) and sponsor’s attorney(s) must follow
the above procedures to fully execute the grant and finalize the process. Signatures must be
obtained and finalized no later than July 14, 2025.

6. The fully executed grant will then be automatically sent to all parties as an email attachment.

Payment. Subject to the requirements in 2 CFR § 200.305 (Federal Payment), each payment request for
reimbursement under this grant must be made electronically via the Delphi elnvoicing System. Please
see the attached Grant Agreement for more information regarding the use of this System.

Project Timing. The terms and conditions of this agreement require you to complete the project without
undue delay and no later than the Period of Performance end date (1,460 days from the grant execution




3-12-0072-037-2025

date). We will be monitoring your progress to ensure proper stewardship of these Federal funds. We
expect you to submit payment requests for reimbursement of allowable incurred project expenses
consistent with project progress. Your grant may be placed in “inactive” status if you do not make draws
on a regular basis, which will affect your ability to receive future grant offers. Costs incurred after the
Period of Performance ends are generally not allowable and will be rejected unless authorized by the
FAA in advance.

Reporting. Until the grant is completed and closed, you are responsible for submitting formal reports as
follows:

» For all grants, you must submit by December 31% of each year this grant is open:
1. Asigned/dated SF-270 (Request for Advance or Reimbursement for non-construction
projects) or SF-271 or equivalent (Outlay Report and Request for Reimbursement for
Construction Programs), and

2. An SF-425 (Federal Financial Report).

» For non-construction projects, you must submit FAA Form 5100-140, Performance Report within
30 days of the end of the Federal fiscal year.

» For construction projects, you must submit FAA Form 5370-1, Construction Progress and
Inspection Report, within 30 days of the end of each Federal fiscal quarter.

Audit Requirements. As a condition of receiving Federal assistance under this award, you must comply
with audit requirements as established under 2 CFR Part 200. Subpart F requires non-Federal entities
that expend $1,000,000 or more in Federal awards to conduct a single or program specific audit for that
year. Note that this includes Federal expenditures made under other Federal-assistance programs.
Please take appropriate and necessary action to ensure your organization will comply with applicable
audit requirements and standards.

Closeout. Once the project(s) is completed and all costs are determined, we ask that you work with your
FAA contact indicated below to close the project without delay and submit the necessary final closeout
documentation as required by your Region/Airports District Office.

FAA Contact Information. William Farris, (407) 487-7232, bill.farris@faa.gov is the assigned program
manager for this grant and is readily available to assist you and your designated representative with the
requirements stated herein.

We sincerely value your cooperation in these efforts and look forward to working with you to complete
this important project.

Sincerely,
%/ﬁm

Juan C. Brown
Manager


mailto:bill.farris@faa.gov

3-12-0072-037-2025

e

U.S. Department
of Transportation
Federal Aviation
Administration

FY 2025 AIRPORT INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT
GRANT AGREEMENT
Part | - Offer

Federal Award Offer Date June 24, 2025

Airport/Planning Area Sebring Regional Airport

Airport Infrastructure Grant

3-12-0072-037-2025
Number

Unique Entity Identifier HYANYEABN1Z4

TO: Sebring Airport Authority

{herein called the "Sponsor") (For Co-Sponsars, list all Co-Sponsor names. The word "Sponsor" in this Grant Agreement also
applies to a Co-Sponsor.)

FROM: The United States of America {acting through the Federal Aviation Administration, herein
called the "FAA")

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has submitted to the FAA a Project Application dated June 3, 2025, for a grant of
Federal funds for a project at or associated with the Sebring Regional Airport, which is included as part
of this Grant Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the FAA has approved a project for the Sebring Regional Airport (herein called the “Project”)
consisting of the following:

Expand Fuel Farm
which is more fully described in the Project Application.

NOW THEREFORE, Pursuant to and for the purpose of carrying out the Infrastructure Investment and
Jobs Act{IlJA} (Public Law (P.L.) 117-58) of 2021; FAA Reauthorization Act of 2024 (P.L. 118-63); and the
representations contained in the Project Application; and in consideration of (a) the Sponsor’s adoption
and ratification of the attached Grant Assurances dated April 2025, interpreted and applied consistent
with the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2024; (b) the Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer; and {c) the




3-12-0072-037-2025

benefits to accrue to the United States and the public from the accomplishment of the Project and
compliance with the Grant Assurance and conditions as herein provided;

THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE UNITED STATES, HEREBY
OFFERS AND AGREES to pay (95) % of the allowable costs incurred accomplishing the Project as the
United States share of the Project.

Assistance Listings Number (Formerly CFDA Number): 20.106

This Offer is made on and SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

CONDITIONS

1. Maximum Obligation. The maximum obligation of the United States payable under this Offer is

$540,222.

The following amounts represent a breakdown of the maximum obligation for the purpose of
establishing allowable amounts for any future grant amendment, which may increase the foregoing
maximum obligation of the United States under the provisions of 49 U.5.C. § 47108(b}:

$0 for planning

$540,222 for airport development or noise program implementation; and,
50 for land acquisition.

2. Grant Performance. This Grant Agreement is subject to the following Federal award requirements:

a.

Period of Performance:

1.

Shall start on the date the Sponsor formally accepts this Agreement and is the date signed
by the last Sponsor signatory to the Agreement. The end date of the Period of Performance
is 4 years {1,460 calendar days) from the date of acceptance. The Period of Performance end
date shall not affect, relieve, or reduce Sponsor obligations and assurances that extend
beyond the closeout of this Grant Agreement.

Means the total estimated time interval between the start of an initial Federal award and
the planned end date, which may include one or more funded portions or budget periods (2
Code of Federal Regulations {CFR} § 200.1) except as noted in 49 U.5.C § 47142(b).

Budget Period:

1.

For this Grant is 4 years (1,460 calendar days} and follows the same start and end date as
the Period of Performance provided in paragraph 2(a)(1). Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.403(h),
the Sponsor may charge to the Grant only allowable costs incurred during the Budget Pericod
and as stated in 49 U.5.C § 47142(b). Eligible project-related costs incurred on or after
November 15, 2021 that comply with all Federal funding procurement requirements and
FAA standards are allowable costs.

Means the time interval from the start date of a funded portion of an award to the end date
of that funded portion during which Sponsors are authorized to expend the funds awarded,
including any funds carried forward or other revisions pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.308.

Close Out and Termination

Unless the FAA authorizes a written extension, the Sponsor must submit all Grant closeout
documentation and liquidate (pay-off) all obligations incurred under this award no later




3-12-0072-037-2025

than 120 calendar days after the end date of the Period of Performance. If the Sponsor does
not submit all required closeout documentation within this time period, the FAA will
proceed to close out the grant within one year of the Period of Performance end date with
the information available at the end of 120 days (2 CFR § 200.344). The FAA may terminate
this agreement and all of its obligations under this agreement if any of the following occurs:

{a) (1) The Sponsor fails to obtain or provide any Spensor grant contribution as required by
the agreement;

(2) A completion date for the Project or a component of the Project is listed in the
agreement and the Recipient fails to meet that milestone by six months after the date
listed in the agreement;

(3) The Sponsor fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this agreement,
including a material failure to comply with the Project Schedule even if it is beyond the
reasonable control of the Sponsor;

{4) Circumstances cause changes to the Project that the FAA determines are
inconsistent with the FAA's basis for selecting the Project to receive a grant; or

(5) The FAA determines that termination of this agreement is in the public interest.

{b} In terminating this agreement under this section, the FAA may elect to consider only the
interests of the FAA.

{c) The Sponsor may request that the FAA terminate the agreement under this section.

Ineligible or Unallowable Costs. In accordance with P.L. 117-58, Division J, Title VIIl, and 49 U.S.C. §
47110, the Sponsor is prohibited from including any costs in the grant funded portions of the project
that the FAA has determined to be ineligible or unallowable, including costs incurred te carry out
airpart development implementing policies and initiatives repealed by Executive Order 14148,
provided such costs are not otherwise permitted by statute,

Indirect Costs - Sponsor. The Sponsor may charge indirect costs under this award by applying the
indirect cost rate identified in the project application as accepted by the FAA, to allowable costs for
Sponsor direct salaries and wages.

Determining the Final Federal Share of Costs. The United States’ share of allowable project costs
will be made in accordance with 49 U.5.C. § 47109, the regulations, policies, and procedures of the
Secretary of Transportation {“Secretary”}, and any superseding legislation. Final determination of
the United States” share will be based upon the final audit of the total amount of allowable project
costs and settlement will be made for any upward or downward adjustments to the Federal share of
costs.

Completing the Project Without Delay and in Conformance with Requirements. The Sponsor must
carry out and complete the project without undue delays and in accordance with this Agreement,
lJA (P.L. 117-58), and the regulations, policies, and procedures of the Secretary. Per 2 CFR

§ 200.308, the Sponsor agrees to repert and request prior FAA approval for any disengagement from
performing the project that exceeds three months or a 25 percent reduction in time devoted to the




10.

11.

12,

3-12-0072-037-2025

project. The report must include a reason for the project stoppage. The Sponsor also agrees to
comply with the grant assurances, which are part of this Agreement.

Amendments or Withdrawals before Grant Acceptance. The FAA reserves the right to amend or
withdraw this offer at any time prior to its acceptance by the Sponsor.

Offer Expiration Date. This offer will expire and the United States will not be obligated to pay any
part of the costs of the project unless this offer has been accepted by the Sponsor on or before July
14, 2025, or such subsequent date as may be prescribed in writing by the FAA.

Improper Use of Federal Funds and Mandatory Disclosure.

a. The Sponsor must take all steps, including litigation if necessary, to recover Federal funds spent
fraudulently, wastefully, or in violation of Federal antitrust statutes, or misused in any other
manner for any project upon which Federal funds have been expended. For the purposes of this
Grant Agreement, the term “Federal funds” means funds however used or dispersed by the
Sponsor, that were originally paid pursuant to this or any other Federal grant agreement. The
Sponsor must obtain the approval of the Secretary as to any determination of the amount of the
Federal share of such funds. The Sponsor must return the recovered Federal share, including
funds recovered by settlement, order, or judgment, to the Secretary. The Sponsor must furnish
to the Secretary, upon request, all documents and records pertaining to the determination of
the amount of the Federal share or to any settlement, litigation, negotiation, or other efforts
taken to recover such funds. All settlements or other final positions of the Sponsor, in court or
otherwise, involving the recovery of such Federal share require advance approval by the
Secretary.

b. The Sponsor, a recipient, and a subrecipient under this Federal grant must promptly comply
with the mandatory disclosure requirements as established under 2 CFR § 200.113, including
reporting requirements related to recipient integrity and performance in accordance with
Appendix Xll to 2 CFR Part 200.

United States Not Liable for Damage or Injury. The United States is not responsible or liable for
damage to property or injury to persons which may arise from, or be incident to, compliance with
this Grant Agreement.

System for Award Management (SAM) Registration and Unique Entity |dentifier (UEI).

a. Requirement for System for Award Management (SAM): Unless the Sponsor is exempted from
this requirement under 2 CFR § 25.110, the Sponsor must maintain the currency of its
information in the SAM until the Sponsor submits the final financial report required under this
Grant, or receives the final payment, whichever is later. This requires that the Sponsor review
and update the information at least annually after the initial registration and more frequently if
required by changes in infermation or another award term. Additional information about
registration procedures may be found at the SAM website (currently at http://www.sam.gov).

b. Unique entity identifier (UEl) means a 12-character alpha-numeric value used to identify a
specific commercial, nonprofit or governmental entity. A UEl may be obtained from SAM.gov at
https://sam.gov/content/entity-registration.

Electronic Grant Payment(s). Unless otherwise directed by the FAA, the Sponsor must make each
payment request under this Agreement electronically via the Delphi elnvoicing System for
Department of Transportation (DOT) Financial Assistance Awardees.



http://www.sam.gov
https://sam.gov/content/entitv-registration

13.

14.

15,

3-12-0072-037-2025

Informal Letter Amendment of IIJA Projects. If, during the life of the project, the FAA determines

that the maximum grant obligation of the United States exceeds the expected needs of the Sponsor
by $25,000 or five percent {5%), whichever is greater, the FAA can issue a letter amendment to the
Sponsor unilaterally reducing the maximum obligation.

The FAA can, subject to the availability of Federal funds, also issue a letter to the Sponsor increasing
the maximum obligation if there is an overrun in the total actual eligible and allowable project costs
to cover the amount of the overrun provided it will not exceed the statutory limitations for grant
amendments. The FAA’s authority to increase the maximum obligation does not apply to the
“planning” compeonent of Condition No. 1, Maximum Obligation.

The FAA can also issue an informal letter amendment that modifies the grant description to correct
administrative errors or to delete work items if the FAA finds it advantageous and in the best
interests of the United States.

An informal letter amendment has the same force and effect as a formal grant amendment.

Environmental Standards. The Sponsor is required to comply with all applicable environmental
standards, as further defined in the Grant Assurances, for all projects in this grant. If the Sponsor
fails to comply with this requirement, the FAA may suspend, cancel, or terminate this Grant
Agreement.

Financial Reporting and Payment Requirements. The Sponsor will comply with all Federal financial
reporting requirements and payment requirements, including submittal of timely and accurate
reports.

16. Buy American. Unless otherwise approved in advance by the FAA, in accordance with 48 U.S.C,

17,

18.

§ 50101, the Sponsor will not acquire or permit any contractor or subcontractor to acquire any steel
or manufactured goods produced outside the United States to be used for any project for which
funds are provided under this Grant. The Sponsor will include a provision implementing Buy
American in every contract and subcontract awarded under this Grant.

Build America, Buy American. The Sponsor must comply with the requirements under the Build
America, Buy America Act (P.L. 117-58).

Maximum Obligation Increase. In accordance with 49 U.5.C. § 47108(b)(3), as amended, the
maximum obligation of the United States, as stated in Condition No. 1, Maximum Obligation, of this
Grant:

a. May not be increased for a planning project;
b. May be increased by not more than 15 percent for development projects, if funds are available;

c. May be increased by not more than the greater of the following for a land project, if funds are
available:

1. 15 percent; or

2. 25 percent of the total increase in allowable project costs attributable to acquiring an
interest in the land.

If the Sponsor requests an increase, any eligible increase in funding will be subject to the United
States Government share as provided in IJA {P.L. 117-58), or other superseding legislation if
applicable, for the fiscal year appropriation with which the increase is funded. The FAA is not
responsible for the same Federal share provided herein for any amount increased over the initial




3-12-0072-037-2025

grant amount. The FAA may adjust the Federal share as applicable through an informal letter of
amendment.

19. Audits for Sponsors.

PUBLIC SPONSORS. The Sponsor must provide for a Single Audit or program-specific audit in
accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. The Sponsor must submit the audit reporting package to the
Federal Audit Clearinghouse on the Federal Audit Clearinghouse’s Internet Data Entry System at
http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/. Upon request of the FAA, the Sponsor shall provide one copy
of the completed audit to the FAA. Sponsors that expend less than $1,000,000 in Federal awards
and are exempt from Federal audit requirements must make records available for review or audit by
the appropriate Federal agency officials, State, and Government Accountability Office. The FAA and
other appropriate Federal agencies may request additional information to meet all Federal audit
requirements.

20. Suspension or Debarment. When entering into a “covered transaction” as defined by 2 CFR §
180.200, the Sponsor must:

a. Verify the non-Federal entity is eligible to participate in this Federal program by:

1. Checking the System for Award Management (SAM.gov} exclusions to determine if the non-
Federal entity is excluded or disqualified; or

2. Collecting a certification statement from the non-Federal entity attesting they are not
excluded or disqualified from participating; or

3. Adding a clause or condition to covered transactions attesting the individual or firm are not
excluded or disqualified from participating.

b. Require prime contractors to comply with 2 CFR § 180.330 when entering into lower-tier
transactions with their contractors and sub-contractors.

c. Immediately disclose in writing to the FAA whenever (1} the Sponsor learns it has entered into a
covered transaction with an ineligible entity or (2) the Public Sponsor suspends or debars a
contractor, person, or entity.

21. Ban on Texting While Driving.

a. In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging
While Driving, October 1, 2009, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While Driving,
December 30, 2009, the Sponsor is encouraged to:

1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted
drivers including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing any work for,
or on behalf of, the Federal government, including work relating to a grant or subgrant.

2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of the
business, such as:

i Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing programs to
prohibit text messaging while driving; and

ii.  Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks
associated with texting while driving.

b. The Sponsor must insert the substance of this clause on banning texting while driving in all
subgrants, contracts, and subcontracts funded with this Grant.


http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/

3-12-0072-037-2025

22. Trafficking in Persons.

1. Posting of contact information.

a. The Sponsor must post the contact information of the national human trafficking hotline
{including options to reach out to the hotline such as through phone, text, or TTY} in all
public airport restrooms.

2. Provisions applicable to a recipient that is a private entity.

a. Under this Grant, the recipient, its employees, subrecipients under this Grant, and
subrecipients employees must not engage in:

Severe forms of trafficking in persons;

The procurement of commercial sex act during the period of time that the grant or
cooperative agreement is in effect;

The use of forced labor in the performance of this grant; or any subaward; or
Acts that directly support or advance trafficking in person, including the following acts;

a) Destroying, concealing, removing, confiscating, or otherwise denying an employee
access to that employee’s identity or immigration documents;

b) Failing to provide return transportation of pay for return transportation costs to an
employee from a country outside the United States to the country from which the
employee was recruited upon the end of employment if requested by the
employee, unless:

1. Exempted from the requirement to provide or pay for such return
transportation by the federal department or agency providing or entering
into the grant; or

2. The employee is a victim of human trafficking seeking victim services or
legal redress in the country of employment or witness in a human trafficking
enforcement action;

¢} Soliciting a person for the purpose of employment, or offering employment, by
means of materially false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises
regarding that employment;

d} Charging recruited employees a placement ar recruitment fee; or

e} Providing or arranging housing that fails to meet the host country’s housing and
safety standards.

b. The FAA, may unilaterally terminate this Grant, or take any remedial actions authorized by
22 U.S.C 7104b(c), without penalty, if any private entity under this Grant;

Is determined to have violated a prehibition in paragraph (2}{a) of this Grant;

Has an employee that is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph {2}{a) of
this Grant through conduct that is either:

a) Associated with performance under this Grant; or

b) Imputed to the recipient or subrecipient using the standards and due process for
imputing the conduct of an individual to an crganization that are provided in 2 CFR




3-12-0072-037-2025

Part 180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Government-wide Debarment and
Suspension {Nonprocurement),” as implemented by the FAA at 2 CFR Part 1200.

3. Provision applicable to a recipient other than a private entity.

a.

The FAA may unilaterally terminate this award or take any remedial actions authorized by
22 U.5.C 7104b(c), without penalty, if subrecipient than is a private entity under this award;

i. Isdetermined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph (2)({a) of this Grant or

ii. Has an employee that is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph (2){(a) of
this Grant through conduct that is either:

a) Associated with performance under this Grant; or

b) Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing the
conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR Part 180,
“OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension
{Nonprocurement),” as implemented by our agency at 2 CFR Part 1200.

4. Provisions applicable to any recipient.

a,

The recipient must inform the FAA and the DOT Inspector General, immediately of any
information you receive from any source alleging a violation of a prohibition in paragraph
(2)(a) of this Grant.

The FAA's right to unilaterally terminate this Grant as described in paragraph (2){b) or (3){a)
of this Grant, implements the requirements of 22 U.5.C. chapter 78 and is addition to all
other remedies for noncompliance that are available to the FAA under this Grant:

The recipient must include the requirements of paragraph (2)(a) of this Grant award term in
any subaward it makes to a private entity.

If applicable, the recipient must also comply with the compliance plan and certification
requirements in 2 CFR 175.105(h).

5. Definitions. For purposes of this Grant award, term:

a.

“Employee” means either:

i. Anindividual employed by the recipient or a subrecipient who is engaged in the
performance of the project or program under this Grant; or

ii. Another person engaged in the performance of the project or program under this Grant
and not compensated by the recipient including, but not limited to, a volunteer or
individual whose services are contributed by a third party as an in-kind contribution
toward cost sharing or requirements.

“Private entity” means:

i. Any entity, including for profit organizations, nonprofit organizations, institutions of
higher education, and hospitals. The term does not include foreign public entities,
Indian Tribes, local governments, or states as defined in 2 CFR 200.1.

nou n o

ii. The terms “severe forms of trafficking in persons,” “commercial sex act,” “sex
trafficking,” “Abuse or threatened abuse of law or legal process,” “coercion,” “debt

10




23.

24,

25,

26.

27,

28,

3-12-0072-037-2025

bondage,” and “involuntary servitude” have the meaning given at section 103 of the
TVPA, as amended (22 U.5.C. 7102).

11JA Funded Work Included in a PFC Application. Within 120 days of acceptance of this Grant
Agreement, the Sponsor must submit to the FAA an amendment to any approved Passenger Facility
Charge (PFC) application that contains an approved PFC project also covered under this Grant
Agreement as described in the project application. The airport spensor may not make any
expenditure under this Grant Agreement until project work addressed under this Grant Agreement
is removed from an approved PFC application by amendment.

Exhibit “A” Property Map. The Exhibit “A” Property Map dated July 2020, is incorporated herein by
reference or is submitted with the project application and made part of this Grant Agreement.

Employee Protection from Reprisal. In accordance with 2 CFR § 200.217 and 41 U.S.C. § 4701, an
employee of a grantee, subgrantee contractor, recipient or subrecipient must not be discharged,
demoted, or otherwise discriminated against as a reprisal for disclosing to a person or body
described in paragraph (a){2) of 41 U.5.C. 4712 information that the employee reasonably believes is
evidence of gross mismanagement of a Federal contract or grant, a gross waste of Federal funds, an
abuse of authority relating to a Federal contract or grant, a substantial and specific danger to public
health or safety, or a viclation of law, rule, or regulation related to a Federal contract {including the
competition for or negotiation of a contract) or grant. The grantee, subgrantee, contractor,
recipient, or subrecipient must inform their employees in writing of employee whistleblower rights
and protections under 41 U.5.C. § 4712, See statutory requirements for whistleblower protections at
10U.5.C. §4701,41U.5.C. §4712,41 US.C. § 4304, and 10 U.S.C. § 4310.

Prohibited Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services and Equipment. The Sponsor
agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to use and procurement of certain
telecommunications and videa surveillance services or equipment in compliance with the National
Defense Authorization Act [P.L. 115-232 § 889(f}] and 2 CFR § 200.216.

Critical infrastructure Security and Resilience. The Sponsor acknowledges that it has considered
and addressed physical and cybersecurity and resilience in its project planning, design, and
oversight, as determined by the DOT and the Department of Homeland Security (DHS). For airports
that do not have specific DOT or DHS cybersecurity requirements, the FAA encourages the voluntary
adoption of the cybersecurity requirements from the Transportation Security Administration and
Federal Security Director identified for security risk Category X airports.

Title Vi of the Civil Rights Act. As a condition of a grant award, the Sponsor shall demonstrate that
it complies with the provisicns of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq)
and implementing regulations {49 CFR part 21), the Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49
U.5.C. § 47123), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.5.C. 6101 et seq.), Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 {29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.5.C. § 12101, et seq.}, U.S. Department of Transportation and Federal Aviation Administration
(FAA) Assurances, and other relevant civil rights statutes, regulations, or authorities, including any
amendments or updates thereto. This may include, as applicable, providing a current Title VI
Program Plan to the FAA for approval, in the format and according to the timeline required by the
FAA, and other information about the communities that will be benefited and impacted by the
project. A completed FAA Title VI Pre-Grant Award Checklist is required for every grant application,
unless excused by the FAA. The Sponsar shall affirmatively ensure that when carrying out any
project supported by this grant that it complies with all federal nondiscrimination and civil rights
laws based on race, color, national origin, sex, creed, age, disability, genetic information, in

1l




29.

30.

31.

32.

3-12-0072-037-2025

consideration for federal financial assistance. The Department’s and FAA’s Office of Civil Rights may
provide resources and technical assistance to recipients to ensure full and sustainable compliance
with Federal civil rights requirements. Failure to comply with civil rights requirements will be
considered a violation of the agreement or contract and be subject to any enforcement action as
authorized by law.

FAA Reauthorization Act of 2024. This grant agreement is subject to the terms and conditions
contained herein including the terms known as the Grant Assurances as they were published in the
Federal Register April 2025. On May 16, 2024, the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2024 made certain
amendments to 49 U.S.C. chapter 471. The Reauthorization Act will require the FAA to make certain
amendments to the assurances in order to best achieve consistency with the statute. Federal law
requires that the FAA publish any amendments to the assurances in the Federal Register along with
an opportunity to comment. In order not to delay the offer of this grant, the existing assurances are
attached herein; however, the FAA shall interpret and apply these assurances consistent with the
Reauthorization Act. To the extent there is a conflict between the assurances and Federal statutes,
the statutes shall apply. The full text of the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2024 is at

https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/3935/text

Applicable Federal Anti-Discrimination Laws. Pursuant to Section (3)(b)(iv), Executive Order 14173,
Ending lllegal Discrimination and Restoring Merit-Based Opportunity, the sponsor:

a. Agrees that its compliance in all respects with all applicable Federal anti-discrimination laws is
material to the government’s payment decisions for purposes of 31 U.5.C. 3729(b){4); and

b. certifies that it does not operate any programs promoting diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI)
initiatives that violate any applicable Federal anti-discrimination laws.

Federal Law and Public Policy Requirements. The Sponsor shall ensure that Federal funding is

expended in full accordance with the United States Constitution, Federal law, and statutory and
public policy requirements: including but not limited to, those protecting free speech, religious
liberty, public welfare, the environment, and prohibiting discrimination; and the Sponsor will
cooperate with Federal officials in the enforcement of Federal law, including cooperating with and
not impeding U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) and other Federal offices and
components of the Department of Homeland Security in and the enforcement of Federal
immigration law.

National Airspace System Requirements

a. The Sponsor shall cooperate with FAA activities installing, maintaining, replacing, improving, or
operating equipment and facilities in or supporting the National Airspace System, including
waiving permitting requirements and other restrictions affecting those activities to the
maximum extent possible, and assisting the FAA in securing waivers of permitting or other
restrictions from other authorities. The Sponsor shall not take actions that frustrate or prevent
the FAA from installing, maintaining, replacing, improving, or operating equipment and facilities
in or supporting the National Airspace System.

b. If the FAA determines that the Sponsor has violated subsection (a), the FAA may impose a
remedy, including:

(1)} additional conditions on the award;

12


https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/3935/text

33.

34,

3-12-0072-037-2025

(2} consistent with 49 U.S.C chapter 471, any remedy permitted under 2 C.F.R, 200.339-
200.340, including withholding of payments; disallowance of previously reimbursed
costs, requiring refunds from the Recipient to the USDOT,; suspension or termination of
the award; or suspension and debarment under 2 CFR part 180; or

{3) any other remedy legally available.

c. Inimposing a remedy under this condition, the FAA may elect to consider the interests of only
the FAA.

d. The Sponsor acknowledges that amounts that the FAA requires the Sponsor to refund to the
FAA due to a remedy under this condition constitute a debt to the Federal Government that the
FAA may collect under 2 CFR 200.346 and the Federal Claims Collection Standards (31 CFR parts
900-904).

Signage Costs for Construction Projects. The airport grant recipient hereby agrees that it will

require the prime contracter of a Federally- assisted airport improvement project to post signs
consistent with a DOT/FAA-prescribed format, as may be requested by the DOT/FAA, and further
agrees to remove any signs posted in response to requests received prior to February 1, 2025.

Title 8 - U.5.C., Chapter 12, Subchapter Il - Immigration. The sponsor will follow applicable federal

laws pertaining to Subchapter 12, and be subject to the penalties set forth in 8 U.S.C. § 1324,
Bringing in and harboring certain aliens, and 8 U.5.C. § 1327, Aiding or assisting certain aliens to
enter,

13




3-12-0072-037-2025

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

35, Buy American Executive Orders. The Sponsor agrees to abide by applicable Executive Orders in
effect at the time this Grant Agreement is executed, including Executive Order 14005, Ensuring the
Future Is Made in All of America by All of America’s Workers.

14




3-12-0072-037-2025

The Sponsor's acceptance of this Offer and ratification and adoption of the Project Application
incorporated herein shall be evidenced by execution of this instrument by the Sponsor, as hereinafter
provided, and this Offer and Acceptance shall comprise a Grant Agreement, constituting the contractual
obligations and rights of the United States and the Sponsor with respect to the accomplishment of the
Project and compliance with the Grant Assurances, terms, and conditions as provided herein. Such Grant
Agreement shall become effective upon the Sponsor's acceptance of this Offer.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or
sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do 30, you may request to receive paper copies and
withdraw your consent at any time.

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.?

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

%zﬁm

{Signature)
Juan C. Brown
(Typed Name)
Manager
(Title of FAA Official)

! Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.5.C.
§ 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

15




3-12-0072-037-2025

Part Il - Acceptance
The Sponsor does hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties,
covenants, and agreements contained in the Project Application and incorporated materials referred to
in the foregoing Offer, and does hereby accept this Offer and by such acceptance agrees to comply with
all of the Grant Assurances, terms, and conditions in this Offer and in the Project Application.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or
sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and
withdraw your consent at any time.

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.?

Dated JUI’]E‘ 24, 2025

Sebring Airport Authority

{Name of Sponsor)

e ool

{Signature of Sponser’s Autharized Official)

By: mike willingham

{Typed Nome of Sponsor’s Authorized Official)
Title: Executive Director

(Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official}

2 Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.S.C.
§ 1001 {False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

16




3-12-0072-037-2025

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR’S ATTORNEY
I, Robert Swaine , acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify:

That in my opinion the Sponsaor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the
laws of the State of Florida. Further, | have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the actions
taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor’s official representative, who has been duly authorized to execute
this Grant Agreement, which is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the
said State; the Infrastructure investment and Jobs Act {lIJA) {(P.L. 117-58) of 2021; FAA Reauthorization
Act of 2024 {P.L. 118-63); and the representations cortained in the Project Application. In addition, for
grants involving projects to be carried out on property not owned by the Sponsor, there are no legal
impediments that will prevent full performance by the Sponsor. Further, it is my opinion that the said
Grant Agreement constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor in accordance with the terms
thereof.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or
sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and
withdraw your consent at any time.

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.?

Dated at June 24,2025

Aosbant Svacne
By:

(Signature of Sponsor’s Attorney}

3 Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18
U.S.C. § 1001 {False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

17




3-12-0072-037-2025

ASSURANCES
AIRPORT SPONSORS

A. General.

1. These assurances shall be complied with in the performance of grant agreements for airport
development, airport planning, and noise compatibility program grants for airport sponsors.

2. These assurances are required to be submitted as part of the project application by sponsors
requesting funds under the provisions of Title 49, U.S.C., subtitle VI, as amended. As used
herein, the term "public agency sponsor" means a public agency with control of a public-use
airpert; the term "private spensor” means a private owner of a public-use airport; and the term
"sponsor” includes both public agency sponsors and private sponsors.

3. Upon acceptance of this grant offer by the sponsor, these assurances are incorporated in and
become part of this Grant Agreement.

B. Duration and Applicability.

1. Airport Development or Noise Compatibility Program Projects Undertaken by a Public Agency
Sponsor.

The terms, conditions, and assurances of this Grant Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect throughout the useful life of the facilities developed or equipment acquired for an
airport development or noise compatibility program project, or throughout the useful life of
the project items installed within a facility under a noise compatibility program project, but in
any event not to exceed twenty (20) years from the date of acceptance of a grant offer of
Federal funds for the project. However, there shall be no limit on the duration of the
assurances regarding Exclusive Rights and Airport Revenue so long as the airport is used as an
airport. There shall be no limit on the duration of the terms, conditions, and assurances with
respect to real property acquired with federal funds. Furthermore, the duration of the Civil
Rights assurance shall be specified in the assurances.

2. Airport Development or Noise Compatibility Projects Undertaken by a Private Sponsor.

The preceding paragraph (1) also applies to a private sponsor except that the useful life of
project items installed within a facility or the useful life of the facilities developed or equipment
acquired under an airport development or noise compatibility program project shall be no less
than ten (10) years from the date of acceptance of Federal aid for the project.

3. Airport Planning Undertaken by a Sponsor.

Unless otherwise specified in this Grant Agreement, only Assurances 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 13, 18, 23, 25,
30, 32, 33, 34, 37, and 40 in Section C apply to planning projects. The terms, conditions, and
assurances of this Grant Agreement shall remain in full force and effect during the life of the
project; there shall be no limit on the duration of the assurances regarding Exclusive Rights and
Airport Revenue so long as the airport is used as an airport.

Airpart Spansors Assurances Page 10f 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

C. Sponsor Certification.

The sponsor hereby assures and certifies, with respect to this grant that:

1.

General Federal Requirements

The Sponsor will comply with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, executive orders, policies,
guidelines, and requirements as they relate to the application, acceptance, and use of Federal funds
for this Grant. Performance under this agreement shall be governed by and in compliance with the
following requirements, as applicable, to the type of organization of the Sponsor and any applicable
sub-recipients. The applicable provisions to this agreement include, but are not limited to, the
following:

FEDERAL LEGISLATION

a.
b.

C.

49 1J.5.C. subtitle VII, as amended.

Davis-Bacon Act, as amended — 40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3144, 3146, and 3147, et seq.!
Federal Fair Labor Standards Act —29 U.5.C. § 201, et seq.

Hatch Act — 5 U.S.C. § 1501, et seq.?

Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acauisition Policies Act of 1970, 42
U.S.C. 4601, et seq.>?

National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 — Section 106 — 54 U.5.C. § 306108.1
Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 — 54 U.S.C. § 312501, et seq.!
Native Americans Grave Repatriation Act — 25 U.S.C. § 3001, et seq.

Clean Air Act, P.L. 90-148, as amended ~ 42 U.S.C. § 7401, et seq.

Coastal Zone Management Act, P.L. 92-583, as amended - 16 U.5.C. § 1451, et seq.
Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 — Section 102(a) - 42 U.S.C. § 4012a.!

49 U.5.C. § 303, (formerly known as Section 4(f}).

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 - 29 U.5.C. § 794.

Title Vi of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 {42 U.5.C. § 2000d et seq.) (prohibits discrimination on the
basis of race, color, national origin).

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, {42 U.5.C. § 12101 et seq.) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability).

Age Discrimination Act of 1975 - 42 U.S.C. § 6101, et seq.

American Indian Religious Freedom Act, P.L. 95-341, as amended.

Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended — 42 U.5.C. § 4151, et seq.?
Powerplant and Industrial Fuel Use Act of 1978 — Section 403 —42 U.S.C. § 8373.}
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act — 40 U.5.C. § 3701, et seq.!
Copeland Anti-kickback Act — 18 U.S.C. § 874.1

National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 — 42 U.S.C. § 4321, et seq.!

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 2 of 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

w. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, P.L. 90-542, as amended — 16 U.S.C. § 1271, et seq.

x. Single Audit Act of 1984 — 31 U.5.C. § 7501, et seq.?

y. Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 — 41 U.S.C. §§ 8101 through 8105.

z. The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, as amended (P.L. 109-282, as
amended by section 6202 of P.L. 110-252).

aa. Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, P.L. 100-259,

bb. Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, P.L. 117-58, Title VIII.

cc. Build America, Buy America Act, P.L. 117-58, Title IX.

dd. Endangered Species Act — 16 U.5.C. 1531, et seq.

ee. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended ~ 20 U.5.C. 1681-1683 and 1685—
1687.

ff. Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as amended — 21 U.5.C. 1101, et seq.

gg. Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970, P.L. 91-
616, as amended — 42 U.5.C, § 4541, et seq.

hh. Appropriated Funds to Influence Certain Federal Contracting and Financial Transactions — 31
U.5.C. § 1352.

EXecuTivE ORDERS

a. Executive Order 11990 — Protection of Wetlands

b. Executive Order 11988 - Floodplain Management

¢. Executive Order 12372 — Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs

d. Executive Order 12699 — Seismic Safety of Federal and Federally Assisted New Building
Construction’

e. Executive Order 14005 — Ensuring the Future is Made in all of America by All of America’s
Workers

f. Executive Order 14149 — Restoring Freedom of Speech and Ending Federa! Censorship

g. Executive Order 14151 - Ending Radical and Wasteful Government DEI Programs and
Preferencing

h. Executive Order 14154 — Unleashing American Energy

i. Executive Order 14168 — Defending Women from Gender ldeology Extremism and Restoring
Biological Truth to the Federal Government

j. Executive Order 14173 — Ending Illegal Discrimination and Restoring Merit-Based Opportunity

FEDERAL REGULATIONS

a. 2 CFR Part 180 — OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension
(Nonprocurement).

b. 2 CFR Part 200 and 1201 — Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, %5

¢. 2 CFR Part 1200 — Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 3of 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

d. 14 CFR Part 13 — Investigative and Enforcement Procedures.
e. 14 CFR Part 16 — Rules of Practice for Federally-Assisted Airport Enfoercement Proceedings.
f. 14 CFR Part 150 — Airport Noise Compatibility Planning.

g. 28 CFR Part 35 — Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government
Services.

h. 28 CFR §50.3 - U.5. Department of Justice Guidelines for the Enforcement of Title Vi of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964,

i. 29 CFR Part 1 — Procedures for Predetermination of Wage Rates.!

j. 29 CFR Part 3 — Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in
Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States.!

k. 29 CFR Part 5 — Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed
and Assisted Construction {Also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction
Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act).!

. 41 CFR Part 60 — Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment
Opportunity, Department of Labor (Federal and Federally-assisted contracting requirements).!

m. 49 CFR Part 20 — New Restrictions on Lobbying.

n. 49 CFR Part 21 — Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of
Transpaortation - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

o. 49 CFR Part 23 — Participation by Disadvantage Business Enterprise in Airport Concessions.,

p. 49 CFR Part 24 — Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition for Federal and
Federally-Assisted Programs.’ 2

g. 49 CFR Part 26 — Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of
Transportation Financial Assistance Programs.

r. 49 CFR Part 27 — Nendiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in Programs or Activities Receiving
Federal Financial Assistance.!

s. 49 CFR Part 28 — Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs or
Activities Conducted by the Department of Transportation.

t. 49 CFR Part 30 — Denial of Public Works Contracts to Suppliers of Goods and Services of
Countries That Deny Procurement Market Access to U.S. Contractors.

u. 49 CFR Part 32 — Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Financial
Assistance).

v. 49 CFR Part 37 — Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA).

w. 49 CFR Part 38 — Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for
Transportation Vehicles.

x. 49 CFR Part 41 -- Seismic Safety.

FOOTNOTES TO ASSURANCE (C){(1)

1 These laws do not apply to airport planning sponsors,
2 These laws do not apply to private sponsors.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Fage 4 of 15




3-12-0072-037-2025

¥ 2 CFR Part 200 contains requirements for State and Loca! Governments receiving Federal

assistance. Any requirement levied upon State and Local Governments by this regulation shall
apply where applicable to private sponsors receiving Federal assistance under Title 49, United
States Code.

Cost principles established in 2 CFR Part 200 subpart E must be used as guidelines for
determining the eligibility of specific types of expenses.

Audit requirements established in 2 CFR Part 200 subpart F are the guidelines for audits.

4

5

SPECIFIC ASSURANCES

Specific assurances required to be included in grant agreements by any of the above laws, regulations or
circulars are incorporated by reference in this Grant Agreement.

2. Responsibility and Authority of the Sponsor.
a. Public Agency Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant, and to finance and carry out the proposed project;
that a resolution, motion or similar action has been duly adopted or passed as an official act of
the applicant’s governing body authorizing the filing of the application, including all
understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing the person
identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in connection with the
application and to provide such additional information as may be required.

b. Private Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant and to finance and carry out the proposed project
and comply with all terms, conditions, and assurances of this Grant Agreement. It shall
designate an official representative and shall in writing direct and authorize that person to file
this application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein; to act in
connection with this application; and to provide such additional information as may be
required.

3. Sponsor Fund Availability.

It has sufficient funds available for that portion of the project costs which are not to be paid by the
United States. It has sufficient funds available to assure operation and maintenance of items funded
under this Grant Agreement which it will own or control,

4. Good Title.

a. It, a public agency or the Federal government, holds good title, satisfactory to the Secretary, to
the landing area of the airport or site thereof, or will give assurance satisfactory to the
Secretary that good title will be acquired.

b. For noise compatibility program projects to be carried out on the property of the sponsor, it
holds good title satisfactory to the Secretary to that portion of the property upon which Federal
funds will be expended or will give assurance to the Secretary that good title will be obtained.

5. Preserving Rights and Powers.

a. It will not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of the rights and
powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms, conditions, and assurances in this Grant
Agreement without the written approval of the Secretary, and will act promptly to acquire,
extinguish or modify any outstanding rights or claims of right of others which would interfere

Airport Spansors Assurances Page 5 of 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

with such performance by the sponsor. This shall be done in a manner acceptable to the
Secretary.

b. Subject to 49 U.5.C. 47107(a){16) and (x}, it will not sell, lease, encumber, or otherwise transfer
or dispose of any part of its title or other interests in the property shown on Exhibit A to this
application or, for a noise compatibility program project, that portion of the property upon
which Federal funds have been expended, for the duration of the terms, conditions, and
assurances in this Grant Agreement without approval by the Secretary. If the transferee is
found by the Secretary to be eligible under Title 43, United States Code, to assume the
ohligations of this Grant Agreement and to have the power, authority, and financial resources
to carry out all such obligations, the sponsor shall insert in the contract or document
transferring or disposing of the sponsor's interest, and make binding upon the transferee all of
the terms, conditions, and assurances contained in this Grant Agreement.

c. For all noise compatibility program projects which are to be carried out by another unit of local
government or are on property owned by a unit of local government other than the sponsor, it
will enter into an agreement with that government. Except as otherwise specified by the
Secretary, that agreement shall obligate that government to the same terms, conditions, and
assurances that would be applicable to it if it applied directly to the FAA for a grant to
undertake the noise compatibility program preject. That agreement and changes thereto must
be satisfactory to the Secretary. It will take steps to enforce this agreement against the local
government if there is substantial non-compliance with the terms of the agreement.

d. For noise compatibility program projects to be carried out on privately owned property, it will
enter into an agreement with the owner of that property which includes provisions specified by
the Secretary. It will take steps to enforce this agreement against the property owner
whenever there is substantial non-compliance with the terms of the agreement.

e. [f the sponsor is a private sponsor, it will take steps satisfactory to the Secretary to ensure that
the airport will continue to function as a public-use airport in accordance with these assurances
for the duration of these assurances.

f. If an arrangement is made for management and operation of the airport by any agency or
person other than the sponsor or an employee of the sponsor, the sponsor will reserve
sufficient rights and authority to ensure that the airport will be operated and maintained in
accordance with Title 49, United States Cade, the regulations and the terms, conditions and
assurances in this Grant Agreement and shall ensure that such arrangement also requires
compliance therewith.

g. Sponsors of commercial service airports will not permit or enter into any arrangement that
results in permission for the owner or tenant of a property used as a residence, or zoned for
residential use, to taxi an aircraft between that property and any location on airport. Sponsors
of general aviation airports entering into any arrangement that results in permission for the
owner of residential real property adjacent to or near the airport must comply with the
requirements of Sec. 136 of Public Law 112-95 and the sponsor assurances.

6. Consistency with Local Plans.

The project is reasonably consistent with plans (existing at the time of submission of this
application) of public agencies that are authorized by the State in which the project is located to
plan for the development of the area surrounding the airport.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Fage 60f 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

7. Consideration of Local Interest.

It has given fair consideration to the interest of communities in or near where the project may be
located.

8. Consultation with Users.

In making a decision to undertake any airport development project under Title 49, United States
Code, it has undertaken reasonable consultations with affected parties using the airport at which
project is proposed.

9. Public Hearings.

In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway, or a major runway extension, it
has afforded the opportunity for public hearings for the purpose of considering the economic,
social, and environmental effects of the airport or runway location and its consistency with goals
and objectives of such planning as has been carried out by the community and it shall, when
requested by the Secretary, submit a copy of the transcript of such hearings to the Secretary.
Further, for such projects, it has on its management board either voting representation from the
commiunities where the project is located or has advised the communities that they have the right
to petition the Secretary concerning a proposed project.

10. Metropolitan Planning Organization.

In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway, or a major runway extension at a
medium or large hub airport, the sponsor has made available to and has provided upon request to

the metropolitan planning organization in the area in which the airport is located, if any, a copy of

the proposed amendment to the airport layout plan to depict the project and a copy of any airport
master plan in which the project is described or depicted.

11. Pavement Preventive Maintenance-Management.

With respect to a project approved after January 1, 1995, for the replacement or reconstruction of
pavement at the airport, it assures or certifies that it has implemented an effective airport
pavement maintenance-management program, and it assures that it will use such program for the
useful life of any pavement constructed, reconstructed, or repaired with Federal financial assistance
at the airport. It will provide such reports on pavement condition and pavement management
programs as the Secretary determines may be useful.

12. Terminal Development Prerequisites.

For projects which include terminal development at a public use airport, as defined in Title 49, it
has, on the date of submittal of the project grant application, all the safety equipment required for
certification of such airport under 49 U.S5.C. 44706, and all the security equipment required by rule
or regulation, and has provided for access to the passenger enplaning and deplaning area of such
airport to passengers enplaning and deplaning from aircraft other than air carrier aircraft.

13. Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requirements.

a. It shall keep all project accounts and records which fully disclose the amount and disposition by
the recipient of the proceeds of this Grant, the total cost of the project in connection with
which this Grant is given or used, and the amount or nature of that portion of the cost of the
project supplied by other sources, and such other financial records pertinent to the project. The
accounts and records shall be kept in accordance with an accounting system that will facilitate
an effective audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1584.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 7 of 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

b. It shall make available to the Secretary and the Comptroller General of the United States, or
any of their duly authorized representatives, for the purpose of audit and examination, any
books, documents, papers, and records of the recipient that are pertinent to this Grant, The
Secretary may require that an appropriate audit be conducted by a recipient. In any case in
which an independent audit is made of the accounts of a sponsor relating to the disposition of
the proceeds of a grant or relating to the project in connection with which this Grant was given
or used, it shall file a certified copy of such audit with the Comptroller General of the United
States not later than six (6} months following the close of the fiscal year for which the audit was
made.

14. Minimum Wage Rates.

it shall include, in all contracts in excess of $2,000 for work on any projects funded under this Grant
Agreement which involve labor, provisions establishing minimum rates of wages, to be
predetermined by the Secretary of Labor under 40 U.5.C. §§ 3141-3144, 3146, and 3147, Public
Building, Property, and Works), which contractors shall pay to skilled and unskilled labor, and such
minimum rates shall be stated in the invitation for bids and shall be included in proposals or bids for
the work.

15. Veteran's Preference.

It shall include in all contracts for work on any project funded under this Grant Agreement which
involve labor, such provisions as are necessary to insure that, in the employment of labor (exceptin
executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), preference shall be given to Vietnam era
veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Irag war veterans, disabled veterans, and small
business concerns owned and controlled by disabled veterans as defined in 49 U.S.C. 47112.
However, this preference shall apply only where the individuals are available and qualified to
perform the work to which the employment relates.

16. Conformity to Plans and Specifications.

It will execute the project subject to plans, specifications, and schedules approved by the Secretary.
Such plans, specifications, and schedules shall be submitted to the Secretary prior to
commencement of site preparation, construction, or other performance under this Grant
Agreement, and, upon approval of the Secretary, shall be incorporated into this Grant Agreement.
Any modification to the approved plans, specifications, and schedules shall also be subject to
approval of the Secretary and incorporated into this Grant Agreement.

17. Construction Inspection and Approval.

It will provide and maintain competent technical supervision at the construction site throughout the
project to assure that the work conforms to the plans, specifications, and schedules approved by
the Secretary for the project. It shall subject the construction work on any project contained in an
approved project application to inspection and approval by the Secretary and such work shall be in
accordance with regulations and procedures prescribed by the Secretary. Such regulations and
procedures shall require such cost and progress reporting by the sponsor or sponsors of such
project as the Secretary shall deem necessary.

18. Planning Projects.
In carrying out planning projects:

a. It will execute the project in accordance with the approved program narrative contained in the
project application or with the modifications similarly approved.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 8 of 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

b. It will furnish the Secretary with such periodic reports as required pertaining to the planning
project and planning work activities.

c. It willinclude in all published material prepared in connection with the planning project a
notice that the material was prepared under a grant provided by the United States.

d. It will make such material available for examination by the public and agrees that no material
prepared with funds under this project shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any
other country.

e. It will give the Secretary unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and otherwise
use any of the material prepared in connection with this grant.

f. It will grant the Secretary the right to disapprove the sponsor's employment of specific
consultants and their subcontractors to do all or any part of this project as well as the right to
disapprove the proposed scope and cost of professional services.

g. It will grant the Secretary the right to disapprove the use of the spensor's employees to do all
or any part of the project.

h. It understands and agrees that the Secretary's approval of this project grant or the Secretary's
approval of any planning material developed as part of this grant does not constitute or imply
any assurance or commitment on the part of the Secretary to approve any pending or future
application for a Federal airport grant.

19. Operation and Maintenance.

a. The airport and all facilities which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users of the airport,
other than facilities owned or controlled by the United States, shall be cperated at all times in a
safe and serviceable condition and in accordance with the minimum standards as may be
required or prescribed by applicable Federal, state, and local agencies for maintenance and
operation. It will not cause or permit any activity or action thereon which would interfere with
its use for airport purposes. It will suitably operate and maintain the airport and all facilities
thereon or connected therewith, with due regard to climatic and flood conditions. Any proposal
to temporarily close the airport for non-aeronautical purposes must first be approved by the
Secretary. In furtherance of this assurance, the sponsor will have in effect arrangements for:

1. Operating the airport's aeronautical facilities whenever required;

2. Promptly marking and lighting hazards resulting from airport conditions, including
temporary conditions; and

3. Promptly notifying pilots of any condition affecting aeronautical use of the airport. Nothing
contained herein shall be construed to require that the airport be operated for
aeronautical use during temporary periods when snow, flaod, or other climatic conditions
interfere with such operation and maintenance. Further, nothing herein shall be construed
as requiring the maintenance, repair, restoration, or replacement of any structure or
facility which is substantially damaged or destroyed due to an act of God or other
condition or circumstance beyond the control of the sponsor.

b. It will suitably operate and maintain noise compatibility program items that it owns or controls
upon which Federal funds have been expended.

Airport Spansors Assurances Page 9of 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

20. Hazard Removal and Mitigation.

It will take appropriate action to assure that such terminal airspace as is required to protect
instrument and visual operations to the airport {including established minimum flight altitudes} will
be adequately cleared and protected by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or
otherwise mitigating existing airport hazards and by preventing the establishment or creation of
future airport hazards.

21. Compatible Land Use,

it will take appropriate action, to the extent reasonable, including the adoption of zoning laws, to
restrict the use of land adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of the airport to activities and
purposes compatible with normal airport operations, including landing and takeoff of aircraft. In
addition, if the project is for noise compatibility program implementation, it will not cause or permit
any change in land use, within its jurisdiction, that will reduce its compatibility, with respect to the
airport, of the noise compatibility program measures upon which Federal funds have been
expended.

22. Economic Nondiscrimination.

a. It will make the airport available as an airport for public use on reasonable terms and without
unjust discrimination to all types, kinds and classes of aeronautical activities, including
commercial aeronautical activities offering services to the public at the airport.

b. Inany agreement, contract, lease, ar other arrangement under which a right or privilege at the
airport is granted to any person, firm, or corporation to conduct or to engage in any
aeronautica! activity for furnishing services to the public at the airport, the sponsor will insert
and enforce provisions requiring the contractor to:

1. Furnish said services on a reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, basis to all users
thereof, and

2. Charge reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, prices for each unit or service,
provided that the contractor may be allowed to make reasanable and nondiscriminatory
discounts, rebates, or other similar types of price reductions to volume purchasers.

c. Each fixed-based operator at the airport shall be subject to the same rates, fees, rentals, and
other charges as are uniformly applicable to all other fixed-based operators making the same or
similar uses of such airport and utilizing the same or similar facilities.

d. Each air carrier using such airport shall have the right to service itself or to use any fixed-based
operator that is authorized or permitted by the airport to serve any air carrier at such airport.

e. Each air carrier using such airport {whether as a tenant, non-tenant, or subtenant of another air
carrier tenant) shall be subject to such nondiscriminatory and substantially comparable rules,
regulations, conditions, rates, fees, rentals, and other charges with respect to facilities directly
and substantially related to providing air transportation as are applicable to all such air carriers
which make similar use of such airpart and utilize similar facilities, subject to reasonable
classifications such as tenants or non-tenants and signatory carriers and non-signatory carriers.
Classification or status as tenant or signatory shall not be unreasonably withheld by any airport
provided an air carrier assumes obligations substantially similar to those already imposed on air
carriers in such classification or status.

Airpart Sponsors Assurances Page 100f 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

f. It will not exercise or grant any right or privilege which operates to prevent any person, firm, or
corporation operating aircraft on the airport from performing any services on its own aircraft
with its own employees {including, but not limited to maintenance, repair, and fueling} that it
may choose to perform.

g. Inthe event the sponsor itself exercises any of the rights and privileges referred to in this
assurance, the services involved will be provided on the same conditions as would apply to the
furnishing of such services by commercial agronautical service providers authorized by the
sponsor under these provisions.

h. The sponsor may establish such reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, conditions to be
met by all users of the airport as may be necessary for the safe and efficient operation of the
airport.

i. The sponsor may prohibit or limit any given type, kind or class of aeronautical use of the airport
if such action is necessary for the safe operation of the airport or necessary to serve the civil
aviation needs of the public.

23. Exclusive Rights.

It will permit no exclusive right for the use of the airport by any person providing, or intending to
provide, aeronautical services to the public. For purposes of this paragraph, the providing of the
services at an airport by a single fixed-based operator shall not be construed as an exclusive right if
both of the following apply:

a. It would be unreasonably costly, burdensome, or impractical for more than one fixed-based
operator to provide such services, and

b. If allowing more than one fixed-based operator to provide such services would require the
reduction of space leased pursuant to an existing agreement between such single fixed-based
operator and such airport. It further agrees that it will not, either directly or indirectly, grant or
permit any person, firm, or corporation, the exclusive right at the airport to conduct any
aeronautical activities, including, but not limited to charter flights, pilot training, aircraft rental
and sightseeing, aerial photography, crop dusting, aerial advertising and surveying, air carrier
operations, aircraft sales and services, sale of aviation petroleum products whether or not
conducted in conjunction with other aeronautical activity, repair and maintenance of aircraft,
sale of aircraft parts, and any other activities which because of their direct relationship to the
operation of aircraft can be regarded as an aeronautical activity, and that it will terminate any
exclusive right to conduct an aeronautical activity now existing at such an airport before the
grant of any assistance under Title 49, United States Code.

24. Fee and Rental Structure.

It will maintain a fee and rental structure for the facilities and services at the airport which will
make the airport as self-sustaining as possible under the circumstances existing at the particular
airport, taking into account such factors as the volume of traffic and economy of collection. No part
of the Federal share of an airport development, airport planning or noise compatibility project for
which a Grant is made under Title 49, United States Code, the Airport and Airway Improvement Act
of 1982, the Federal Airport Act or the Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970 shal! be
included in the rate basis in establishing fees, rates, and charges for users of that airport.

Airport Spansors Assurances Pzge 110f19




3-12-0072-037-2025

25, Airport Revenues.

a. All revenues generated by the airport and any local taxes on aviation fuel established after
December 30, 1987, will be expended by it for the capital or operating costs of the airport; the
local airport system; or other local facilities which are owned or operated by the owneror
operator of the airport and which are directly and substantially related to the actual air
transportation of passengers or property; or for noise mitigation purposes on or off the airport.
The following exceptions apply to this paragraph:

1. If covenants or assurances in debt obligations issued before September 3, 1982, by the
owner or operator of the airport, or provisions enacted before September 3, 1982, in
governing statutes controlling the owner or operator's financing, provide for the use of the
revenues from any of the airport owner or operator's facilities, including the airport, to
support not only the airport but also the airport owner or operator's general debt
obligations or other facilities, then this limitation on the use of all revenues generated by
the airport {and, in the case of a public airport, local taxes on aviation fuel) shall not apply.

2. If the Secretary approves the sale of a privately owned airport to a public sponsor and
provides funding for any portion of the public sponsor’s acquisition of {and, this limitation
on the use of all revenues generated by the sale shall not apply to certain proceeds from
the sale. This is conditioned on repayment to the Secretary by the private owner of an
amount equal to the remaining unamortized portion {amortized over a 20-year period) of
any airport improvement grant made to the private owner for any purpose other than land
acquisition on or after October 1, 1996, plus an amount equal to the federal share of the
current fair market value of any land acquired with an airport impravement grant made to
that airport on or after October 1, 1996.

3. Certain revenue derived from or generated by mineral extraction, production, lease, or
other means at a general aviation airport (as defined at 49 U.S.C. 47102), if the FAA
determines the airport sponsor meets the requirements set forth in Section 813 of Public
Law 112-95.

b. As part of the annual audit required under the Single Audit Act of 1984, the sponsor will direct
that the audit will review, and the resulting audit report will provide an opinion concerning, the
use of airport revenue and taxes in paragraph (a), and indicating whether funds paid or
transferred to the owner or operator are paid or transferred in a manner consistent with Title
49, United States Code and any other applicable provision of law, including any regulation
promulgated by the Secretary or Administrator.

c. Any civil penalties or other sanctions will be imposed for viclation of this assurance in
accordance with the provisions of 49 U.5.C. 47107,

26. Reports and Inspections.
It will:

a. submit to the Secretary such annual or special financial and operations reports as the Secretary
may reasonably request and make such reports available to the public; make available to the
public at reasonable times and places a report of the airport budget in a format prescribed by
the Secretary;

b. forairport development projects, make the airport and all airpert records and documents
affecting the airport, including deeds, leases, operation and use agreements, regulations and

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 12 of 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

other instruments, available for inspection by any duly authorized agent of the Secretary upon
reasonable request;

c. for noise compatibility program projects, make records and documents relating to the project
and continued compliance with the terms, conditions, and assurances of this Grant Agreement
including deeds, leases, agreements, regulations, and other instruments, available for
inspection by any duly authorized agent of the Secretary upon reasonable request; and

d. in aformat and time prescribed by the Secretary, provide to the Secretary and make available
to the public following each of its fiscal years, an annual report listing in detail:

1. all amounts paid by the airport to any other unit of government and the purposes for
which each such payment was made; and

2. all services and property provided by the airport to other units of government and the
amount of compensation received for provision of each such service and property.

27. Use by Government Aircraft.

it will make available all of the facilities of the airport developed with Federal financial assistance
and all those usable for landing and takeoff of aircraft to the United States for use by Government
aircraft in common with other aircraft at all times without charge, except, if the use by Government
aircraft is substantial, charge may be made for a reasonable share, proportional to such use, for the
cost of operating and maintaining the facilities used. Unless otherwise determined by the Secretary,
or otherwise agreed to by the sponsor and the using agency, substantial use of an airport by
Government aircraft will be considered to exist when operations of such aircraft are in excess of
those which, in the opinion of the Secretary, would unduly interfere with use of the landing areas
by other authorized aircraft, or during any calendar month that:

a. Five (5) or more Government aircraft are regularly based at the airport or on land adjacent
thereto; or

b. The total number of movements {counting each landing as a movement) of Government
aircraft is 300 or more, or the gross accumulative weight of Government aircraft using the
airport (the total movement of Government aircraft multiplied by gross weights of such
aircraft} is in excess of five million pounds.

28. Land for federal Facilities.

It will furnish without cost to the Federal Government for use in connection with any air traffic
contro! or air navigation activities, or weather-reporting and communication activities related to air
traffic control, any areas of land or water, or estate therein as the Secretary considers necessary or
desirable for construction, operation, and maintenance at Federal expense of space or facilities for
such purposes. Such areas or any portion thereof will be made available as provided herein within
four months after receipt of a written request from the Secretary.

29. Airport Layout Plan.

a. The airport owner or operator will maintain a current airport layout plan of the airport
showing:

1. boundaries of the airport and all proposed additions thereto, together with the boundaries

of all offsite areas owned or controlled by the sponsor for airport purposes and proposed
additions thereto;

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 130f 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

2. the location and nature of all existing and proposed airport facilities and structures (such
as runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal buildings, hangars and roads), including all
proposed extensions and reductions of existing airport facilities;

3. the location of all existing and proposed non-aviation areas and of all existing
improvements thereon; and

4. all proposed and existing access points used to taxi aircraft across the airport’s property
boundary.

b. Subject to subsection 49 U.5.C. 47107(x), the Secretary will review and approve or disapprove
the plan and any revision or modification of the plan before the plan, revision, or medification
takes effect.

c. The owner or operator will not make or allow any alteration in the airport or any of its facilities
unless the alteration—

1. is outside the scope of the Secretary’s review and approval authority as set forth in
subsection (x); or

2. complies with the portions of the plan approved by the Secretary.

d. When the airport owner or operator makes a change or alteration in the airport or the
facilities which the Secretary determines adversely affects the safety, utility, or efficiency of
any federally owned, leased, or funded property on or off the airport and which is not in
conformity with the airport layout plan as approved by the Secretary, the owner or operator
will, if requested, by the Secretary:

1. eliminate such adverse effect in a manner approved by the Secretary; or

2. bear all costs of relocating such property or its replacement to a site acceptable to the
Secretary and of restoring the property or its replacement to the level of safety, utility,
efficiency, and cost of operation that existed before the alteration was made, except in
the case of a relocation or replacement of an existing airport facility due to a change in the
Secretary’s design standards beyond the control of the airport sponsor.

30. Civil Rights.

It will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that no person in the United States shall, on
the grounds of race, color, and national origin {including limited English proficiency) in accordance
with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.5.C. 2000d to 2000d-4); creed and
sex per 49 U.S5.C. 47123 and related requirements; age per the Age Discrimination Act of 1375 and
related requirements; or disability per the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and reiated
requirements, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise
subjected to discrimination in any program and activity conducted with, or benefiting from, funds
received from this Grant.

a. Using the definitions of activity, facility, and program as found and defined in 49 CFR 21.23(b)
and 21.23(e), the sponsor will facilitate all programs, operate all facilities, or conduct all
programs in compliance with all non-discrimination requirements imposed by or pursuant to
these assurances.

b. Applicability

Abrport Sponsors Assurances Page 140f 19




e.

3-12-0072-037-2025

1. Programs and Activities. If the sponsor has received a grant (or other federal assistance)
for any of the sponsor’s program or activities, these requirements extend to all of the
sponsor’s programs and activities.

2. Facilities. Where it receives a grant or other federal financial assistance to construct,
expand, renovate, remodel, alter, or acquire a facility, or part of a facility, the assurance
extends to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection therewith.

3. Real Property. Where the sponsor receives a grant or other Federal financial assistance in
the form of, or for the acquisition of real property or an interest in real property, the
assurance will extend to rights to space on, over, or under such property.

Duration.

The sponsor agrees that it is obligated to this assurance for the period during which Federal
financial assistance is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is
to provide, or is in the form of, personal property, or real property, or interest therein, or
structures or improvements thereon, in which case the assurance obligates the sponsor, or any
transferee for the longer of the following periods:

1. Solong as the airport is used as an airport, or for another purpose involving the provision
of similar services or benefits; or

2. Solong as the sponsor retains ownership or possession of the property.

Required Solicitation Language. It wili include the following notification in all solicitations for
bids, Requests For Proposals for work, or material under this Grant Agreement and in all
proposals for agreements, including airport concessions, regardless of funding source:

“The Sebring Airport Authority, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 {42 U.5.C. 2000d to 2000d-4} and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders or
offerors that it will affirmatively ensure that for any contract entered into pursuant to this
advertisement, all businesses will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in
response to this invitation and no businesses will be discriminated against on the grounds of
race, color, national origin {including limited English proficiency), creed, sex, age, or disability
in consideration for an award.”

Required Contract Provisions.

1. 1t will insert the non-discrimination contract clauses requiring compliance with the acts and
regulations relative to non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the
Department of Transportation (DOT), and incorporating the acts and regulations into the
contracts by reference in every contract or agreement subject to the non-discrimination in
Federally-assisted programs of the DOT acts and regulations.

2. It will include a list of the pertinent non-discrimination authorities in every contract that is
subject to the non-discrimination acts and regulations.

3. It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses as a covenant running with the land, in
any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real property,
structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a sponsor.

4. It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses prohibiting discrimination on the basis of
race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), creed, sex, age, or

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 15 of 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

disability as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, license, permits,
or similar instruments entered into by the sponsor with other parties:

a. For the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the
applicable activity, project, or program; and

b. For the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property
acquired or improved under the applicable activity, project, or program.

f. it will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the
Secretary to give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees,
contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in interest, and other
participants of Federal financial assistance under such program will comply with all
requirements imposed or pursuant to the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.

g. It agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any
matter arising under the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.

31. Disposal of Land.

a. For land purchased under a grant for airport noise compatibility purposes, including land
serving as a noise buffer, it will dispose of the land, when the land is no longer needed for such
purposes, at fair market value, at the earliest practicable time. That portion of the proceeds of
such disposition which is proportionate to the United States' share of acquisition of such la nd
will be, at the discretion of the Secretary, (1) reinvested in another project at the airport, or (2)
transferred to another eligible airport as prescribed by the Secretary. The Secretary shall give
preference to the following, in descending order:

1. Reinvestment in an approved noise compatibility project;

2. Reinvestment in an approved project that is eligible for grant funding under 49 U.S.C.
47117(e);

3. Reinvestment inan approved airport development project that is eligible for grant funding
under 49 U.S.C. 47114, 47115, or 47117,

4, Transfer to an eligible sponsor of another public airport to be reinvested in an approved
noise compatibility project at that airport; or

5. Payment to the Secretary for deposit in the Airport and Airway Trust Fund.

If land acquired under a grant for noise compatibility purposes is leased at fair market value
and consistent with noise buffering purposes, the lease will not be considered a disposal of the
land. Revenues derived from such a lease may be used for an approved airport development
project that would otherwise be eligible for grant funding or any permitted use of airport
revenue.

b. For land purchased under a grant for airport development purposes (other than noise
compatibility), it will, when the land is no longer needed for airport purposes, dispose of such
land at fair market value or make available to the Secretary an amount equal to the United
States' proportionate share of the fair market value of the land. That portion of the proceeds of
such disposition which is proportionate to the United States' share of the cost of acquisition of
such land will, upon application to the Secretary, be reinvested or transferred to another
eligible airport as prescribed by the Secretary. The Secretary shall give preference to the
following, in descending order:

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 160f 19




32.

33.

34,

35.

3-12-0072-037-2025

1. Reinvestment in an approved noise compatibility project;

2. Reinvestment in an approved project that is eligible for grant funding under 49 U.5.C.
47117(e);

3. Reinvestment in an approved airport development project that is eligible for grant funding
under 49 U.S.C. 47114, 47115, or 47117,

4. Transfer to an eligible sponsor of another public airport to be reinvested in an approved
noise compatibility project at that airport; or

5. Payment to the Secretary for deposit in the Airport and Airway Trust Fund.

c. Land shall be considered to be needed for airport purposes under this assurance if (1) it may be
needed for aeronautical purposes (including runway protection zones) or serve as noise buffer
land, and (2) the revenue from interim uses of such land contributes to the financial
self-sufficiency of the airport. Further, land purchased with a grant received by an airport
operator or owner before December 31, 1987, will be considered to be needed for airport
purposes if the Secretary or Federal agency making such grant before December 31, 1987, was
notified by the operator or owner of the uses of such land, did not object to such use, and the
land continues to be used for that purpose, such use having commenced no later than
December 15, 1989.

d. Disposition of such land under (a), (b), or (c) will be subject to the retention or reservation of
any interest or right therein necessary to ensure that such land will only be used for purposes
which are compatible with noise levels associated with operation of the airport.

Engineering and Design Services.

If any phase of such project has received Federal funds under Chapter 471 subchapter 1 of Title
49 U.S.C., it will award each contract, or sub-contract for program management, construction
management, planning studies, feasibility studies, architectural services, preliminary engineering,
design, engineering, surveying, mapping or related services in the same manner as a contract for
architectural and engineering services is negotiated under Chapter 11 of Title 40 U S.C,, or an
equivalent qualifications-based requirement prescribed for or by the sponsor of the airport.

Foreign Market Restrictions.

It will not allow funds provided under this Grant to be used to fund any project which uses any
product or service of a foreign country during the period in which such foreign country is listed by
the United States Trade Representative as denying fair and equitable market opportunities for
products and suppliers of the United States in procurement and construction.

Policies, Standards, and Specifications.

It will carry out any project funded under an Airport Improvement Program Grant in accordance
with policies, standards, and specifications approved by the Secretary including, but not limited to,
current FAA Advisory Circulars (https://www.faa.gov/sites/faa.gov/files/aip-pfc-checklist 0.pdf) for
AIP projects as of June 03, 2025.

Relocation and Real Property Acquisition.

a. It will be guided in acquiring real property, to the greatest extent practicable under State law,
by the land acquisition policies in Subpart B of 49 CFR Part 24 and will pay or reimburse
property owners for necessary expenses as specified in Subpart B.

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 17 0f 19


https://www.faa.gov/sites/faa.gov/files/aip-pfc-checklist_O.pdf

3-12-0072-037-2025

b. It will provide a relocation assistance program offering the services described in Subpart C of 49
CFR Part 24 and fair and reasonable relocation payments and assistance to displaced persons as
required in Subpart D and E of 49 CFR Part 24.

c. It will make available within a reasonable period of time prior to displacement, comparable
replacement dwelings to displaced persons in accordance with Subpart E of 49 CFR Part 24.

36, Access By Intercity Buses.

The airport owner or operator will permit, to the maximum extent practicable, intercity buses or
other modes of transportation to have access to the airport; however, it has no obligation to fund
special facilities for intercity buses or for other modes of transportation.

37. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises.

The sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex, in the award
and performance of any DOT-assisted contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26, or in the award and
performance of any concession activity contract covered by 49 CFR Part 23. In addition, the sponsor
shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the administration of its
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and Airport Concessions Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise (ACDBE) programs or the requirements of 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26. The sponsor shall take
all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the
award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts, and/or concession contracts. The sponsor’s
DBE and ACDBE programs, as required by 49 CFR Parts 26 and 23, and as approved by DOT, are
incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of these programs is a legal obligation
and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. Upaon notification
to the sponsor of its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impose
sanctions as provided for under Parts 26 and 23 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for
enforcement under 18 U.5.C. § 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31
U.S.C. §5 3801-3809, 3812).

38. Hangar Construction.

If the airport owner or operator and a person who owns an aircraft agree that a hangar is to be
constructed at the airport for the aircraft at the aircraft owner’s expense, the airport owner or
operator will grant to the aircraft owner for the hangar a long term lease that is subject to such
terms and conditions on the hangar as the airport owner or operator may impose.

39, Competitive Access.

a. If the airport owner or operator of a medium or large hub airport (as defined in 49 U.S.C.
§ 47102) has been unable to accommeodate one or more requests by an air carrier for access to
gates or other facilities at that airport in order to allow the air carrier to provide service to the
airport or to expand service at the airport, the airport owner or operator shall transmit a report
to the Secretary that:

1. Describes the requests;
2. Provides an explanation as to why the requests could not be accommodated; and

3. Provides a time frame within which, if any, the airport will be able to accommodate the
requests.

Airport Spansors Assurances Page 18 of 19




3-12-0072-037-2025

b. Such report shall be due on either February 1 or August 1 of each year if the airport has been

unable to accommodate the request(s) in the six-month period prior to the applicable due
date.

40.Access to Leaded Aviation Gasoline

a.

If 100-octane low lead aviation gasoline {100LL) was made available at an airport, at any time
during calendar year 2022, an airport owner or operator may not restrict or prohibit the sale of,
or self-fueling with 100-octane low lead aviation gasoline.

This requirement remains until the earlier of December 31, 2030, or the date on which the
airport or any retail fuel seller at the airport makes available an unleaded aviation gasoline that
has been authorized for use by the FAA as a replacement for 100-octane low lead aviation
gasoline for use in nearly all piston-engine aircraft and engine models; and meets either an
industry consensus standard or other standard that facilitates the safe use, production, and
distribution of such unleaded aviation gasoline, as determined appropriate by the FAA.

An airport owner or operator understands and agrees, that any violation of this grant assurance
is subject to civil penalties as provided for in 49 U.5.C. § 46301(a)(8).

Airport Sponsors Assurances Page 19 of 19




Sebring Airport Authority
Agenda Item Summary

Meeting Date: July 17, 2025

Presenter: Andrew Bennett
Agenda Item: RFP 25-07 — Fuel Farm Improvements — Award and Contract
Background: On May 27, 2025, the Sebring Airport Authority received two (2)

bids for RFP 25-07 — Fuel Farm Improvements as follows:

1. Don Wood, Inc. = $863,000.00
2. MDM Services, Inc. = $728,843.55

The low bidder is MDM Services, Inc. = $728,843.55.

MDM Services, Inc. submitted the lowest responsive bid in the amount of $728,843.55
for the total project (Base Bid with Alternative). We have reviewed the two bidder’s
submittal packages and both companies met all of the required criteria. A reference
check was conducted for the lowest bidder, MDM Services, Inc. and the responses
were positive from all the parties. Based on the review of the bid summary and bidder’'s
submittal packages, it is the engineers’ recommendation to award the contract to MDM
Services, Inc. Grant Funding Received:

FAA Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Airport Infrastructure Grant (AIG) =
$540,222.00

FDOT Public Transportation Grant Agreement 455926-1-94-01 = $301,828.00
Total Grant Funding = $842,050.00

AtkinsRealis recommends award of the contract to MDM Services, Inc. for the base and
the bid alternate amounts totaling Seven Hundred Twenty-Eight Thousand, Eight
Hundred Forty-Three Dollars, and 55/100 ($728,843.55).

Requested Motion: Move to approve and authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman
and Secretary or Assistant Secretary to execute contract.

Board Action:

Approved X

Denied

Tabled



V" AtkinsRealis

May 30, 2025

Mr. Andrew Bennett

Executive Director
128 Authority Lane
Sebring, FL 33870

RE: Sebring Regional Airport Fuel Farm Improvements
Bid No. 25-07

Bid Award Recommendation

Dear Mr. Bennett,

On May 27, 2025, the Sebring Airport Authority received two (2) bids for the construction
of the referenced project. The names, total fee for the contractors, and Engineer’s

Estimate are as follows:

Don Wood, Inc.

MDM Services, Inc.

Engineer's Opinion

Base Bid $490,000.00 $443,989.00 $700,000.00
Bid Alternate $373,000.00 $284,854.55 $575,000.00
Total Project Bid Price $863,000.00 $728,843.55 $1,275,000.00

The Airport has elected to award the base bid and the bid alternate. Per the instruction to
bidders, each bid was evaluated to determine that it provided references, similar work
experience, financial ability, and a bid guaranty.

Similar Experience

References

Bid Guaranty

: Ranking
Company Name Total Bid
Don Wood, Inc. $ 863,000.00 Yes Yes Yes 2
MDM Services, Inc. | $ 728,843.55 Yes Yes Yes 1




V" AtkinsReéalis

MDM Services, Inc. submitted the lowest responsive bid in the amount of
$728,843.55 for the total project (Base Bid with Alternative). We have reviewed the two
bidder's submittal packages and both companies met all of the required criteria. A
reference check was conducted for the lowest bidder, MDM Services, Inc. and the
responses were positive from all the parties. Based on the review of the bid summary and
bidder’s submittal packages, it is the engineers’ recommendation to award the contract to
MDM Services, Inc.

The lowest, qualified bid is approximately 42.8% lower than the engineer's comparable
opinion of probable cost.

Sincerely,

Heather Meyer
Project Manager

c.c. Andrew Bennett
Jami Olive

AtkinsRéalis, Inc. ¢ 1514 Broadway Suite 202 e Fort Myers, Florida 33901 e Telephone: 813.697.3208
www.atkinsrealis.com



www.atkinsrealis.com

SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this 1 7th day of J u 1y . 2025.
by and between the SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY (the "Owner”) and MDM SERVICES. INC.
("Contractor") concerns the project entitlted FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Owner has a project entitled FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS, and Contractor is
qualified to perform said construction (the "Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid for the Project
at the Sebring Regional Airport and the Owner has awarded the Project to the Contractor.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of $728.843.55 (Seven Hundred Twenty-Eight
Thousand. Eight Hundred Forty-Three Dollars, and Fifty-Five Cents) the mutual promises and covenants
contained herein, as well as other good and valuable consideration not specifically mentioned, the parties agree
as follows:

1. The Contractor, for and in consideration ofthe payments hereinafter specified and agreed to be

made by the Owner, hereby covenants and agrees to furnish and deliver all materials required, to do and perform
all the work and labor, in a satisfactory and workmanlike manner, required to complete the Project within the
time specified, in strict and entire conformity with the Bid documents for Bid No. 25-07. Plans prepared by
AtkinsRealis, Technical Specifications and other Contract documents (Proposal documents. Legal Provisions
and Special Provisions) for the Base Bid and Bid Alternate under Bid No. 25-07 on file at the Office of the
Executive Director. Sebring Airport Authority, Sebring Regional Airport. 128 Authority Lane. Sebring. Florida
33870. which are duly approved by the Owner and which said Plans, Specifications and other Contract documents
are hereby made part of this Contract as fully and with the same effects as if the same had been set forth at
length in the body of this Contract.

2. The Contractor agrees to make payment of all proper charges for labor and materials required

in the aforementioned work, and to defend, indemnify and save harmless the Owner and the City of Sebring,
Florida and all its officers and agents against and from all suits and costs of every kind and description, and
from all damages to which the said Owner and the City of Sebring. Florida or any of their officers, agents or
servants may be put. by reason of injury or death to persons or injury to property of other resulting from the
performance of said work, or through the negligence of the Contractor, or through any improper or defective
machinery, implements or appliances used by the Contractor in the aforesaid work, or through any act of
omission on the part of the Contractor, or his or her agent or agents, employees or servants.

3. The Owner hereby agrees to pay to the Contractor for the said work, when fully
completed, the total sum of $728,843.55.00 (Seven Hundred Twenty-Eight Thousand. Eight Hundred Forty-
Three Dollars, and Fifty-Five Cents) (the said sum being the total of the Contractor's base bid with bid
alternate, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes), subject to such additions
and deductions as may be provided for in the Contract Documents. In the event the bid contains multiple
pay items, it is understood that the amount to be paid shall be the total based on the unit price, together with
lump sum prices, contained in said bid, for the work actually completed.

4. Payments on accounts will be made as provided for in the Contract Documents.

5. The Owner may elect to issue a "soft” Notice to Proceed to authorize the Contractor to purchase
"long lead time" materials for the Project. The Owner will issue a Notice to Proceed to authorize
Contractor to begin work on the Project. Contractor shall be responsible for completing the Project in an
expedited manner to achieve substantial completion within Sixty (60) calendar days from the date of the

1



SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

Notice to Proceed and final completion within Thirty (30) calendar days from the date of substantial
completion. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques utilized in the design
and construction.

5.1 Time is of the essence in this contract. Contractor and Owner acknowledge that in the event that
Contractor fails to complete the Project by the time frames established herein, Owner will incur
substantial damages by loss of use and other damages and the extent of such damages shall be
incapable of accurate measurement. Nonetheless, the parties acknowledge that on the date of
this contract, the amount of liquidated damages set forth below represents a good faith estimate
as to the actual potential damages that Owner would incur as a result of final completion of the
Project. Such liquidated damages shall be the sole and exclusive remedy of Owner for late
completion of the Project and Owner hereby waives all other remedies available at law or in
equity with respect to losses resulting from late completion. The amount of liquidated damages
calculated hereunder does not include any penalty.

5.2 If Contractor fails to achieve substantial completion of the Project on or before the date set
forth in paragraph 5 above, as may be extended by Change Order, Contractor shall pay to
Owner liquidated damages in the amount of One Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars
(81,500.00) per calendar day for each calendar day the date of substantial completion is delayed
beyond the date required in paragraph 5 above.

5.3 After substantial completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse or fail to achieve final
completion within the time period specified in paragraph 5, as may be extended by Change
Order, Contractor shall pay Owner Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($500.00) for each
calendar day that final completion is delayed beyond the date required in paragraph 5 above.

5.4 Either party shall be excused for delay in the performance of any obligations hereunder when
such delay is the result of or attributable to the elements, acts of God, governmental authority,
delays in transportation, strikes or any other cause beyond their reasonable control, provided,
however, that in any such event, both parties agree to make a good faith effort to meet their
obligations hereunder.

6. The Contractor shall submit bills for fees or other compensation for services or expenses in
detail sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post audit thereof.

7. The Owner may unilaterally cancel this Contract and the goods and services thereunder in
the event that the Contractor fails and refuses to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, or other
material subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, made or received by the Contractor in
conjunction with this Contract.

8. Any unit of provision of goods and services must be approved in writing by the Owner or its
agent prior to payment.

9. The Contract documents provide the criteria and the final date for completion of the Project.

10. This Contract has been executed by the parties prior to the rendering of any goods or services
by the Contractor.

11. The Contractor shall provide separate payment and performance bonds (the “Bonds”) to the
Owner meeting the requirements of §255.05, Florida Statutes, each in the full sum of the contract price,
$728,843.55 (Seven Hundred Twenty-Eight Thousand, Eight Hundred Forty-Three Dollars, and Fifty-Five
Cents) and shall cause the Bonds to be recorded with the Notice of Commencement in the Public Records of
Highlands County, Florida.




SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

12. This Contract shall be subordinate to any rule, regulation, order or law of the United States of
America, the State of Florida or City of Sebring, Florida.

13. The Owner will use its best efforts to obtain the approval of the State of Florida and the Federal
Aviation Administration to this contract. If the Owner determinates that the same requires modifications in
order to qualify for funding for the Project, the Contractor shall consent or the Owner shall have the right to
terminate the Contract.

14. The Contractor and its employees shall promptly observe and comply with then applicable
provisions of all Federal, State and local laws, rules and regulations which govern or apply to the goods and
services rendered by Contractor hereunder, or to the wages paid by Contractor to its employees. Contractors
shall require all of its subcontractors to comply with the provisions of this paragraph.

15. Contractor shall procure and keep in force during the term of this contract all necessary licenses,
registrations, certificates, permits and other authorizations as are required by law in order for Contractor to render
its services hereunder. Contractor shall require all of its subcontractors to comply with the provisions of this

paragraph.

16. All remedies provided in this Contract shall be deemed cumulative and additional and not in
lieu of or excluding or each other or of any other remedy available to any party at law or in equity. In the event
one party shall prevail in any action (including appellate proceedings), reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other
actual and reasonable expenses incurred in the defense and/or prosecution of any legal or arbitration
proceedings, including, but not limited to, those for paralegal, investigative and legal support services and actual
fees charged by expert witnesses for testimony and analysis, incurred by the prevailing party referable thereto.

17. Warranty.

17.1  Contractor warrants to Owner that all materials and equipment furnished under this Contract
will be new unless otherwise specified, and that all Work will be of good quality, free from
faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract Documents. All Work not so
conforming to these standards may be considered defective.

17.2  If required by Owner, Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and
quality of materials and equipment.

17.3  The warranty provided in this paragraph shall be in addition to and not in limitation of any other
warranty or remedy required by law or by the Contract Documents.

17.4  Unless a longer period is otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, Contractor warrants
that the Work shall be free from defects in material and workmanship for a period of one year
from the date of substantial completion. Contractor shall promptly repair all such defects at
Contractor’s expense. The term “defects” shall not be construed as embracing damage arising
from Owner’s misuse or negligence, acts of God or normal wear and tear.

18. Taxes. Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use and other similar taxes required by law
resulting from the Work which are in effect as of the date of execution of this Contract.

19. Permits, Fees and Notices.

19.1  Contractor shall secure and pay for all permits and licenses necessary for the proper execution
and completion of the Work which are in effect as of the date of execution of the Contract,
excluding, however, any and all manner of impact and development fees, governmental or
otherwise, which shall be paid by Owner.

19.2  Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and

3



SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the Work. If either Contractor or
Owner observes that any of the Contract Documents are at variance therewith in any respect, it
shall promptly notify the other party, in writing, and any necessary changes shall be adjusted
by appropriate modification. If Contractor performs any Work which is contrary to such laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations in effect as of the date of execution of this Contract, then
Contractor shall assume full responsibility therefor and shall bear all costs attributable thereto.

20. Responsibility for Those Performing the Work. Contractor shall be responsible to Owner for
the acts and omissions of all its employees and all subcontractors, their agents and employees and all other
persons performing any of the Work under a contract with Contractor.

21. Drawings and Specifications at the Site. Contractor shall maintain at the site for Owner one
copy of all drawings, specifications, addenda, approved shop drawings, change order and other Modifications,
in good order and marked to record all changes made during construction. These shall be available to Owner.
Upon completion of the Work, Contractor shall deliver to Owner one set of blacklined drawings and one copy
of drawings on electronic media incorporating all changes made throughout the project and each marked Record
Drawings.

22. Cleaning Up. Contractor shall at all times keep the premises free from accumulation of waste
materials or rubbish caused by Contractor’s operations. At the completion of the Work, Contractor shall remove
all waste materials and rubbish from and about the Work as well as its tools, construction equipment, machinery
and surplus materials. If Contractor fails to clean up, Owner may do so and the cost thereof shall be charged to
Contractor.

23. Safety.

23.1  Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions
and programs in connection with the Work.

23.2  Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all reasonable
protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:

A. All employees on the Work and all other persons who may be affected thereby;

B. All the Work, all materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in
storage on or off the site, under the care, custody or control of Contractor or
any of its subcontractors or sub-subcontractors; and

C. Other property at the site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns,
walks, pavements, roadways, structures and utilities not designed for removal,
relocation or replacement in the course of construction.

24, Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and orders of
any public authority having jurisdiction for the safety of persons or property or to protect them from damage,
injury or loss. It shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and progress of the Work, all
reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including, posting danger signs and other warnings against
hazards, promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent utilities.

25. Contractor’s Liability Insurance. Contractor shall procure and maintain the following
described insurance, except for coverages specifically waived by Owner, on policies and with insurers
acceptable to Owner. These insurance requirements shall not limit the liability of Contractor. Owner does not
represent these types or amounts of insurance to be sufficient or adequate to protect Contractor’s interests or
liabilities, but are merely minimums. Except for workers compensation and professional liability, Contractor’s
insurance policies shall be endorsed to name Owner as an additional insured to the extent of Owner’s interests
arising from this agreement. Except for workers compensation, Contractor waives its right of recovery against

4



SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

Owner, including any right of subrogation. Contractor’s deductibles/self-insured retentions shall be disclosed
to Owner and may be disapproved by Owner. They shall be reduced or eliminated at the option of Owner.
Contractor is responsible for the amount of any deductible or self- insured retention. Insurance required of
Contractor or any other insurance of Contractor shall be considered primary, and insurance of Owner shall be
considered excess, as may be applicable to claims which arise out of the Hold Harmless, Insurance, Certificates
of Insurance and any Additional Insurance provisions herein.

25.1 Workers Compensation Coverage. Contractor shall purchase and maintain workers
compensation insurance for all workers compensation obligations imposed by state law and
employer’s liability limits of at least $100,000 each accident and $100,000 each
employee/$500,000 policy limit for disease. Contractor shall also purchase any other coverages
required by law for the benefit of employees.

25.2 Commercial General Liability Coverage - Occurrence Form Required. Commercial General
Liability Insurance. Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain a policy or policies of
commercial general liability insurance with respect to the operations conducted on the Airport
premises with the premiums thereon fully paid on or before due date, issued by and binding
upon some insurance company approved by Owner, such insurance to afford minimum
protection of not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for
bodily injury, property damage or combination thereof. This shall include premises and/or
operations; independent contractors; products and completed operations and contractual
liability. Owner shall be listed as an additional insured on Contractor’s policy or policies of
commercial general liability insurance and Contractor shall provide Owner with current
Certificates of Insurance evidencing Contractor’s compliance with this paragraph.

25.3 Pollution and Remediation Legal Liability. Pollution and Remediation Legal Liability insurance
in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per claim insuring the Authority against liability for
bodily injury, property damage, legal defense and remediation arising out of the operation and
occupancy of the Premises

25.4  Business Auto Liability Coverage. Business Auto Liability coverage is to include bodily injury
and property damage arising out of ownership, maintenance or use of any auto, including
owned, non-owned and hired automobiles and employee non- ownership use, including
coverage for all sub-contractors and their automobiles.

25.5 Excess or Umbrella Liability Coverage. Umbrella Liability insurance is preferred, but an
Excess Liability equivalent may be allowed. Whichever type of coverage is provided, it should
be at least “following form” and shall not be more restrictive than the underlying insurance
policy coverages.

25.6  Builders Risk Coverage. Builders Risk insurance is to be purchased to cover subject property for
special perils (all risks or equivalent) of loss (including theft and sinkhole), subject to a waiver
of coinsurance, and covering on-site and off-site storage, transit and installation risks as
indicated in the Installation Floater and Motor Truck Cargo insurance described hereafter, if
such coverages are not separately provided. If flood and/or earthquake risks exist, flood and/or
earthquake insurance are to be purchased. If there is loss of income, extra expense and/or
expediting expense exposure, such coverage is to be purchased. If boiler and machinery risks
are involved, boiler and machinery insurance, including coverage for testing, is to be purchased.
The Builders Risk insurance is to be endorsed to cover the interests of all parties, including
Owner and all contractors and subcontractors. The insurance is to be endorsed to cover testing
and to grant permission to occupy.




SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

25.7 Installation Floater Coverage. Installation Floater insurance is to be purchased when Builder’s
Risk insurance is inappropriate, or when Builder’s Risk insurance will not respond, to cover
damage or destruction to renovations, repairs or equipment being installed or otherwise being
handled or stored by Contractor, including off-site storage, transit and installation. The amount
of coverage should be adequate to provide full replacement value of the property, repairs,
additions or equipment being installed, otherwise being handled or stored on or off premises.
All risks coverage is preferred.

25.8 EVIDENCE/CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Required insurance shall be documented in
Certificates of Insurance. New Certificates of Insurance are to be provided to Owner at
least 15 days prior to coverage renewals. If requested by Owner, Contractor shall furnish
complete copies of Contractor’s insurance policies, forms and endorsements. For Commercial
General Liability coverage Contractor shall, at the option of Owner, provide an indication of
the amount of claims payments or reserves chargeable to the aggregate amount of liability
coverage. Receipt of certificates or other documentation of insurance or policies or copies of
policies by Owner, or by any of its representatives, which indicate less coverage than required
does not constitute a waiver of Contractor’s obligation to fulfill the insurance requirements
herein.

26. Change Orders.

26.1  Owner, without invalidating the Contract, may order changes in the Work within the general
scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, the Contract Sum
and the Contract Time being adjusted accordingly. All such Changes in the Work shall be
authorized by Change Order and shall be executed under the applicable conditions of the
Contract Documents.

26.2 A Change Order is a written order to Contractor signed by Owner, issued after the execution of
the Contract, authorizing a Change in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Sum or the
Contract Time. The Contract Sum and the Contract Time may be changed only by a Change
Order.

26.3 The cost or credit to Owner resulting from a Change in the Work shall be determined in one or
more of the following ways:

A. By mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized,;

B. By unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed
upon; or

C. By cost and a mutual acceptable fixed or percentage fee.

26.4  If none of the methods set forth in paragraph 25.3 thereof is agreed upon, Contractor shall
promptly proceed with the Work involved. The cost of such Work shall then be determined on
the basis of Contractor’s reasonable expenditures and savings, including, in the case of any
increase in the Contract Sum, a reasonable allowance for overhead and profit. In such case,
Contractor shall keep and present an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting
data. The amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any deletion or change
which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease as confirmed
by Contractor’s records. When both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the
allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of net increase, if any.



SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

26.5 Should concealed conditions encountered in the performance of the Work below the surface of
the ground be at variance with the conditions indicated by the Contract Documents or should
unknown physical conditions below the surface of the ground of an unusual nature, differing
materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of
the character provided for in this Contract, be encountered, the guaranteed maximum cost shall
be equitably adjusted by Change Order upon claim by either party made within a reasonable
time after the first observance of the condition.

26.6  If Contractor claims that additional cost or time is involved because of any written order for a
Change in the Work issued pursuant to this section, Contractor shall make such claim as
provided herein.

27. Claims for Additional Cost or Time. If Contractor wishes to make a claim for an increase in
the Contract Sum or an extension in the Contract time, Contractor shall give Owner written notice thereof within
seven (7) days after the occurrence of the event giving rise to such claim. This written notice shall be given by
Contractor before proceeding to execute the Work, except in an emergency endangering life or property in
which case Contractor shall proceed in accordance with paragraph 26.4 hereof. Any change in the Contract Sum
or Contract Time resulting from such claim shall be authorized by Change Order.

28. Correction of Work.

28.1  Prior to the date of substantial completion, Contractor shall promptly correct all Work
determined to be defective or failing to conform to the Contract Documents whether or not
fabricated, installed or completed. Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting such rejected
Work.

28.2 If, within one year after the date of substantial completion or within such other period of time
as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the
Contract Documents, any Work is found to be defective, Contractor shall correct it promptly
after receipt of a written notice from Owner to do so unless Owner has previously given
Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. Owner shall give such notice promptly after
discovery of the condition.

29. Contractor represents and warrants unto Owner that no officer, employee or agent of Owner
has any interest, either directly or indirectly, in the business of Contractor to be conducted
hereunder. Contractor further represents and warrants to Owner that it has not employed or
retained any company person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Contractor,
to solicit or secure this Contract, that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company,
corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Contractor,
any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting
from the award or making of this Contract, and that it has not agreed, as an express or implied
condition for obtaining this Contract, to employ or retain the services of any firm or person in
connection with carrying out this Contract. Contractor assures that it will insert the above
provision in each of its subcontractor agreements relating to the services to be performed
hereunder.

30. Contractor for itself, its successors in interest and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof,
does hereby covenant and agree that (1) in the furnishing of services to Owner hereunder, no person on the
grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status shall be excluded from
participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination, and (2) Contractor shall
comply with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations,
Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-

7



SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

assisted programs of the Department of Transportation — effectuation of Title VI, Title VII, and Title VIII of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as said Regulations may be amended. Should Contractor authorize another
person, with Owner’s prior written consent, to provide services to Owner hereunder, Contractor shall obtain
from such person a written agreement pursuant to which such person shall, with respect to the services which he
or she is authorized to provide, undertake for such person the obligations contained in this section. Contractor
shall furnish an original agreement to Owner. Contractor will provide all information and reports required by
said Regulations, or by directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts,
other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by Owner of the United States of America
and the State of Florida Department of Transportation to be pertinent to ascertain whether there has been
compliance with said Regulations and directives. Where any information required of Contractor is in the
exclusive possession of another who ails or refused to furnish this information, Contractor shall so certify to
Owner and the United States or the State of Florida, Department of Transportation, as appropriate, and shall set
forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. Contractor shall remain obligated under this paragraph
until the expiration of three (3) years after the termination of the Contract. In the event of breach of any of the
above nondiscrimination covenants, Owner shall have the right to impose such contract sanctions as it or the
United States or State of Florida Department of Transportation or other applicable government entity may
determine to be appropriate, including with- holding payments to Contractor under this Contract or canceling,
terminating, or suspending this Contract in whole or in part. The rights granted to Owner by the foregoing
sentence shall not be effective until the procedures of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21 are
followed and completed, including exercise or expiration of appeal rights. Further, Contractor assures that it will
undertake an affirmative action program as required by 14 CFR Part 152, Subpart E, to insure that no person
shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status be excluded
from participating in any employment activities covered in 14 CFR Part 152, Subpart E. Such activities shall
include, but not be limited to, the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for
training, including apprenticeship. Contractor assures that no person shall be excluded on these grounds from
participating in or receiving the services of any program or activity covered by this subpart. Contractor assures
that it shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, or
familial status in the selection or retention of subcontractors. Contractor assures that it will require that its
covered subcontractors provide assurances to Contractor that they similarly require assurances from their
subcontractors, as required by CFR Part 152, Subpart E, to the same effect. Owner may, from time to time,
adopt additional or amended and nondiscrimination provides concerning the furnishing of services to the
Airport, and Contractor agrees that it will adopt any such requirements as a part of this Contract.

31. Policy. It is the policy of the Owner and the United States or State of Florida Department of
Transportation that disadvantaged business enterprises, as defined in the Owner’s Disadvantaged Business
Enterprises (“DBE”) Participation Policy for services as defined in 49 CFR Part 26 shall have equal opportunity
to participate in the performance of services contracts awarded by the Owner, including, but not limited to,
contracts financed in whole or in part with federal or State funds under this Contract. Consequently,
the requirements of the Owner’s DBE Participation Policy apply to this Contract.

32. Contract Assurance. The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race,
color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status in the performance of this contract. The
contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT
assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract,
which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate.

33. Prompt Payment. The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime
contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than fourteen (14) days from the receipt of each
payment the prime contractor receives from the Sebring Airport Authority. Payments not made to
subcontractors within fourteen (14) days of the prime contractor’s receipt of payment shall bear interest at the
rate of ten percent (10%) per annum, computed beginning on the 14" day after payment is due. The prime
contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within fourteen (14) days after the

8



SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

subcontractor’s work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above
referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the Sebring Airport
Authority. The right to receive interest on a payment under this section is not an exclusive remedy, and this
section does not modify any remedies available to any person under the terms of a contract or under any other
statute. Sebring Airport Authority shall have the right to terminate the services of any obligor who fails to make
prompt payment to any obligee. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

34. DBE Obligation. The Contractor agrees to ensure that DBE/MWBE firms shall have the
maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts for subcontractor services, including, but
not limited to, those projects financed in whole or in part with federal or state funds provided under this Contract.
In this regard, the Contractor and all subcontractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance
with the Owner’s DBE/MWBE Participation Policies to ensure that DBE/MWBE firms have the maximum
opportunity to compete for and perform contracts. The Contractor and any subcontractors shall not discriminate
on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status in the award and
performance of Owner contracts.

35. Government Agencies which are not Parties. Neither the Federal Aviation Administration nor
the Florida Department of Transportation has nor will they incur any obligations to Contractor under this
Contract.

36. Headings. The headings of the sections of this Contract are for the purpose of convenience
only and shall not be deemed to expand or limit the provisions contained in such sections.

37. Entire Agreement. This Contract, including all Contract documents, constitute the entire
agreement between the parties and shall supersede and replace all prior agreements or understandings, written
or oral, relating to the matters set forth herein.

38. Amendment. This Contract shall not be amended or modified other than in writing signed by
the parties hereto. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Amendments that are not being paid for, in whole or in
part, with funds granted by the United States or State of Florida Department of Transportation need not be
approved by them.

39. Validity; Enforcement. The validity, interpretation, construction and effect of this Contract
shall be in accordance with and be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. In the event any provision hereof
shall be finally determined to be unenforceable, or invalid, such unenforceability or invalidity shall not affect the
remaining provisions of this Contract which shall remain in full force and effect. This contract will be governed
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of Florida and shall be enforced only in the Tenth
Judicial Circuit, in and for Highlands County, Florida.

40. Public Entity Crimes. Pursuant to Section 287.133(2)(a), Florida Statutes, a Contractor who
has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a
bid on contract to provide services for a public entity, may not be awarded a Contract and may not transact
business with a public entity for services, the value of which exceeds $15,000.00 for a period of 36 months from
the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. Contractor hereby represents that it does not fall within
the class of persons identified in the previous sentence such that Contractor would be precluded from entering
this Contract.

41. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act Requirements. The Contractor will comply with
Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 327-330) as supplemented
by the Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part5). Under Section 103 of the Act, each contractor shall be
required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard workweek of 40 hours.
Work in excess of the standard workweek is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate not
less than one times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the workweek. Section

9




SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

107 of the Act is applicable to construction work and provides that no laborer or mechanic shall be required to
work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to health and
safety as determined under construction, safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor.
These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies, materials, or articles ordinarily available on the
open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. Appropriate clauses can be found
in AC 150/5100-6, Appendix 2.

42. Copeland “Anti — Kickback” Act Requirements. The Contractor will comply with the
Copeland “Anti — Kickback” Act (18 U.S.C. 374) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR
Part 3). This act provides that each contractor shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, persons
employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work to give up any part of their compensation.
The Owner must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal Aviation Administration. The
appropriate provision can be found in AC 150/5100 — 6, Appendix 6.

43. Breach of Contract Terms — Sanctions. Any violation or breach of the terms of this Contract
on the part of the Contractor or subcontractor may result in the suspension or termination of this Contract or
such other action, which may be necessary to enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement.

44, Trade Restriction Clauses. The Contractor or Subcontractor, by submission of an offer and/or
execution of a Contract, certifies that it:

a. is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the list
of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the Office of the United
States Trade Representative (USTR);

b. has not knowingly earned into any contract or subcontract for this project with a person
that is a citizen or national or a foreign country on said list, or is owned or controlled
directly or indirectly by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country on said list;

C. has not procured any product nor subcontracted for the supply of any product for use on
the project that is produced in a foreign country on said list.

Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in accordance with
49 CFR 30.17, no contract shall be awarded to a contractor or subcontractor who is unable to certify to the
above. If the Contractor knowingly procures or subcontracts for the supply of any product or services of a
foreign country on said list for use on the project, the Federal Aviation Administration may direct through the
Owner cancellation of the contract at no cost to the Government.

Further, the Contractor agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will
incorporate this provision for certification without modification in each contract and in all lower tier
subcontracts. The contractor may rely on the certification of a prospective subcontractor unless it has
knowledge that the certification is erroneous.

The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the sponsor if the contractor learns that its
certification or that of a subcontractor was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of
changed circumstances. The subcontractor agrees to provide written notice to the Contractor if at any time it
learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when making the
award. If it is later determined that the Contractor or subcontractor knowingly rendered an erroneous
certification, the Federal Aviation Administration may direct through the Owner cancellation of the Contract or
subcontract for default at no cost to the Government.

10



SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render, in good faith, the certification required by this provision. This knowledge and information of a
Contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course
of business dealings.

This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States of America and
the making of a false, factitious, or fraudulent certification may render the maker subject to prosecution under
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001.

45. Termination of Contract

a) The Owner may, by written notice, terminate this Contract in whole or in part at any time,
either for the Owner’s convenience or because of failure to fulfill the Contract obligations.
Upon receipt of such notice, services shall be immediately discontinued (unless the notice
directs otherwise) and all materials as may have been accumulated in performance of this
Contract, whether completed or in process, shall be delivered to the Owner.

b) If the termination is for the convenience of the Owner, an equitable adjustment in the
Contract price shall be made, but no amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on
unperformed services.

C) If the termination is due to failure to fulfill the contractor’s obligations, the Owner may
take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by contract or otherwise. In such
case, the Contractor shall be liable to the Owner for any additional cost occasioned to the
Sponsor thereby.

d) If, after notice of termination for failure to fulfill Contract obligations, it is determined that
the Contractor had not failed, the termination shall be deemed to have been effected for the
convenience of the Owner. In such event, adjustment in the Contract price shall be made
as provided in paragraph b of this clause.

e) The rights and remedies of the Owner provided in this clause are in addition to any other
rights and remedies provided by law or under this Contract.

46. Suspension and Debarment Requirements. The Contractor certifies, by submission of this
proposal or acceptance of this contract that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any
Federal department or agency. It further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause without
modification in all lower tier transaction, solicitations, proposals, contracts, and subcontracts. Where the
contractor or any lower tier participant is unable to certify to this statement, it shall attach an explanation to this
solicitation/proposal.

47. Veteran’s Preference. In the employment of labor (except in executive, administrative, and
supervisory positions), preference shall be given to veterans of the Vietnam-era and disabled veterans.
However, this preference may be given only where the individuals are available and qualified to perform the
work to which the employment relates.

48. Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. In any judicial or alternative dispute resolution technique action to
interpret or enforce any of the terms of this agreement, including any action by Owner to establish the right to
indemnification, the parties agree that the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees and
costs payable by the non-prevailing party, whether such fees and costs are incurred before, during or after trial,
appellate proceeding or post-judgment collections.

11



SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY

FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT

49. Florida Public Records laws. If the Contractor has questions regarding the application of Chapter
119, Florida Statutes to the Owner’s duty to provide Public Records relating to this agreement,
contact Mike Willingham, the custodian of Public Records at (863) 314- 1300, Mike(@sebring-
airport.com or 128 Authority Ln, Sebring, FL. 33870.

50. Notice. Whenever any notice is required or permitted by this contract to be given, such notice
shall be by certified mail or overnight delivery addressed to:

Contractor: SAA:

Dhivy Sathianathan Executive Director
President Mike Willingham

MDM Services, Inc. Sebring Airport Authority
1055 Kathleen Rd 128 Authority Lane
Lakeland. FL 33805 Sebring, FL 33870

Notice shall be considered given when deposited with the U.S. Postal Service or commercial carrier, postage
prepaid. Each party will be responsible for notifying the other of any change in their address.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner and Contractor hereto have executed this Contract on the day and
date first above written in three counterparts, each deemed an original contract.

WITNESSES: OWNER: SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY,
a body politic ar ? te of the State of Florida

4

O\(M\u SIm's ““/ Stdnley Wd\s ,Chalrman -
, Vice Chairman

Prm ame: Jami Olive
gz ;; 3 g§ Attest: W

‘ v_Cocl Cool . Sgeretirvoy
ame: _ApScecd Ve anedl @ "
Printed Name 0 \A;é&"éégfog@g,,

S0 5%
53 0%
(Corporate Sea . é e}

7 T / o/ % S 8
/// % \4/‘5 ad MIITTTTIO al
DL Jz/ Ui ® By: o il

Prmt(,d Name: Barrett Sathianathan, Vice President Printed Name: Dhivy Sathianathan

CONTRACTOR; MDM Senaces, fne. . F

Title: President

R

Printed Name: Kristopher Leong, Project Manager



mailto:Mike@sebrinu-airport.com
mailto:Mike@sebrinu-airport.com

LEGAL PROVISIONS

Miscellaneous

Funding. Owner will use its best efforts to obtain the approval of the State of Florida
and/or the FAA to this contract. If Owner determines that the same requires modifications in
order to qualify for funding for the Project, the Contractor shall consent or the Owner shall have
the right to terminate the Contract.  This Project is contingent upon receipt of funding.

Licensing. Contractor shall procure and keep in force during the term of this contract all
necessary licenses, registrations, certificates, permits and other authorizations as are required by
law in order for Contractor to render its services hereunder. Contractor shall require all of its
subcontractors to comply with the provisions of this paragraph.

Contractor grants Owner an irrevocable license to utilize the plans and specifications
generated by Contractor for this Project.

E-Verify.
(a) Beginning January 1, 2021, every public employer, contractor, and subcontractor shall
register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired
employees. A public employer, contractor, or subcontractor may not enter into a contract unless
each party to the contract registers with and uses the E-Verify system.

(b) 1. If a contractor enters into a contract with a subcontractor, the subcontractor must
provide the contractor with an affidavit stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract
with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien.

2. The contractor shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of the
contract.
(©) 1. A public employer, contractor, or subcontractor who has a good faith belief that a

person or entity with which it is contracting has knowingly violated s. 448.09(1) shall terminate
the contract with the person or entity.

2. A public employer that has a good faith belief that a subcontractor knowingly
violated this subsection, but the contractor otherwise complied with this subsection, shall promptly
notify the contractor and order the contractor to immediately terminate the contract with the
subcontractor.

3. A contract terminated under subparagraph 1. or subparagraph 2. is not a breach of
contract and may not be considered as such.

(d) A public employer, contractor, or subcontractor may file an action with a circuit or county
court to challenge a termination under paragraph (c) no later than 20 calendar days after the date
on which the contract was terminated.

(e) If a public employer terminates a contract with a contractor under paragraph (c), the
contractor may not be awarded a public contract for at least 1 year after the date on which the
contract was terminated.



® A contractor is liable for any additional costs incurred by a public employer as a result of
the termination of a contract.

Legal Provisions and Certifications

To the extent applicable to this Project, Engineer, Consultant, Contractor, subcontractor,
Architect and/or Design/Builder (collectively “Contractor’):

Conflict. Contractor represents and warrants unto Owner that no officer, employee or
agent of Owner has any interest, either directly or indirectly, in the business of Contractor to be
conducted hereunder. Contractor further represents and warrants to Owner that it has not
employed or retained any company person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for
Contractor, to solicit or secure this Contract, that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person,
company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for
Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon or
resulting from the award or making of this Contract, and that it has not agreed, as an express or
implied condition for obtaining this Contract, to employ or retain the services of any firm or person
in connection with carrying out this Contract. Contractor assures that it will insert the above
provision in each of its subcontractor agreements relating to the services to be performed
hereunder.

Contractor and its employees shall promptly observe and comply with the applicable
provisions of all Federal, State and local laws, rules and regulations which govern or apply to the
goods and services rendered by Contractor hereunder, or to the wages paid by Contractor to its
employees. Contractor shall require all of its subcontractors to comply with the provisions of this
paragraph.

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964, TITLE VI - CONTRACTOR CONTRACTUAL
REQUIREMENTS

The Sebring Airport Authority, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 )78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000 d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies
all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that for any contract entered into pursuant to this
advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises and airport concession disadvantaged business
enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation
and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in
consideration for an award.

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in
interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows:

1.1 Compliance with Regulations. The contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to
nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation (hereinafter,
"DOT") Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time
(hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made
a part of this contract.

1.2 Nondiscrimination. The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the




contract, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and
retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The
contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by
section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers a
program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.

1.3 Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment. In all
solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be
performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each
potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations
under this contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color,
or national origin.

1.4 Information and Reports. The contractor shall provide all information and reports required
by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access to its books,
records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the
Owner or the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with
such Regulations, orders, and instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in
the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the contractor
shall so certify to the Owner or the FAA, as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made
to obtain the information.

1.5 Sanctions for Noncompliance. In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the Owner shall impose such contract sanctions as
it or the FAA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

a. Withholding of payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor
complies, and/or
b. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

1.6 Incorporation of Provisions. The contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1
through 5 in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment,
unless exempt by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor shall take
such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Owner or the FAA may direct
as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided,
however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with
a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the Owner to
enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the Owner and, in addition, the contractor may
request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

Contractor for itself, its successors in interest and assigns, as a part of the consideration
hereof, does hereby covenant and agree that (1) in the furnishing of services to Owner hereunder,
no person on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, or familial
status shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to
discrimination, and (2) Contractor shall comply with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant
to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the
Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of
Transportation — effectuation of Title VI and Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as said



Regulations may be amended. Should Contractor authorize another person, with Owner’s prior
written consent, to provide services to Owner hereunder, Contractor shall obtain from such person
a written agreement pursuant to which such person shall, with respect to the services which he or
she is authorized to provide, undertake for such person the obligations contained in this section.
Contractor shall furnish an original agreement to Owner.

Further, Contractor assures that it will undertake an affirmative action program as required
by 14 CFR Part 152, Subpart E, to insure that no person shall on the grounds of race, color, national
origin, sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status be excluded from participating in any
employment activities covered in 14 CFR Part 152, Subpart E. Such activities shall include, but
not be limited to, the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and
selection for training, including apprenticeship. Contractor assures that no person shall be
excluded on these grounds from participating in or receiving the services of any program or activity
covered by this subpart. Contractor assures that it shall not discriminate on the grounds of race,
color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status in the selection or retention
of subcontractors. Contractor assures that it will require that its covered subcontractors provide
assurances to Contractor that they similarly require assurances from their subcontractors, as
required by CFR Part 152, Subpart E, to the same effect.

Owner may, from time to time, adopt additional or amended and nondiscrimination
provides concerning the furnishing of services to the Owner, and Contractor agrees that it will
adopt any such requirements as a part of this Contract.

Non-Discrimination. Contractor for itself, its successors in interest and assigns, as a part of the
consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree that:

1. No person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from
participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination
in the use of said facilities;

2. That in the construction of any improvements on, over or under such land and the
furnishing of services thereon, no person on the grounds of race, color, or national
original shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination;

3. That Contractor shall use the Premises in compliance with all other requirements
imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of
Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in
Federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation-Effectuation of
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of
1968, and as said Regulations may be amended.

That in the event of a breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Owner shall
have the right to terminate this Contract. This provision shall not be effective until the procedures
of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21 are followed and completed, including exercise
or expiration of appeal rights.

The applicant hereby agrees that it will incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any
contract for construction work, or modification thereof, as defined in the regulations of the



Secretary of Labor at 41 CFR Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained
from the Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal Government pursuant to a
grant, contract, loan insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken pursuant to any Federal program
involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, the following equal opportunity
clause:

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action
to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without
regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. such action shall include, but not be
limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and
selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous
places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth
the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on
behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

(3) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided
advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under
this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants for employment.

(4) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(5) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246
of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant
thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency
and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules,
regulations, and orders.

(6) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this
contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled,
terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for
further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with
procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions
may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(7) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph
(1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless
exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204



of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon
each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract
or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions,
including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a contractor
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of
such direction by the administering agency the contractor may request the United States to enter
into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

EEO COMPLIANCE

(a) Requirements for prime contractors and subcontractors:

(1) Each prime contractor and subcontractor shall file annually, on or before the
September 30, complete and accurate reports on Standard Form 100 (EEO-1) promulgated jointly
by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission and Plans for Progress or such form as may hereafter be promulgated in its place if
such prime contractor or subcontractor (i) is not exempt from the provisions of these regulations
in accordance with Sec. 60-1.5; (i1) has 50 or more employees; (iii) is a prime contractor or first
tier subcontractor; and (iv) has a contract, subcontract or purchase order amounting to $50,000 or
more or serves as a depository of Government funds in any amount, or is a financial institution
which is an issuing and paying agent for U.S. savings bonds and savings notes: Provided, That any
subcontractor below the first tier which performs construction work at the site of construction shall
be required to file such a report if it meets requirements of paragraphs (a)(1) (i), (ii), and (iv) of
this section.

(2) Each person required by Sec. 60-1.7(a)(1) to submit reports shall file such a report
with the contracting or administering agency within 30 days after the award to him of a contract
or subcontract, unless such person has submitted such a report within 12 months preceding the
date of the award. Subsequent reports shall be submitted annually in accordance with Sec. 60-
1.7(a)(1), or at such other intervals as the Deputy Assistant Secretary may require. The Deputy
Assistant Secretary may extend the time for filing any report.

(3) Failure to file timely, complete and accurate reports as required constitutes
noncompliance with the prime contractor's or subcontractor's obligations under the equal
opportunity clause and this contract.

(b) Requirements for bidders or prospective contractors:

(1) Certification of compliance with Part 60-2: Affirmative Action Programs. Each agency
shall require each bidder or prospective prime contractor and proposed subcontractor, where
appropriate, to state in the bid or in writing at the outset of negotiations for the contract: (i) Whether
it has developed and has on file at each establishment affirmative action programs pursuant to Part
60-2 of this chapter; (i1) whether it has participated in any previous contract or subcontract subject
to the equal opportunity clause; (iii) whether it has filed with the Joint Reporting Committee, the
Deputy Assistant Secretary or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission all reports due
under the applicable filing requirements.

(2) Additional information. A bidder or prospective prime contractor or proposed



subcontractor shall be required to submit such information as the Deputy Assistant Secretary
requests prior to the award of the contract or subcontract. When a determination has been made to
award the contract or subcontract to a specific contractor, such contractor shall be required, prior
to award, or after the award, or both, to furnish such other information as the applicant or the
Deputy Assistant Secretary requests.

STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS - 41 CFR Part 60.4.3

1. As used in these specifications:

a. "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from
which this contract resulted;

b. "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs
(OFCCP), U.S. Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates
authority;

c. "Employer identification number" means the Federal social security number used
on the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941;

d. "Minority" includes:

(1) Black (all) persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups
not of Hispanic origin);

(2) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South
American, or other Spanish culture or origin regardless of race);

(3) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original
peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific
Islands); and

(4) American Indian or Alaskan native (all persons having origins in any of the
original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations
through membership and participation or community identification).

2. Whenever the contractor, or any subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work
involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of
$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals
for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this
contract resulted.

3. If the contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by
the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its
affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall
be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan.



Contractors shall be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance with the provisions
of any such Hometown Plan. Each contractor or subcontractor participating in an approved plan
is individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause and to make a good
faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The
overall good faith performance by other contractors or subcontractors toward a goal in an approved
Plan does not excuse any covered contractor's or subcontractor's failure to take good faith efforts
to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.

4. The contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided within these
specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are
expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female
utilization the contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which
it has employees in the covered area. Covered construction contractors performing construction
work in a geographical area where they do not have a Federal or federally assisted construction
contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical area where the
work is being performed. Goals are published periodically in the Federal Register in notice form,
and such notices may be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs
office or from Federal procurement contracting officers. The contractor is expected to make
substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.

5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement nor the failure by a union with
whom the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement to refer either minorities or women
shall excuse the contractor's obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246 or the
regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.

6. In order for the non-working training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting
the goals, such apprentices and trainees shall be employed by the contractor during the training
period and the contractor shall have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at
the completion of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees
shall be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor.

7. The contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity.
The evaluation of the contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its
effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. The contractor shall document these efforts
fully and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:

a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and
coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the contractor's employees are assigned
to work. The contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to each
construction project. The contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen,
superintendents, and other onsite supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the
contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention
to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.

b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources,
provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to
community organizations when the contractor or its unions have employment
opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.



c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of each
minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a
union, a recruitment source, or community organization and of what action was taken
with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring
hall for referral and was not referred back to the contractor by the union or, if referred,
not employed by the contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason
therefore along with whatever additional actions the contractor may have taken.

d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions
with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the
contractor a minority person or female sent by the contractor, or when the contractor
has other information that the union referral process has impeded the contractor's
efforts to meet its obligations.

e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs
for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading
programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the contractor's
employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department
of Labor. The contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources
compiled under 7b above.

f. Disseminate the contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions
and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the contractor in
meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective
bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.;
by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority
and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on
bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is
performed.

g. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action
obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for
hiring, assignment, layoff, termination, or other employment decisions including
specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such a superintendents,
general foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A
written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these
meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject
matter.

h. Disseminate the contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising
in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and
providing written notification to and discussing the contractor's EEO policy with other
contractors and subcontractors with whom the contractor does or anticipates doing
business.

i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female, and
community organizations, to schools with minority and female students; and to



minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the contractor's
recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date
for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any
recruitment source, the contractor shall send written notification to organizations, such
as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the
selection process.

j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons
and women and, where reasonable provide after school, summer, and vacation
employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a
contractor's workforce.

k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to
do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.

. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and
female personnel, for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to
seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.

m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments, and other
personnel practices do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all
personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the
contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.

n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that
separate or single user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to
assure privacy between the sexes.

0. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from
minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of
solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business
associations.

p. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisor's adherence to and
performance under the contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.

8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations, which assist in fulfilling one
or more of their affirmative action obligations. The efforts of a contractor association, joint
contractor union, contractor community, or other similar groups of which the contractor is a
member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under
these specifications provided that the contractor actively participates in the group, makes every
effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women
in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the contractor's
minority and female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals
and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of
actions taken on behalf of the contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the contractor's
and failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the contractor's
noncompliance.

10



9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The
contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative
action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-
minority. Consequently, if the particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner
(for example, even though the contractor has achieved its goals for women generally,) the
contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is
underutilized.

10. The contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to
discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

11. The contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any person or firm debarred from
Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.

12. The contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications
and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination, and cancellation of
existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as
amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs. Any contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation
of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as amended.

13. The contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific
affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 18.7 of
these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment
opportunity. If the contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the
implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with
41 CFR 60-4.8.

14. The contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity
to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the
provisions hereof as may be required by the Government, and to keep records. Records shall at
least include for each employee, the name, address, telephone number, construction trade, union
affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race,
sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice, trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours
worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed.
Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the
degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain
separate records.

15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws
which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the
hiring of local or other area residents (e.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977
and the Community Development Block Grant Program).

AIRPORT AND AIRWAY IMPROVEMENT ACT OF 1982,
SECTION 520 - GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS

11



The contractor assures that it will comply with pertinent statutes, Executive orders and such
rules as are promulgated to assure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national
origin, sex, age, or handicap be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or
benefiting from Federal assistance. This provision obligates the tenant/concessionaire /lessee or
its transferee for the period during which Federal assistance is extended to the airport a program,
except where Federal assistance is to provide, or is in the form of personal property or real property
or interest therein or structures or improvements thereon. In these cases the provision obligates
the party or any transferee for the longer of the following periods: (a) the period during which
the property is used by the Owner or any transferee for a purpose for which Federal assistance is
extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits or (b) the
period during which the Owner or any transferee retains ownership or possession of the property.
In the case of contractors, this provision binds the contractors from the bid solicitation period
through the completion of the contract. This provision is in addition to that required of Title VI of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES - 41 CFR PART 60-1.8

Notice to Prospective Federally Assisted Construction Contractors:

1. A Certification of Non-segregated Facilities shall be submitted prior to the award of a federally-
assisted construction contract exceeding $10,000 which is not exempt from the provisions of the
Equal Opportunity Clause.

2. Contractors receiving federally-assisted construction contract awards exceeding $10,000 which
are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clause will be required to provide
for the forwarding of the following notice to prospective subcontractors for supplies and
construction contracts where the subcontracts exceed $10,000 and are not exempt from the
provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clause. NOTE: The penalty for making false statements
in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001.

Notice to Prospective Subcontractors of Requirements for Certification of Non-Segregated
Facilities:

1. A Certification of Non-segregated Facilities shall be submitted prior to the award of a
subcontract exceeding $10,000, which is not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity
Clause.

2. Contractors receiving subcontract awards exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the
provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clause will be required to provide for the forwarding of this
notice to prospective subcontractors for supplies and construction contracts where the
subcontracts exceed $10,000 and are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity
Clause. NOTE: The penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C.
1001.

CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

12



The federally-assisted construction contractor certifies that she or he does not maintain or provide,
for his employees, any segregated facilities at any of his establishments and that she or he does not
permit his employees to perform their services at any location, under his control, where segregated
facilities are maintained. The federally-assisted construction contractor certifies that she or he
will not maintain or provide, for his employees, segregated facilities at any of his establishments
and that she or he will not permit his employees to perform their services at any location under his
control where segregated facilities are maintained. The federally-assisted construction contractor
agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal Opportunity Clause in this
contract.

As used in this certification, the term "segregated facilities" means any waiting rooms, work areas,
restrooms, and washrooms, restaurants and other eating areas, timeclocks, locker rooms and other
storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas,
transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit
directives or are, in fact, segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, or national origin because
of habit, local custom, or any other reason. The federally-assisted construction contractor agrees
that (except where she or he has obtained identical certifications from proposed subcontractors for
specific time periods) she or he will obtain identical certifications from proposed subcontractors
prior to the award of subcontracts exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of
the Equal Opportunity Clause and that she or he will retain such certifications in his files.

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION - 41 CFR PART 60-2

1. The Contractor’s attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" and the "Standard Federal
Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications" set forth herein.

2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms
for the contractor's aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in the covered area,
are as follows:

Timetables

Goals for minority participation for each trade 11.1%

Goals for female participation in each trade 2.5%

These goals are applicable to all the contractor's construction work (whether or not it is Federal or
federally-assisted) performed in the covered area. If the contractor performs construction work
in a geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for
such geographical area where the work is actually performed. With regard to this second area,
the contractor also is subject to the goals for both its Federally involved and non-federally involved
construction.

The contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4
shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action
obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a), and its efforts to meet the
goals. The hours of minority and female employment and training shall be substantially uniform
throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade, and the contractor shall make a good faith

13



effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or
female employees or trainees from contractor to contractor or from project to project, for the sole
purpose of meeting the contractor's goals, shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order,
and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the
total work hours performed.

3. The contractor shall provide written notification to the Director, OFCCP, within 10 working
days of award of any construction subcontract in excess of $10,000 at any tier for construction
work under the contract resulting from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name,
address, and telephone number of the subcontractor; employer identification number of the
subcontractor; estimated dollar amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates
of subcontract; and the geographical area in which the subcontract is to be performed.

4. As used in this notice and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the "covered area" is
the Sebring Regional Airport and Industrial Park located in Sebring, Highlands County, Florida.

LOBBYING AND INFLUENCING FEDERAL EMPLOYEES

1. No Federal appropriated funds shall be paid, by or on behalf of the contractor, to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the making of any Federal grant and the amendment or modification of any
Federal grant.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with any Federal grant, the contractor shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
“Disclosure of Lobby Activities,” in accordance with its instructions.

Accounting/Records. Contractor will provide all information and reports required by said
Regulations, or by directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records,
accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by Owner or other
governmental agency to be pertinent to ascertain whether there has been compliance with said
Regulations and directives. Where any information required of Contractor is in the exclusive
possession of another who fails or refused to furnish this information, Contractor shall so certify
and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. Contractor shall remain
obligated under this paragraph until the expiration of three (3) yeas after the termination of the
Contract. In the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Owner shall
have the right to impose such contract sanctions as it or other applicable government entity may
determine to be appropriate, including with-holding payments to Contractor under this Contract or
canceling, terminating, or suspending this Contract in whole or in part. The rights granted to
Owner by the foregoing sentence shall not be effective until the procedures of Title 49, Code of
Federal Regulations, Part 21 are followed and completed, including exercise or expiration of
appeal rights.

CONTRACT WORKHOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

14



REQUIREMENTS 29 CFR PART 5

1. Overtime Requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the
contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall
require or permit any such laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, in any workweek
in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek
unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half
times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

2. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages. In the event of any violation of
the clause set forth in paragraph (1) above, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible
therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall
be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia
or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated
damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including
watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 1 above, in the
sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in
excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required
by the clause set forth in paragraph 1 above.

3. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages. @ The Federal Aviation
Administration or the Owner shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized
representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any monies
payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract
or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted
contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same
prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such
contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set
forth in paragraph 2 above.

4. Subcontractors. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses
set forth in paragraphs 1 through 4 and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to include these
clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance
by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs 1 through
4 of this section.

The Contractor or subcontractor shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll records during the course
of the work and shall preserve them for a period of three years from the completion of the contract
for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the contract. Such
records shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct
classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions
made, and actual wages paid. The records to be maintained under this paragraph shall be made
available by the contractor or subcontractor for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized
representatives of the Authority and the Department of Labor, and the contractor or subcontractor
will permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job.

ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

15



The Owner, as well as the public pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 119, shall have access
to any books, documents, paper, and records including payroll records and associated basic data
of the Contractor, which are directly pertinent to the specific Contract for the purposes of making
an audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.

The Contractor shall maintain an acceptable cost accounting system. The Contractor agrees
to provide the Owner, the Federal Aviation Administration and the Comptroller General of the
United States or any of their duly authorized representatives access to any books, documents,
papers, and records of the contractor which are directly pertinent to the specific contract for the
purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. The Contractor agrees to
maintain all books, records and reports required under this contract for a period of not less than
three years after final payment is made and all pending matters are closed.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

Policy. It is the policy of the Owner and the United States or State of Florida Department of
Transportation that disadvantaged business enterprises, as defined in the Owner’s Disadvantaged
Business Enterprises (“DBE”) Participation Policy for services as defined in 49 CFR Part 26 shall
have equal opportunity to participate in the performance of services contracts awarded by the
Owner, including, but not limited to, contracts financed in whole or in part with federal or State
funds under this Contract. Consequently, the requirements of the Owner’s DBE Participation
Policy apply to this Contract.

Contract Assurance (§26.13). The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis
of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry
out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT assisted
contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this
contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy, as the recipient
deems appropriate.

Prompt Payment. The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime
contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than fourteen (14) days from the
receipt of each payment the prime contractor receives from Sebring Airport Authority. Payments
not made to subcontractors within fourteen (14) days of the prime contractor’s receipt of payment
shall bear interest at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum, computed beginning on the 14th day
after payment is due. The prime contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each
subcontractor within fourteen (14) days after the subcontractor’s work is satisfactorily completed.
Any delay or postponement of payment from the above referenced time frame may occur only for
good cause following written approval of the Sebring Airport Authority. The right to receive
interest on a payment under this section is not an exclusive remedy, and this section does not
modify any remedies available to any person under the terms of a contract or under any other
statute. Sebring Airport Authority shall have the right to terminate the services of any obligor
who fails to make prompt payment to any obligee. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE
subcontractors.

DBE Obligation. The Contractor agrees to ensure that DBE/MWBE firms shall have the

16



maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts for subcontractor services,
including, but not limited to, those projects financed in whole or in part with federal or state funds
provided under this Contract. In this regard, the Contractor and all subcontractors shall take all
necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with the Owner’s DBE/MWBE Participation
Policies to ensure that DBE/MWBE firms have the maximum opportunity to compete for and
perform contracts. The Contractor and any subcontractors shall not discriminate on the basis of
race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of Owner contracts.

DBE Administration.

1. Eligibility of DBE's: Those firms currently certified as DBE's by the Florida Department
of Transportation are eligible to participate as DBE's on this contract. A list of these firms
can be obtained from the State, the consulting engineer, or the Sponsor. Firms certified
as DBE's by other states, or other U.S. DOT recipients are subject to the sponsor's
acceptance. A bidder may request a review of a potential DBE prior to the bid opening.
The bidder should allow ten working days for the sponsor's determination regarding
certification of the potential DBE. Previous acceptance of a DBE by the FAA, State or
Sponsor does not ensure acceptance on this project.

2. Counting DBE Participation Towards DBE Goals: DBE participation toward attainment
of the goal will be computed on the basis of the subcontract prices agreed to between the
contractor and subcontractors for the contract items or portions of items being sublet, as
shown on the DBE Participation Form and attachments.  Credit will only be given for use
of DBE's that are certified or accepted according to this specification. DBE participation
shall be counted toward meeting the DBE goal in accordance with the following:

a. Commercially Useful Function: The Sponsor shall count toward the DBE goal
only those expenditures to DBE's that perform a commercially useful function in
the work of the contract. A DBE performs a commercially useful function when it
is responsible for execution of a distinct element of work by actually performing,
managing, and supervising that work. To determine if a DBE is performing a
commercially useful function, the amount of work subcontracted, industry
practices, and other relevant factors will be evaluated. If consistent with industry
practices, a DBE shall enter into a subcontract or other contractual written
agreement. A DBE Contractor may subcontract a portion of the work up to the
amount allowed under standard subcontracting contract provisions of normal
industry practices. A DBE is presumed not to be performing a commercially
useful function if the DBE is performing outside these guidelines.

b. Materials and Supplies: The Sponsor shall count toward the DBE goal the
expenditures for materials and supplies obtained from DBE suppliers and
manufacturers as described below. The DBE's must assume the actual and
contractual responsibility for the provision of the materials and supplies:

(1) The entire expenditure to a DBE manufacturer will be counted toward the
DBE goal. A manufacturer must operate or maintain a factory or
establishment that produces on the premises the materials or supplies that
are obtained by the contractor.

17



(2) Sixty percent of expenditures to a DBE regular dealer will be counted
toward the DBE goal. A regular dealer must perform a commercially useful
function in the supply process including buying the materials or supplies,
maintaining an inventory and regularly selling materials to the public.
Bulk items such as steel, cement, gravel, stone and petroleum products need
not be kept in stock, but the dealer must own or operate distribution
equipment.

3) No credit will be given toward the DBE goal, if the prime contractor makes
a direct payment to a non-DBE material supplier. However, it will be
permissible for a material supplier to invoice the prime contractor and the
DBE jointly and be paid by the prime contractor making remittance to the
DBE firm and material supplier jointly.

(4) No credit, toward the DBE goal, will be given for the cost of materials or
equipment used in a DBE firm's work when those costs are paid by a
deduction from the prime contractor's payment(s) to the DBE firm.

C. Owner-Operator Trucking: The Sponsor shall count toward the DBE goal, the
entire delivery fee paid to DBE owner-operators performing trucking for the
contractor, if they appear on the contractor's payroll and separate records are
furnished to the Sponsor documenting the expenditures. The records shall include
for each owner-operator; their social security number; driver's license number;
vehicle registration number; current vehicle license number; truck number; and a
complete record of the contract fees paid to them.

d. Joint Venture: When a joint venture contract is involved, the Sponsor shall count
towards the DBE goal that portion of the contract total dollar value equal to the
percentage of ownership and control of each DBE firm within the joint venture.
Such crediting is subject to the sponsor's acceptance of the joint venture agreement.
The Bidder must furnish the joint venture agreement with the DBE Participation
Form. The joint venture agreement must include a detailed breakdown of the
following:

(1) Contract responsibility of the DBE for specific contract items of work,

(2) Capital participation by the DBE,

3) Specific equipment to be provided by the DBE,

4) Specific responsibilities of the DBE regarding control of the joint venture,

(%) Specific workers and skills to be provided by the DBE, and

(6) Percentage distribution to the DBE of the projected profit or loss incurred
by the joint venture.

The joint venture must be certified by the sponsor prior to the sponsor submitting
the proposal to the FAA. A copy of the sponsor's certification letter must be
submitted to FAA along with the DBE Participation Form.

3. Contractor is required to undertake the following steps to help ensure maximum
participation:

a. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on

18



solicitation lists;

Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are
solicited whenever they are potential sources;

Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities
to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's
business enterprises;

Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage
participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;

Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small
Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the
Department of Commerce; and

Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps
listed in paragraphs a) through f of this section.

Award Documentation and Procedure: All bidders shall certify in the bid proposal their
intent to meet or exceed the established goal or to demonstrate good faith efforts to meet
the goal. Failure to make such certification or failure to demonstrate good faith efforts will
render a bid non responsive.

a.

DBE Participation Form: The apparent successful bidder must submit with the bid
the following information on the proposed DBE Participation Form attached to the
Proposal. The information shall demonstrate the contractor's intended
participation by certified DBE's. When the required information is not provided
by the apparent low bidder the bid will be ruled non responsive and will not be
considered. The information furnished shall consist of:

(1) The names, addresses, contact persons, phone numbers, and category of
DBE firms to be used on the contract;

(2) A list of the bid items of work to be performed by the DBE and the percent
to be credited toward the DBE goal;

3) The dollar value of each of the DBE work items; and

4) If the DBE goal is not met, a statement of why the goal could not be met
and a demonstration of the good faith efforts taken to meet the DBE goal.

Sponsor Evaluation: In selecting the lowest responsible bidder, the Sponsor will
evaluate the DBE information provided with the bid. The Sponsor may request
additional DBE information and may allow the bidders, up to 7 calendar days after
bid submittal to supplement or resubmit information concerning their proposed
DBE participation. Prior to awarding the contract the Sponsor will verify verbally
and/or in writing that the information submitted by the apparent successful bidder
is accurate and complete.

Good Faith Efforts: If the bidder is unable to meet the DBE goal, the bidder must
submit evidence of good faith efforts taken to meet the goal. Good faith efforts
conducted after the bid opening will not be considered adequate to fulfill these bid
requirements. Good faith efforts may include but are not limited to:

(1) Efforts to select portions of the work for performance by DBE's, in order to

19



increase the likelihood of achieving the DBE goal. This can include, but is
not limited to, breaking down contracts into economically feasible units to
facilitate DBE participation. Selection of portions of work shall be at least
equal to the DBE goal.

(2) Written notification to individual DBE's likely to participate in the contract
sent at least 7 calendar days prior to the bid opening. The notification shall
list specific items or types of work and shall be sent to a reasonable number
of DBE's qualified to participate in the contract.

3) Efforts to negotiate with DBE's for specific items of work including:

(a) Names, addresses, and telephone numbers of DBE's who were
contacted, the dates of initial contact and information on further
contacts made to determine with certainty if the DBE's were
interested. Personal or phone contacts are expected;

(b) Description of the information provided to the DBE's regarding the
plans, specifications and estimated quantities for portions of the
work to be performed;

(c) Individual statements as to why agreements with DBE's were not
reached; and

(d) Information on each DBE contacted but rejected and the reasons for
the rejection.

(4) Efforts to assist the DBE's that need assistance in obtaining bonding,
insurance, or lines of credit required by the contractor.

(%) Documentation that qualified DBE's are not available or not interested.

(6) Advertisements in general circulation media, trade association publications
and disadvantaged-focus media concerning subcontracting opportunities.

(7) Efforts to use the services of available disadvantaged community
organizations; disadvantaged contractor's groups; local, state and federal
disadvantaged business assistance offices; and other organizations that
provide assistance in recruitment and placement of DBE's.

The demonstration of good faith efforts by the contractor must prove the contractor
actively and aggressively sought out DBE's to participate in the project. The
following actions would not be considered acceptable reasons for failure to meet
the DBE goal and would not constitute a good faith effort:

(1) The DBE was unable to provide adequate performance and/or payment

bonds.

(2) A reasonable DBE bid was rejected based on price.

3) The DBE would not agree to perform the subcontract work at the prime
contractors unit bid price.

4) Union versus non-union status of the DBE firm.

20



(%) The prime contractor would normally perform all or most of the work
included in this contract.
(6) The prime contractor solicited DBE participation by mail only.

Post Award Compliance: If the contract is awarded on less than full DBE goal
participation, the contractor is not relieved of the responsibility to make a determined effort
to meet the full goal amount during the life of the contract. In such a case, the contractor
shall continue good faith efforts throughout the life of the contract to increase the DBE
participation to meet the contract goal.

If a DBE is unwilling or unable to perform the work specified, the contractor shall request
from the Sponsor and FAA, relief from the obligation to use that DBE. Efforts will be
made by the contractor to acquire from the DBE a letter which states the reason the DBE
is unwilling or unable to complete its obligations under the project. If this results in a
DBE contract shortfall, the contractor shall immediately take steps to obtain another
certified DBE to perform an equal dollar value of allowable credit. If a new DBE cannot
be found, the contractor shall submit evidence of good faith efforts within 15 calendar days
of the request for relief. The contractor shall submit the new DBE's name, address, work
items and the dollar amount of each item. The sponsor and the FAA shall approve the
new DBE before the DBE starts work.

If the contractor fails to conform to the approved DBE participation or if it becomes evident
that the remaining work will not meet the approved participation, then the contractor shall
submit evidence showing either how the contractor intends to meet the DBE participation,
or what circumstances have changed affecting the DBE participation. If the sponsor is not
satisfied with the evidence, then liquidated damages may be assessed for the difference
between the approved and actual DBE participation.

Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep records as necessary to determine
compliance with the DBE obligations. The records shall include but are not limited to:

a. Record of DBE Participation: = The names of disadvantaged and non-
disadvantaged subcontractors, regular dealers, manufacturers, consultant and
service agencies; the type of work or materials or services performed on or
incorporated in the project; and the actual value of such work.

b. Efforts to Utilize DBE Firms: Documentation of all efforts made to seek out
disadvantaged contractor organizations and individual disadvantaged contractors
for work on this project. All correspondence, personal contacts, telephone calls,
etc., to obtain the services of DBE's should be documented.

c. Final DBE Certification: Upon completion of the individual DBE firm's work, the
prime contractor shall submit a certification attesting to the actual work performed
by the DBE firm and the amount paid the DBE firm. This certification shall be
signed by both the prime contractor and the DBE firm.

Energy Conservation Requirements. The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory

21



standards and policies relating to energy efficiency that are contained in the state energy
conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Public Law
94-163).

Rights To Inventions. All rights to inventions and materials generated under this contract
are subject to regulations issued by the FAA and the Owner of the Federal grant under which this
contract is executed.

Contract Time. If the Contractor persistently refuses or fails to recover lost time, to the
extent that it becomes apparent that the Project shall not be completed within the Contract Time,
the Owner may take such actions to terminate the Contract for default on the part of the Contractor,
or to assign portions of the Work to other contractors or to require Contractor to hire sufficient
skilled workers for Contractor to recover lost time and complete the Project on time. Any
additional costs associated with this will be borne by original Contractor.

Owner has the right to refuse a subcontractor for good faith concern about the
subcontractor’s competence, solvency or fitness to perform timely.

Owner’s Recourse. Written warranties made to the Owner are in addition to manufacturer’s
warranties, implied warranties, and shall not limit the duties, obligations, rights and remedies
otherwise available under the law, nor shall warranty periods be interpreted as limitations on time
in which the Owner can enforce such other duties, obligations, rights, or remedies.

The Owner reserves the right to refuse to accept Work for the Project where a special
warranty, certification, or similar commitment is required on such Work or part of the Work, until
evidence is presented that entities required to countersign such commitments have done so.”

Pursuant to §403.7065, Fla. Stat., Contractor shall procure products or materials with
recycled content when the Florida Department of Management Services determines that those
products or materials are available.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBAREMENT, SUSPENSION,
INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

The Contractor certifies, by submission of this proposal or acceptance of this contract, that neither
it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
It further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause without modification in
all lower tier transactions, solicitations, proposals, contracts, and subcontracts. Where the
Contractor or any lower tier participant is unable to certify to this statement, it shall attach an
explanation to this solicitation/proposal.

CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL

Contractors and subcontractors agree:

1. That any facility to be used in the performance of the contract or subcontract or to benefit from

22



the contract is not listed on the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) List of Violating
Facilities;

2. To comply with all the requirements of Section 114 of the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42
U.S.C. 1857 et seq. and Section 308 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33
U.S.C. 1251 et seq. relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and information, as well as
all other requirements specified in Section 114 and Section 308 of the Acts, respectively, and all
other regulations and guidelines issued thereunder;

3. To comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air
Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C.
1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office
of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

4. Owner is required to comply with all applicable air and water quality standards for all projects
in this grant. If Owner fails to comply with this requirements, the FAA may suspend, cancel, or
terminate the agreement.

5. That, as a condition for the award of this contract, the contractor or subcontractor will notify
the awarding official of the receipt of any communication from the EPA indicating that a facility
to be used for the performance of or benefit from the contract is under consideration to be listed
on the EPA List of Violating Facilities;

6. To include or cause to be included in any construction contract or subcontract which exceeds
$100,000 the aforementioned criteria and requirements.

PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

Contractor agrees to comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include
procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at
40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent
with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds
$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000;
procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource
recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered
materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE

The Contractor hereby agrees that it will comply with:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), as amended, and all requirements
imposed by or pursuant to the Regulation of the Department of Health and Human Services (45
C.F.R. Part 80), to the end that, in accordance with Title VI of that Act and the Regulation, no
person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any

23



program or activity for which the Applicant receives Federal financial assistant from the
Department.

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), as amended, and all requirements
imposed by or pursuant to the Regulation of the Department of Health and Human Services (45
C.F.R. Part 84), to the end that, in accordance with Section 504 of that Act and the Regulation, no
otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the United States shall, solely by reason of his
or her disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Applicant receives Federal
financial assistance from the Department.

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135), as amended, and all requirements imposed
by or pursuant to the Regulation of the Department of Health and Human Services (45 C.F.R. Part
91), to the end that, in accordance with the Act and the Regulation, no person in the United States
shall, on the basis of age, be denied the benefits of, be excluded from participation in, or be
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Applicant receives Federal
financial assistance from the Department.

SPONSOR CERTIFICATION FOR PROJECT PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

All plans and specifications will be developed in accordance with all current applicable Federal
standards and requirements, or state standard specifications developed under a federal grant, and
no deviation from or modification to standards set forth in the advisory circulars will be allowed
without prior approval of the FAA.

All equipment specifications will rely on the national standards as contained in the Advisory
Circulars, without deviations, to the maximum extent possible. Specifications for the
procurement of equipment for which there is no Federal specification or standard will be neither
proprietary nor written to restrict competition. If there is no national standard, or if the national
standard provides for a choice to be made, at least two manufacturers will assure that they can
meet the specification. A deviation from the national standard will require FAA approval of the
design standard modification.

All development to be included in any plans is depicted on an airport layout plan approved by
FAA.

All development which is ineligible for AIP funding will either be omitted from the plans and
specifications or costs associated with ineligible or AIP non-participating items will be separated

and noted as non-AIP work and deducted from AIP project reimbursement requests.

Process control and acceptance tests required for any and all projects by standards contained in
Advisory Circular 150/5370-10 will be included in the project specifications.

If a value engineering clause is incorporated into any contract, concurrence will be obtained from
FAA.

All plans and specifications will incorporate applicable requirements and recommendations set
forth in the Federally-approved environmental finding.

24



For all construction activities within or near aircraft operational areas, the applicable requirements
contained in Advisory Circular 150/5370-2 will be discussed with FAA and incorporated into the
specifications. A safety/phasing plan will be prepared, and prior FAA concurrence will be
obtained.

All projects will be physically completed without Federal participation in costs that are due to
errors or omissions in the plans and specifications that were foreseeable at the time of the project
design.

All Airport Layout Plan (ALP) revisions and proposals for facility construction clearance will
include coordinates that are either surveyed or based on reference coordinates previously found
acceptable to FAA. The coordinates will be verified and found consistent with the dimensions
shown on the project/sketch ALP. The coordinates will be in terms of the North American Datum
of 1983.

All elevations on ALP revisions and proposals for construction clearance will be within +/- 0.1
foot vertically and the vertical datum will be in terms of the National Geodetic Vertical Datum of

1929.

SPONSOR CERTIFICATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECT FINAL ACCEPTANCE

General requirements for final acceptance and close-out of Federally funded construction projects
are in 49 CFR 18.50. The sponsor shall determine that project costs are accurate and proper in
accordance with specific requirements of the Grant Agreement and Contract Documents.

All personnel engaged in project administration, engineering supervision, and construction
inspection and testing will be determined to be qualified and competent to perform the work.

All daily construction records will be kept by the resident engineer/construction inspector. These
records document work in progress, quality and quantity of materials delivered, test locations and
results, instructions provided the Contractor, weather, equipment use, labor requirements, safety
problems, and changes required.

All weekly payroll records and statements of compliance will be submitted by the prime contractor
and reviewed by the sponsor for Federal labor and civil rights requirements (Advisory Circular
150/5100-6 and 150/5100-15).

All complaints regarding the mandated Federal provisions set forth in the contract documents will
be submitted to the Department of Labor.

All tests specified in the plans and specifications will be performed and the test results documented.
A summary of test results will be available to FAA.

For all test results outside allowable tolerances, appropriate corrective actions will be taken.

All payments to the contractor will be made in compliance with contract provisions and verified
by the sponsor's internal audit of contract records kept by the resident engineer. If appropriate, all

25



pay reduction factors required by the specifications will be applied in computing final payments
and a summary of pay reductions will be available to FAA.

All projects will be accomplished without significant deviations, changes, or modifications from
the developed plans and specifications, except where approval will be obtained from FAA.

All final project inspections will be conducted with representatives of the sponsor and the
contractor. Project files will contain documentation of the final inspection.

All work in the Grant Agreement will be physically completed and corrective actions required as
a result of the final inspection will be completed to the satisfaction of the construction contract and
the sponsor.

As-built plans and an equipment inventory, if applicable, will be maintained as sponsor records. If
requested, a revised airport layout plan will be made available to FAA prior to start of

development.

All applicable closeout financial reports will be submitted to FAA within three (3) years of the
date of grant.

SPONSOR CERTIFICATION FOR SEISMIC DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

49 CFR Part 41 sets forth the requirements in the design and construction of the building(s) to be
financed with the assistance of the Federal Aviation Administration. Compliance will be met by
adhering to at least one of the following accepted standards:

1. Model codes found to provide a level of seismic safety substantially equivalent to that
provided by use of the 1988 National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program (NEHRP)
including:

a. The 1991 International Conference of Building Officials (IBCO) Uniform
Building Code, published by the International Conference of Building
Officials, 5360 South Workman Mill Road, Whittier, California 90601.

b. The 1992 Supplement to the Building Officials and Code Administration
International (BOCA) National Building Code, published by the Building
Officials and Code Administrators, 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country
Club Hills, Illinois 60478-5795.

C. The 1992 Amendments to the Southern Building Code Congress (SBCC) Standard
Building Code, published by the Southern Building Code Congress
International, 900 Montclair Road, Birmingham, Alabama 35213-1206.

2. Revisions to the model codes listed above that are substantially equivalent or exceed the
then current or immediately preceding edition of the NEHRP recommended provisions, as it is
updated, may be approved by the DOT Operating Administration to meet the requirements of 49
CFR Part 41.

26



3. State, county, local, or other jurisdictional building ordinances adopting and enforcing the
model codes, listed above, in their entirety, without significant revisions or changes in the direction
of less seismic safety, meet the requirement of 49 CFR Part 41.

The allowable costs of the project shall not include any costs determined by the FAA to be
ineligible for consideration under the Title 49 U.S.C.

Payment of the United States' share of the allowable project costs will be made pursuant to and in
accordance with the provisions of such regulations and procedures as the Secretary shall prescribe.
Final determination of the United States' share will be based upon the final audit of the total amount
of allowable project costs, and settlement will be made for any upward or downward adjustments
to the Federal share of costs.

Unless otherwise approved by the FAA, in accordance with 49 United States Code (U.S.C.) §
50101, Owner will not acquire or permit any contractor or subcontractor to acquire any steel or
manufactured goods produced outside the United States to be used for any project for which funds
are provided under this grant. Owner will include in a provision implementing Buy American in
every contract.

Submit at completion of the project, a final test and quality control report documenting the
results of all tests performed, highlighting those tests that failed or did not meet the applicable
test standard. The report shall include the pay reductions applied and reasons for accepting any
out-of-tolerance material. An interim test and quality control report shall be submitted, if
requested by the FAA.

49 CFR SUBTITLE A (10-1-03 EDITION)

Compliance with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act
(40 U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5).

Compliance with all applicable standards, orders or requirements issued under section 306 of the
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)), section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S. C. 1368),
Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR part 15).

Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state
energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub.
L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871).

46 U.S. C. 1241(b)(1) and 46 CFR part 381 impose cargo preference requirements on the shipment
of foreign made goods.

Section 165 of the Surface Transportation Assistance Act of 1982, 49 U.S.C. 1061, section 337 of
the Surface Transportation and Uniform Relocation Assistance Act of 1987, and 49 CFR parts 660
and 661 impose Buy America provisions on the procurement of foreign products and materials.

Section 105(f) of the Surface Transportation Assistance Act of 1982, section 106(c), of the Surface

Transportation and Uniform Relocation Assistance Act of 1987, and 49 CFR part 23 impose
requirements for the participation of disadvantaged business enterprises.

27



Section 308 of the Surface Transportation Assistance Act of 1982, 49 U.S.C. 1068(b)(2),
authorizes the use of competitive negotiation for the purchase of rolling stock as appropriate.

A breach by Contractor or any subcontractor, vendor or supplier of any of the federal or state laws
or regulations applicable to this Project may be grounds for termination of the contract, and
possibly debarment as a contractor or subcontractor.

The provisions of these Additional Special Provisions shall control over any contrary provision in
the Special Provisions or any other Contract Document.

Contractor waives any right of subrogation against Owner or Owner’s agents.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner, and
Owner’s officers, directors, partners, agents, consultants, and employees from and against any and
all claims, costs, losses, and damages up to $10,000,000 (including but not limited to all fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court, arbitration, or
other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the Project, provided that any such claim,
cost, loss or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or
destruction of tangible property (other than completed Construction), including the loss of use
resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission or reckless or
intentional wrongdoing of Contractor or Contractor’s officers, directors, partners, employees, or
subcontractors. The parties agree that this limit on indemnification amount bears a reasonable
commercial relationship to the contract. In any action construing the scope or nature of this
indemnification, the court shall construe this provision to comply with Section 725.06, Florida
Statutes, as amended.

Veteran’s Preference. In the employment of labor (except in executive, administrative, and
supervisory positions), preference shall be given to veterans of the Vietnam-era and disabled
veterans. However, this preference may be given only where the individuals are available and
qualified to perform the work to which the employment relates.

State Residents Preference.

(1) If state funds are utilized on this project, the Contractor shall give preference to the
employment of state residents in the performance of the work on the project if state residents have
substantially equal qualifications to those of nonresidents. A contract for construction funded by
local funds may contain such a provision.

(a) As used in this section, the term “substantially equal qualifications” means the
qualifications of two or more persons among whom the employer cannot make a
reasonable determination that the qualifications held by one person are better suited for
the position than the qualifications held by the other person or persons.

(b) A contractor required to employ state residents must contact the Agency for Workforce
Innovation to post the contractor’s employment needs in the state’s job bank system.

28



(2) No contract shall be let to any person refusing to execute an agreement containing this
provision. However, in work involving the expenditure of federal aid funds, this section may not
be enforced in such a manner as to conflict with or be contrary to federal law prescribing a labor
preference to honorably discharged soldiers, sailors, or marines, or prohibiting as unlawful any
other preference or discrimination among the citizens of the United States.

Punch List.

If the contract is for the provision of construction services, Owner shall provide for a single list of
items required to render the construction services complete, satisfactory, and acceptable (“punch
list”). For construction projects having an estimated cost of less than $10,000,000, the punch list
shall be developed within thirty days after Contractor and Owner agree that the project has
achieved substantial completion. For construction projects having an estimated cost of
$10,000,000 or more, the punch list shall be created within sixty calendar days after Owner and
Contractor agree that the Contractor has achieved substantial completion. Owner shall provide
the punch list to Contractor not more than five days after the punch list is completed.

The final contract completion date must be at least thirty days after the delivery of the punch list.
If the punch list is not provided to the Contractor by the agreed upon date for delivery, the contract
time for completion must be extended by the number of days that Owner exceeded the delivery
date.

Payment for Purchases of Construction Services.

Owner hereby identifies Mike Willingham as the agent to whom the Contractor may submit its
payment request or invoice or anyone that this agent designates in writing. A contractor’s
submission of a payment request or invoice to the identified agent of Owner shall be stamped as
received as provided in F.S. 218.74(1) and shall commence the time periods for payment or
rejection of a payment request or invoice as provided herein. If a payment request or invoice does
not meet the contract requirements, Owner must reject the payment request or invoice within
twenty business days after the date on which the payment request or invoice is stamped as received
as provided in F.S. 218.74(1). The rejection must be written and must specify the deficiency and
the action necessary to make the payment request or invoice proper.

Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. In any judicial or alternative dispute resolution technique action to
interpret or enforce any of the terms of this agreement, including any action by Owner to establish
the right to indemnification, the parties agree that the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award
of attorneys’ fees and costs payable by the non-prevailing party, whether such fees and costs are
incurred before, during or after trial, appellate proceeding or post-judgment collections.

Drug-Free Workplace
The Sebring Airport Authority is committed to maintain a safe, healthy and productive work

environment for all its employees; to provide professional services for its customers in a timely
and efficient manner; to maintain the integrity and security of its equipment and workplace; and
to perform all these functions in a fashion consistent with the interests and concerns of the
community.

Pursuant to these corporate goals, the Sebring Airport Authority is committed to establishing a
Drug-Free Workplace Program to ensure that SAA will have a drug- and alcohol-free workplace.

This program is intended to comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Program requirements set

forth in Section 440.102, Florida Statutes and the regulations promulgated by the State of

Florida, Department of Labor and Employment Security, Division of Workers' Compensation,
29



and Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988.

To enforce the Sebring Airport Authority's drug and alcohol-free policies and programs,
candidates for employment and current employees are required to submit to substance abuse
testing under certain circumstances set forth herein.

Scope. This policy applies to candidates for employment and to Sebring Airport Authority
employees in all job classifications at all locations. The drug-free workplace policy is intended to
apply whenever anyone is representing or conducting business for SAA. Therefore, this policy
applies during all working hours, whenever conducting business or representing the company,
during scheduled shifts, while on call, paid standby, while on company property, and at
company-sponsored events

Effective Date. The effective date of the Drug-Free Workplace Program is February 15, 1996
(Revised April 17, 2003).

It is a violation of the drug-free workplace policy to manufacture, distribute, purchase, dispense,
use, possess, possession of related paraphernalia, sell, trade, and/or offer for sale alcohol, illegal
drugs or intoxicants. For the purpose of this policy the definition of a “drug” includes alcoholic
beverages, inhalants, illegal drugs, intoxicants, and any other controlled substance that may alter
a person’s judgment. Employees under the influence drug or alcohol during work time are
subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. For the purpose of this policy,
“impaired” or “under the influence” means testing positive pursuant to the cutoff levels
applicable to this policy and testing program. Employees are expected to be in suitable mental
and physical condition and able to perform assigned duties satisfactorily during work time.

To ensure a safe work environment for Airport Authority employees, any employee who is
convicted of a criminal drug violation in the workplace must notify the Executive Director in
writing within five (5) calendar days of the arrest/conviction. Failure to do so will result in the
immediate termination of employment.

Tvpes of Testing:

a. Job Applicant Testing. All job offers are contingent on the applicant successfully passing a drug

test.

b.Reasonable Suspicion Testing. When Sebring Airport Authority management or

2.

3.
4.

5.

supervision has reasonable suspicion based on objective evidence to believe that an employee is
using or has used drugs or alcohol in violation of the Sebring Airport Authority's policy. Such
evidence may consist of, but is not limited to:

. Observable phenomena while at work, such as direct observation of drug/alcohol use or of the

physical symptoms or manifestations of being under the influence of

a drug or alcohol.

Abnormal conduct or erratic behavior while at work or a significant deterioration in work
performance.

A report of drug/alcohol use provided by a reliable and credible source.

Evidence that an individual has tampered with a drug/alcohol test required by the Sebring Airport
Authority.

Information that an employee has caused, contributed to, or been involved in an accident while at
work. An employee, who is unable to submit to testing at the

30



time of an accident due to the seriousness of his or her injuries, is required to

provide the necessary authorization for obtaining hospital reports and other documentation that
would indicate whether there were any drugs or alcohol in his

or her body system. Alternatively, the consent form signed earlier by the employee will authorize
testing in any circumstances.

6. Evidence that an employee has used, possessed, sold, solicited, or transferred drugs/alcohol while
working or while on the employer's premises or while operating the employer's vehicle,
machinery, or equipment.

Within seven (7) days after testing based on reasonable suspicion, the supervisor who
recommended the testing shall detail in writing on the Sebring Airport Authority's "Reasonable
Suspicion Testing Report Form" the circumstances which formed the basis of his or her belief
that reasonable suspicion existed to warrant the testing. A copy of this report shall be provided to
the employee being tested upon request and the original copy of the report shall be kept
confidential by the Sebring Airport Authority and retained for at least twelve (12) months.

c. Follow-up Testing. If in the course of employment an employee is required by the Sebring Airport
Authority to enter an Employee Assistance Program for drug/alcohol-related problems or a
drug/alcohol rehabilitation program, the employee must submit to drug testing

as a follow-up to such program, at least once a year, without advance notice, for two years
thereafter. Additional types of testing, such as random testing, may be required, as deemed
necessary by the Sebring Airport Authority as a part of the follow-up testing. Other terms and
conditions of continued employment may also be imposed.

d.Random Testing. Due to the safety-sensitive nature of the Airport Authority workplace and
environment, employees will be subject to random testing pursuant to a computer-generated
random selection procedure.

e. Post-Accident Testing. Employees who have been involved in an on-the-job accident are
automatically required to submit to a post-accident drug/alcohol screen once medical treatment
is administered. The employee is to submit to the screen as soon as possible within a twenty-four
(24) hour timeframe from the time of the accident if possible. Employees may obtain a chain of
custody form from the Executive Director (or designee) prior to testing.

Conditions of Testing:

a. Confidentiality. All information, interviews, reports, statements, memoranda, and drug test results
received by the Sebring Airport Authority in conjunction with this drug testing program are
considered confidential communications and such information will not be disclosed or released
except as authorized pursuant to state law or regulations or written consent by the person tested.

b. Consent Form. Each employee and applicant are required to sign at the inception of the

program and/or prior to any test a "Testing Consent Form" by which they voluntarily agree to be
tested for drugs and alcohol as provided in this program, and also release the Sebring Airport
Authority and its employees from liability. Refusal to sign the consent form will result in the
applicant's disqualification for further employment consideration, or the employee's termination
from the Sebring Airport Authority's employment.

c. Refusal to Submit to Testing. Job applicants and employees are expected to cooperate

fully in providing specimens and explanations, which may be subsequently required by this
policy. Failure to provide specimens, attempts to contaminate or adulterate specimens or
otherwise interfere with Sebring Airport Authority procedures will be grounds for disciplinary
action up to and including discharge or disqualification for further employment consideration. In
the case of a "negative/dilute" test result, the donor will be required to immediately

provide another specimen. A second negative/dilute result for a job applicant may disqualify the

31



applicant from further employment consideration. A second negative/dilute result for an
employee will subject the employee to immediate termination. An employee who is injured in
the course and scope of his employment and who refuses to submit to a drug test, or who tests
positive, in addition to the above, may forfeit his or her eligibility for Florida Workers'
Compensation medical and indemnity benefits. Any Sebring Airport Authority group
health/medical insurance in effect does not cover injuries sustained in the course and scope of
employment.

Testing Procedures:

a. Licensed/Certified Laboratory. All drug testing will be conducted by a Sebring Airport
Authority-designated laboratory, which is licensed by the State of Florida Agency for Health
Care Administration or certified by the United States Department of Health and Human Services.
The testing will be conducted with appropriate chain of custody procedures in place to ensure
accuracy and continuity in specimen collection, handling, transfer, and storage.

b.Drugs to be Tested. When testing is conducted in conjunction with this program, the Sebring
Airport Authority may test for any or all of the following drugs: amphetamines, barbiturates,
benzodiazepines, cannabinoids, cocaine, ethyl alcohol, methadone, methaqualone, opiates,
phencyclidine, and propoxyphene.

c.Reporting Medication, which may Alter, or Affect a Drug Test Result. Each
applicant/employee shall be provided an opportunity to report, both before and after being tested,
the use of prescription or non-prescription medication which may alter or affect the outcome of
a drug test, as well as any other information relevant to the drug test result. At that time,
employees will be provided a list of the most common medications, by brand name or common
name, as well as by chemical name, which may alter or affect a drug test result. The information
provided by the employee or job applicant should be kept confidential by the employee or
applicant and shall be reviewed only by a Medical Review Officer (MRO) interpreting any
confirmed positive results.

Job applicants and employees have the right to consult with a Medical Review Officer (MRO)
for technical information regarding prescription and non-prescription medication to determine
whether the medication has affected a drug or alcohol test result.

d. Cost of Testing. The Sebring Airport Authority will pay the costs of initial and confirmation drug
testing which it requires of job applicants and employees. Applicants and employees shall pay
the cost of any additional drug testing not required by the Sebring Airport Authority.

e. Collection Site and Laboratory Analysis Procedures. Security of the collection site, chain of
custody procedures, privacy of the individual, collection control, integrity and identity of the
specimen and transportation of the specimen to the laboratory, as well as all laboratory security,
laboratory chain of custody, transporting and receiving of specimens, specimen processing,
retesting, storage of specimens, instrument calibration and reporting of results, shall be in
accordance with § 112.0455, F .S., and its attendant rules as established by the State of Florida,
Agency for Health Care Administration, Rule 59A-24, F.A.C. These procedures are intended to
ensure that specimens are properly collected, identified and tested.

Release and Review of Test Results:

a. Medical Review Officer (MRQO). The Sebring Airport Authority will engage a certified Medical
Review Officer (MRO) who is a licensed physician, who will be responsible for receiving and
reviewing all confirmed test results from the testing laboratory.

b. Reporting Results. The testing laboratory will report all drug test results to the MRO within

32



seven (7) working days after receipt of the specimen by the laboratory and must provide the
MRO quantification of the test results upon request. Only specimens which are confirmed as
positive on the confirmation test shall be reported positive to an MRO for a specific drug.

The MRO will notify the applicant/employee of a confirmed positive test result within three
(3) days of receipt of the test result from the laboratory and will inquire whether prescriptive
or over-the-counter medications or other factors could have caused the positive test result. The
MRO may use a language interpreter to assist in communicating the drug test results with
employees and job applicants.

If the MRO is unable to contact a positively tested donor within three (3) days of receipt of the
test results from the laboratory, the MRO will contact the Sebring Airport Authority and request
that the Sebring Airport Authority direct the donor to contact the MRO as soon as possible. If the
MRO has not been contacted by the donor within two (2) days from the request to the Sebring
Airport Authority, the MRO will verify the test result as positive. If the donor refuses to talk with
the MRO regarding a positive test result, the MRO will validate the result as positive and
annotate such refusal in the remarks section of the report.

The donor will have five (5) days from the date of notification to discuss the positive test result
with the MRO and to submit information/documentation of use of prescription or over- the-
counter medication or other factors relevant to the positive test result.

The MRO will notify the Sebring Airport Authority in writing of the verified test result, either
negative, positive, or unsatisfactory no more than seven (7) working days after the specimen was
received by the lab. If the MRO determines that there is a legitimate medical

explanation for the positive test result, the MRO will report a negative test result to the Sebring
Airport Authority. However, should the MRO feel that the legal use of a medication would
endanger the donor or others, or if the donor is in a safety sensitive or special risk position at the
Sebring Airport Authority, then the MRO will report the test negative due to a validated
prescription but will request that the individual be placed in a position which would not threaten
the safety of the donor or others.

c. Employer Notice to Donor of Test Results. Within five (5) working days after receipt of a
confirmed positive test result from the MRO, the Sebring Airport Authority will inform the
donor in writing of such positive test results, the consequences of the results, and the options
available to the donor, including the right to file an administrative or legal challenge. Upon
request, a copy of the test results shall be provided to the donor.

Challenges to Test Results:

a. Intra-Organizational Challenge. The donor has five (5) working days after receiving notice from
the Sebring Airport Authority of a confirmed positive test result, to submit information to the
Sebring Airport Authority explaining or contesting the test result(s).If the donor's explanation or
challenge of a positive test result is deemed unsatisfactory by the Sebring Airport Authority, the
Sebring Airport Authority shall within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the donor's explanation or
challenge, provide the donor with a written explanation as to why his or her explanation is
deemed unsatisfactory, along with the report of positive result(s). All such documentation shall
be retained by the Sebring Airport Authority on a confidential basis for at least one (1) year.

b. Administrative or Legal Challenge. The applicant/employee may undertake an administrative
challenge of the test result by filing a claim for benefits with a Judge of Compensation Claims

33



pursuant to Ch.440, F.S., or if no workplace injury has occurred, the donor may challenge the
test result in a Court of competent jurisdiction. When a donor undertakes a challenge to the results
of a test, it shall be his or her responsibility to notify the employer and testing laboratory of the
challenge, and the testing sample shall be retained by the laboratory until the case is settled.

c. Independent Testing. In the event of a positive test result, the donor, during the one hundred-

eighty (180) day period after written notification of a positive test result, may request independent
testing at his/her own expense of a portion of the tested specimen for verification of the test result.
The laboratory utilized for the independent testing must also be licensed by the State of Florida
Agency for Health Care Administration or certified by the United States Department of Health
and Human Services. The result(s) of the independent testing may be used in any administrative
or legal challenge.

Consequences of Positive Test Results/Disciplinary Action:

a.Job Applicants. If the results of a pre-employment drug test are confirmed positive, the job

applicant will be disqualified from further employment consideration.

b. Employees. Any employee whose test results are confirmed positive, will be subject to

®© N

disciplinary action up to and including termination.

The Sebring Airport Authority reserves the right to suspend an employee without pay pending
the release of the results of a drug test or the outcome of an investigation related to a violation of
the Sebring Airport Authority's drug/alcohol-free workplace policy.

Drug/Alcohol-Free Workplace Awareness/Education Program:

This Awareness/Education Program is designed to help achieve the Sebring Airport Authority's
goal of maintaining a drug/alcohol-free workplace.

. Ongoing communications to Sebring Airport Authority employees and supervisory personnel that

include educational and informational materials advising about the dangers of drug and alcohol
use and/or abuse.

Display and distribution to Sebring Airport Authority employees of community service hot- line
telephone numbers for employee assistance concerning drug and alcohol use

and/or abuse.

Specific training of Sebring Airport Authority's management and supervisory personnel who are
responsible for determining when an individual is subject to testing based on

"reasonable suspicion." Such training will encompass the specific, contemporaneous physical,

behavioral, and performance indications of probable drug use.

Annual education for all Sebring Airport Authority employees to assist them in identifying
personal and emotional problems which may result in the misuse of alcohol or drugs. The course
will include a presentation on the legal, social, physical, and emotional

consequences of misuse of alcohol or drugs.

Maintaining a current resource file of EAP providers, including alcohol and drug abuse programs,
mental health providers, and various other entities designed to assist employees with personal or
behavioral problems.

Advise employees of any EAP programs that the Sebring Airport Authority may have available
and provide a representative sampling of local drug/alcohol rehabilitation programs and
employee assistance programs.

Provide notice of drug-testing on vacancy announcements for upcoming jobs.

Post notice of Sebring Airport Authority's drug/alcohol-testing policy.

34



9. Make copies of drug/alcohol testing policy available for inspection by employees and job
applicants.

Rehabilitation:

The Sebring Airport Authority supports sound treatment efforts. No employee will be retaliated
against for voluntarily seeking assistance for problems relating to drug/alcohol use and/or abuse.
It is the Sebring Airport Authority's desire that individuals will be allowed to address and resolve
any drug- and alcohol-related problems on a confidential basis.

Should an employee realize that he or she has developed a dependence on drugs, alcohol or any
controlled substance, he or she is advised to seek trained, professional assistance immediately.
Employees are encouraged to seek rehabilitation on a voluntary and confidential basis (without
disciplinary penalty) prior to any management action, to address and resolve any drug- and
alcohol-related problems. However, if the employee works in a safety-sensitive position, it is
incumbent upon the employee to inform his/her immediate supervisor of his/her entry into a
rehabilitation program for drug and/or alcohol problem(s). The Sebring Airport Authority
reserves the right to require an employee to use an EAP or drug rehabilitation program selected
by the Sebring Airport Authority. In such cases, the Sebring Airport Authority will pay the cost
of the program. In all other cases, the cost will be paid by the employee, unless it is covered by
insurance.

In order to afford an effective means of helping employees deal with substance abuse which may
be interfering with their job performance, the Sebring Airport Authority has contracted with an
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) provider, Florida Hospital, which offers SAA employees
and their families substance abuse treatment and rehabilitation services. Pertinent information
regarding these services is available by contacting Florida Hospital, 4421 Sun 'n Lake Boulevard,
Suite A, Sebring, FL. 33870, Help Line: 314-4357 (314-HELP) or by contacting the Sebring
Airport Authority Representative Director of Finance. You can use the EAP without informing
the Sebring Airport Authority.

Searches:

In order to effectively implement the Sebring Airport Authority's Drug-Free Workplace
Program, the Sebring Airport Authority retains the right to conduct searches and inspections
whenever there is objective evidence that an employee may be in possession of alcohol or any
illegal drugs on Sebring Airport Authority property or within its facilities or may otherwise be in
violation of Sebring Airport Authority policy. It is not the intent of this policy, and the Sebring
Airport Authority will not, conduct routine or random searches or inspections.

When searches or inspections are necessary, they will be conducted according to the following
guidelines:

1. The search or inspection will be conducted by Airport security personnel.
The search or inspection will occur in the presence of a Drug-Free Workplace designee or
the Executive Director and at least one witness of the Airport Authority's choice.

3. The search or inspection may include the employee's locker, clothing, vehicle, desk or any
Airport Authority or personal property carried by or under control of the employee.

4. A list of contents of the area or items searched will be made and witnessed to protect the

35



rights of the employee to that property.

5. If the search uncovers material, which is believed to be unauthorized drugs, alcohol, or other
prohibited items, the Sebring Airport Authority representative may confiscate the material.
The employee will be given receipt for any material taken. Authorized or lawful possessions
of the employee will be returned.

6. Entry onto the Sebring Airport Authority premises (including the parking lot) constitutes
consent to a search and inspection. In addition, the execution of a "Search Consent Form"
will be required of each employee prior to a search or inspection. Refusal will result in the
employee's termination from the Sebring Airport Authority's employment.

7. If a search or inspection reveals the presence of unauthorized alcohol or illegal drugs, the
employee will be subject to immediate drug and alcohol testing, and disciplinary action, up
to and including termination of employment.

Conclusion. It is in the best interest of the Sebring Airport Authority to maintain a workplace,
which is free from the presence of alcohol and drugs and free from the impairments associated
with alcohol and drug use and/or abuse. The Airport Authority’s concerns with respect to
employee safety and health, product quality, and integrity and security of SAA equipment and
workplace require that SAA take an active approach to maintain a safe, healthful, drug- and
alcohol-free work environment for all employees. In furtherance of these corporate goals, the
Sebring Airport Authority has established this Drug-Free Workplace Program, which is intended
to comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Program requirements under §440.102, F. S. and
regulations promulgated by the State of Florida, Department of Labor and Employment Security,
Division of Workers' Compensation and the Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988.

The policies and procedures set forth in the Sebring Airport Authority's Drug-Free Workplace
Program constitute statements of policy only and are not to be interpreted as a contract of
employment between the Sebring Airport Authority and any of its employees. The Sebring
Airport Authority reserves the right to change, modify, or delete any of the program's provisions
and policies at any time. The policies contained in this Drug-Free Workplace Program supersede
all prior Sebring Airport Authority policies on substance abuse.

INSURANCE

The Consultant shall not commence work until it has obtained all insurance required under this
paragraph and that insurance has been approved by SAA.

All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized or approved to do business under
the laws of the State of Florida. The Consultant shall furnish Certificates of Insurance to SAA
prior to the commencement of work. The Certificates shall clearly indicate that the Consultant
has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classifications required for strict compliance
hereunder. Compliance with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the Consultant of its
liability and obligations hereunder.

The Consultant shall maintain comprehensive general liability insurance in the amount of
$1,000,000 per occurrence to protect the Consultant from claims of property damages which may
arise from any operations hereunder whether such operations be by the Consultant or by anyone
directly employed by or contracting with the Consultant.

36



The Consultant shall maintain comprehensive automobile liability insurance in the amounts of
$500,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage to protect the Consultant
from claims for damages for bodily injury, including wrongful death, as well as from claims from
property damage, which may arise from the ownership, use, or maintenance of owned and non-
owned automobiles, including rented automobiles whether such operations be by the Consultant
or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Consultant.

The Consultant shall maintain adequate Workman’s Compensation Insurance and Employer’s
Liability Insurance in at least such amounts as are required by law for all of its employees
performing work for SAA. All insurance, other than Professional Liability and Workman’s
Compensation, to be maintained by the Consultant shall specifically include SAA as an
“Additional Insured”.

BAN ON TEXTING WHILE DRIVING

A. In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging
While Driving, October 1, 2009, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While Driving,
December 30, 2009, Owner is encouraged to:

1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by
distracted drivers including policies to ban text messaging while driving when
performing any work for, or on behalf of, the Federal government, including work
relating to ACRGP Grant or subgrant funding.

2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of
business, such as:

a) Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing
programs to prohibit text messaging while driving; and

b) Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety
risks associated with texting while driving.

B. Owner must insert the substance of this clause on banning texting while driving in all
subgrants, contracts and subcontracts funded by a ACRGP Grant.

GRANT ASSURANCES

Contractor agrees not to undertake and action that would violate any of the Grant Assurances in
connection with FAA financial assistance programs.

SIGNAGE

If this is a Federally-assisted airport improvement project, Contractor shall post signs consistent
with a DOT/FAA-prescribed format, as may be requested by the DOT/FAA, and further agrees to
remove any signs posted in response to requests received prior to February 1, 2025.

37



SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

MEETING DATE: July 17, 2025

PRESENTER: Andrew Bennett

AGENDA ITEM: Professional Engineering Services — Fuel Farm
Improvements — AtkinsRealis — Construction
Management

BACKGROUND: Under the Authority’s general on-call consulting services

agreement with AtkinsRealis, staff commissioned the firm to provide construction
management services for the Fuel Farm Improvement project. AtkinsRéalis will
provide professional services for the project including construction administration
and technical support during construction and assist in the preparation of
closeout documents. Cost for services is covered by FAA Infrastructure
Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Airport Infrastructure Grant (AIG) and Florida
Department of Transportation (FDOT) grant funding.

REQUESTED MOTION: Move to approve contract as presented and authorize
the Chairman or Vice Chairman and Secretary or Assistant Secretary to execute
contract in the amount of Forty-Nine Thousand Three Hundred Seventy Dollars
($49,370.00).

Board Action:
Approved _ X

Denied B
Tabled



CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES
FOR THE FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT AT THE SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT
(ATKINSREALLIS)
DATED July 17, 2025

This Contract is between the SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a body politic and corporate of the
State of Florida (herein referred to as the “AUTHORITY”) and ATKINSREALIS, a foreign profit
corporation (herein referred to as the “CONSULTANT”).

PREMISE. AUTHORITY solicited bids for its FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS project pursuant to ITB
#25-07. AUTHORITY has entered into a contract with MDM Services, Inc. to perform that construction
and AUTHORITY would like CONSULTANT to provide professional services and technical support
during construction including providing resident project representative (RPR) services, attendance at
meetings, review of submittals, responses to requests for information, and the preparation of record
drawings.

The AUTHORITY and CONSULTANT entered into a Continuing Contract pursuant to the Consultants’
Competitive Negotiation Act on May 15, 2025. Pursuant to that agreement, CONSULTANT would like
to perform the work described herein. The services are more particularly described in Attachment A
and shall hereafter be referred to as “Services.” CONSULTANT represents that it has examined the
Project site thoroughly before entering this agreement and is knowledgeable of all site conditions and
issues relevant to the performance of the Services. CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to an increase
in price or time by virtue of any site condition requirement.

ARTICLE 1 — PRICE

The AUTHORITY shall pay to CONSULTANT a lump sum amount for all fees and expenses of Forty-
Nine Thousand Three Hundred Seventy ($49,370.00) as the total price for the Services, including
CONSULTANT's direct expenses and expenses of subconsultants and subcontractors. The price is
based on the assumptions included on Attachment A. On or about the first day of each month,
CONSULTANT shall make application for payment based upon percentages of completion of the
Services completed up to the last day of the previous month, less the aggregate of previous payments.
AUTHORITY’s Executive Director and engineer must approve each payment request. Each payment
application shall also:

A. detail an explanation of Services completed by CONSULTANT and its subconsultants
and subcontractors requesting payment; and

B. include a certification that the amount of the invoice is accurate in relation to the
Services performed under any subcontractor contract.

ARTICLE 2 - COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION DATES

CONSULTANT hereby agrees to commence work under this contract when the Contractor begins
work and to continue work until the Project is complete.

ARTICLE 3 — PAYMENT OF INVOICES

Prior to payment, invoices received from the CONSULTANT pursuant to his Contract will be reviewed
and approved by the initiating department, indicating that services have been rendered in conformity
with the contract. The Authority shall pay CONSULTANT on a monthly invoiced basis for the
percentage of the work completed in each monthly reporting period. Upon CONSULTANT’s



application for payment, the Executive Director, or his designee, will make inspection and if he finds
the Services are acceptable under the contract, he will submit the payment request to the Finance
Director for payment.

ARTICLE 4 — TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE

The signing of this Contract by the CONSULTANT shall act as the execution of a truth-in-negotiation
certificate certifying that the wage rates and costs used to determine the compensation provided for
in this Contract is accurate, complete and current as of the date of this Contract.

The said rates and costs shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums should the AUTHORITY
determine that the rates and costs were increased due to the inaccurate, incomplete or noncurrent
wage rates or due to inaccurate representations of fees paid to outside consultants. The AUTHORITY
shall exercise its rights under this provision within one year following final payment.

ARTICLE 5 — TERMINATION

This Contract may be terminated by the CONSULTANT upon 30 days prior written notice to the
AUTHORITY in the event of substantial failure by the AUTHORITY to perform in accordance with the
terms of this Contract through no fault of the CONSULTANT. It may also be terminated by the
AUTHORITY with or without cause upon 30 days written notice to the CONSULTANT. Unless the
CONSULTANT is in breach of this Contract, the CONSULTANT shall be paid for services rendered
to the AUTHORITY through the date of termination. After receipt of a Termination Notice and except
as otherwise directed by the AUTHORITY, the CONSULTANT shall:

A. Stop work on the date and to the extent specified.

B. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the performance of
terminated work.

C. Transfer all work in process, completed work, and other material related to the
terminated work to the AUTHORITY.

D. Continue and complete all parts of the work that have not been terminated.

ARTICLE 6 - PERSONNEL

The CONSULTANT represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel
required to perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or
have any contractual relationship with the AUTHORITY.

All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the CONSULTANT or under its
supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if
required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services.

Any changes or substitutions in the CONSULTANT’s key personnel must be made known to the
AUTHORITY’s representative and written approval granted by the AUTHORITY before said change
or substitution can become effective.

ARTICLE 7 — KEY PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT




The CONSULTANT and the AUTHORITY agree to assign the following key personnel required to
perform the services necessary under this Contract:

ARTICLE 8 - SUBCONTRACTING

CONSULTANT reserves the right to select any subcontractors that may be necessary.

The AUTHORITY reserves the right to accept the use of a subcontractor or to reject the selection of
a particular subcontractor and to inspect all facilities of any subcontractors in order to make a
determination as to the capability of the subcontractor to perform properly under this Contract. The
CONSULTANT is encouraged to seek minority and women business enterprises for participation in
subcontracting opportunities.

If a subcontractor fails to perform or make progress, as required by this Contract, and it is necessary
to replace the subcontractor to complete the work in a timely fashion, the CONSULTANT shall
promptly do so, subject to acceptance of the new subcontractor by the AUTHORITY.

The Price includes all costs and fees of all subcontractors.

ARTICLE 9 — FEDERAL AND STATE TAX

The AUTHORITY is exempt from Federal Tax and State Tax for Tangible Personal Property. The
AUTHORITY will sign an exemption certificate submitted by the CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT
shall not be exempted from paying sales tax to its suppliers for materials to fulfill contractual
obligations with the AUTHORITY, nor shall the CONSULTANT be authorized to use the
AUTHORITY’s Tax Exemption Number in obtaining such materials.

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for payment of its own taxes.

ARTICLE 10 — AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The obligations of the AUTHORITY under this Contract are subject to the availability of funds lawfully
appropriated for its purpose by the Board of the Sebring Airport Authority and the federal government.

ARTICLE 11 — INSURANCE

A. The CONSULTANT shall not commence work under this Agreement until it has
obtained all insurance required under this paragraph and that insurance has been
approved by the AUTHORITY.

B. All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized or approved to do
business under the laws of the State of Florida. The CONSULTANT shall furnish
Certificates of Insurance to the AUTHORITY prior to the commencement of work under
this Contract. The Certificates shall clearly indicate that the CONSULTANT has
obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classifications required for strict
compliance with this Article. Compliance with the foregoing requirements shall not
relieve the CONSULTANT of its liability and obligations under this Contract.



C. The CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain professional liability or malpractice or
errors or omissions insurance with minimum limits of $2,000,000 per occurrence. If a
claims made form of coverage is provided, the retroactive date of coverage shall be no
later than the inception date of claims made coverage, unless the prior policy was
extended indefinitely to cover prior acts. Coverage shall be extended beyond the policy
year either by a supplemental extended reporting period (ERP) of as great duration as
available, and with no less coverage and with reinstated aggregate limits, or by
requiring that any new policy provide a retroactive date no later than the inception date
of claims made coverage.

D. The CONSULTANT shall maintain, during the life of this Contract, comprehensive
general liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence to protect the
CONSULTANT from claims of damages which may arise from any operations under
this Contract whether such operations be by the CONSULTANT or by anyone directly
employed by or contracting with the CONSULTANT. Coverage A shall include bodily
injury and property damage liability for premises, operations, independent contractors,
contractual liability covering this agreement, broad form property damage, and
property damage resulting from explosion, collapse or underground (x,c,u) exposures.
Coverage B shall include personal injury. The CONSULTANT is required to continue
to purchase products and completed operations coverage, at least to satisfy this
agreement for a minimum of two years beyond AUTHORITY’s acceptance of
renovation or construction projects.

E. The CONSULTANT shall maintain, during the life of this Contract, comprehensive
automobile liability insurance in the amounts of $500,000 combined single limit for
bodily injury and property damage to protect the CONSULTANT from claims for
damages for bodily injury, including wrongful death, as well as from claims from
property damage, which may arise from the ownership, use, or maintenance of owned
and non-owned automobiles, including rented automobiles whether such operations
be by the CONSULTANT or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the
CONSULTANT.

F. The CONSULTANT shall maintain, during the life of this Contract, adequate
Workman’s Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance in at least
such amounts as are required by law for all of its employees performing work for the
AUTHORITY pursuant to this Contract.

G. All insurance, other than Professional Liability and Workman’s Compensation, to be
maintained by the CONSULTANT shall specifically include the AUTHORITY as an
“Additional Insured.”

ARTICLE 12 - WARRANTY

The CONSULTANT warrants that all services shall be performed by skilled and competent personnel
to generally accepted professional standards.

ARTICLE 13 — INDEMNIFICATION

Subject to limitations of Florida law, the CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless the
AUTHORITY, and its officers and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including,
but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness,



or intentionally wrongful conduct of the CONSULTANT and other persons employed or utilized by the
CONSULTANT in the performance of the contract. CONSULTANT’s liability for indemnification shall
be limited to $2,000,000.00.

ARTICLE 14 — SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

The AUTHORITY and the CONSULTANT each binds itself and its partners, successors, executors,
administrators and assigns to the other party of this Contract and to the partners, successors,
executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Contract.
Neither the AUTHORITY nor the CONSULTANT shall assign, convey or transfer its interest in the
Contract without the written consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any
personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of the AUTHORITY which may be a party hereto,
nor shall it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than the
AUTHORITY and the CONSULTANT.

ARTICLE 15 — REMEDIES

This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any and all legal action necessary
to enforce the Contract will be held in Highlands County, Florida, and the Contract will be interpreted
according to the laws of the State of Florida. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended
to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall
be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or by statute
or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall
preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

ARTICLE 16 — CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The CONSULTANT represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either
direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required
hereunder, consistent with the intent and declaration of policy stated in Section 112.311, Florida
Statutes. The CONSULTANT further represents that no person having any interest shall be employed
for said performance.

The CONSULTANT shall promptly notify the AUTHORITY in writing of potential conflicts of interest
for any prospective business associations, interest or other circumstances which may influence or
appear to influence the CONSULTANT’s judgment or quality of services being provided under a
specific Consultant Services Agreement. Such written notification shall identify the prospective
business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the CONSULTANT may
undertake and request an opinion of the AUTHORITY as to whether the association, interest or
circumstance would, in the opinion of the AUTHORITY, constitute a conflict of interest if entered into
by the CONSULTANT. The AUTHORITY agrees to notify the CONSULTANT of its opinion by certified
mail within 30 days of receipt of notification by the CONSULTANT. If, in the opinion of the
AUTHORITY, the prospective business association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a
conflict of interest by the CONSULTANT, the AUTHORITY shall so state in the notification, and it shall
be deemed not to be a conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the AUTHORITY by the
CONSULTANT under the terms of this Contract.

ARTICLE 17 — EXCUSABLE DELAYS

The CONSULTANT shall not be considered in default by reason of any failure in performance if such
failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the CONSULTANT’s control and without its fault or



negligence. Such causes may include, but are not limited to: acts of God, the AUTHORITY’s omissive
and commissive failures; natural or public health emergencies; labor disputes; freight embargoes; and
severe weather conditions. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for the timely completion of
subcontractor’s work.

Upon the CONSULTANT’s request, the AUTHORITY shall consider the facts and extent of any failure
to perform the work and, if the CONSULTANT’s failure to perform was due to causes reasonably
beyond the CONSULTANT’s control and without its fault or negligence, the Contract Schedule and/or
other affected provision of this Contract shall be revised accordingly, subject to the AUTHORITY’s
rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time.

ARTICLE 18 — ARREARS

The CONSULTANT shall not pledge the AUTHORITY’s credit or make the AUTHORITY a guarantor
of payment or surety for any contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien or any form of indebtedness.
The CONSULTANT further warrants and represents that it has no obligation or indebtedness that
would impair its ability to fulfill the terms of this Contract.

ARTICLE 19 —DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

The CONSULTANT shall deliver to the AUTHORITY, if requested, reproducibles and computer files
of all final documents and materials prepared by and for the AUTHORITY under this Contract.

Submission or distribution of documents to meet official regulatory requirements or for similar
purposes in connection with the Project or tasks assigned the CONSULTANT is not to be construed
as publication in derogation of any right therein reserved by the CONSULTANT.

If, however, the AUTHORITY uses for any other purpose the CONSULTANT’s documents, drawings,
and specifications, or reuses them without written verification or adaptation by the CONSULTANT for
the specific purpose intended, it will be at the AUTHORITY’s sole risk and without liability or legal
exposure to the CONSULTANT or to the CONSULTANT’s independent professional associates or
consultants. Any such verification or adaptation will entitle the CONSULTANT to further compensation
at rates to be agreed upon by the AUTHORITY and the CONSULTANT.

The CONSULTANT shall have the right to include representations of the design of the project(s)
including photographs of the exterior and interior, among the CONSULTANT’s promotional and
professional material. The CONSULTANT’s materials shall not include the AUTHORITY’s
confidential or proprietary information if the AUTHORITY advises the CONSULTANT of the specific
information considered to be confidential or proprietary.

ARTICLE 20 — INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT RELATIONSHIP

The CONSULTANT is, and shall be, in the performance of all work, services, and activities under this
Contract an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, or servant of the AUTHORITY. All
persons engaged in any of the work or services performed pursuant to this Contract shall at all times,
and in all places, be subject to the CONSULTANT’s sole direction, supervision, and control. The
CONSULTANT shall exercise control over the means and manner in which it and its employees
perform the work, and in all respects the CONSULTANT’s relationship and the relationship of its
employees to the AUTHORITY shall be that of an independent contractor and not as employees or
agents of the AUTHORITY.



The CONSULTANT does not have the power or authority to bind the AUTHORITY in any promise,
agreement or representation other than specifically provided for in this Contract or amendment
thereto.

ARTICLE 21 — CONTINGENT FEES

The CONSULTANT warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than
a bona fide employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Contract and that
it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a
bona fide employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or
any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract.

ARTICLE 22 — ACCESS AND AUDITS

The CONSULTANT shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, expenses, and costs
incurred in performing work pursuant to this Contract for at least three (3) years after completion of
this Contract. The AUTHORITY shall have access to such books, records, and documents as required
in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during normal business hours, at the
AUTHORITY’s cost, upon five (5) days written notice. Consultant shall also permit review of all records
pertaining to this project that fall within the purview of Florida Statute 119.07.

ARTICLE 23 — NONDISCRIMINATION

The CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee employed in the performance of this
contract, or against any applicant for employment because of age, race, sec, creed, color, handicap,
national origin, or marital status.

ARTICLE 24 — HARASSMENT-FREE WORKPLACE

The CONSULTANT shall provide a harassment-free workplace, with any allegation of harassment
given priority attention and action by management. The CONSULTANT shall insert a provision in
accordance with this Article in all subcontracts for services in relation to this contract.

ARTICLE 25 — PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a
public entity crime may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or
services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity
for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or
replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a
contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not
transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in s. 287.017 for
CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted
vendor list.

ARTICLE 26 — DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

CONSULTANT acknowledges that The Authority is a drug-free work place. CONSULTANT
covenants that all employees of CONSULTANT working upon The Authority property shall be subject
to implementation of all possible provisions to maintain a drug-free environment and that
CONSULTANT will adhere to the provisions of Florida Statute 287.087.


http://www.flsenate.gov/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=287.133&URL=CH0287/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=287.133&URL=Ch0287/Sec017.HTM

ARTICLE 27 — COMPLIANCE WITH DAVIS-BACON ACT REQUIREMENTS

The CONSULTANT hereby agrees, where required on Federal Grant assisted projects, to comply
with applicable portions of the Davis-Bacon and related acts which regulate employee wages and
benefits. The CONSULTANT further acknowledges the possible necessity for amending the Contract
in order to comply with Federal guidelines applicable to Grant Assisted projects which may be
undertaken by the AUTHORITY.

ARTICLE 28 — SURVIVAL

All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein, or otherwise made in writing
by any party pursuant hereto, including but not limited to any representations made herein relating to
disclosure or ownership or documents, shall survive the execution and delivery of this Contract and
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

ARTICLE 29 — ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT

The AUTHORITY and the CONSULTANT agree that this Contract sets forth the entire agreement
between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein.
None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Contract may be added to, modified,
superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto.

ARTICLE 30 — ENFORCEMENT COSTS

In any action brought by either party for the interpretation or enforcement of the obligations of the
other party, including the establishment of a right to indemnification, the prevailing party shall be
entitled to recover from the losing party all reasonable attorney’s fees, paralegal fees, court and other
costs, even if not taxable as court costs, whether incurred before or at trial, on appeal, in bankruptcy
or in post judgment collections.

ARTICLE 31 — AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE

The CONSULTANT hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all
licenses and approvals required to conduct its business, that it will at all times conduct its business
activities in a reputable manner, and that it will maintain for duration of this Contract a current
certificate of registration required under Chapter 471, Florida Statutes.

ARTICLE 32 - SEVERABILITY

If any term or provision of this Contract, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances
shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Contract, or the application
of such term or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid
or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Contract shall be
deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE 33 — AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATION

No amendments and/or modifications of this Contract shall be valid unless in writing and signed by
each of the parties.



The AUTHORITY reserves the right to make changes in the scope of work, including alterations,
reductions therein or additions thereto. Upon receipt by the CONSULTANT of the AUTHORITY’s
notification of a contemplated change, the CONSULTANT shall, if requested by AUTHORITY: (1)
provide an estimate for the increase or decrease in cost due to the contemplated change, (2) notify
the AUTHORITY of any estimated change in the completion date, and (3) advise the AUTHORITY in
writing if the contemplated change shall effect the CONSULTANT’s ability to meet the completion
dates or schedules of this Contract.

If the AUTHORITY so instructs in writing, the CONSULTANT shall suspend work on the portion of the
work affected by a contemplated change, pending the AUTHORITY’s decision to proceed with the
change.

If the AUTHORITY elects to make the change, the AUTHORITY shall issue a Contract Amendment
or Change Order and the CONSULTANT shall not commence work on any such change until such
written amendment or change order has been issued and signed by each of the parties.

ARTICLE 34 — AUTHORITY’'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Provided such information is reasonably required by the CONSULTANT to perform its services under
this Contract, the AUTHORITY shall:

1. Provide full information regarding requirements for the projects and tasks.

2. Designate a representative authorized to act on the AUTHORITY’s behalf with respect
to the projects or tasks. The AUTHORITY or that authorized representative shall render
decisions in a timely manner pertaining to documents submitted by the CONSULTANT
in order to avoid unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the
CONSULTANT’s services.

3. Furnish to the extent in its possession, surveys describing available information on
utility locations, written legal descriptions of the sites, easements, encroachments,
zoning, deed restrictions, and other available information to assist the CONSULTANT
in developing proper scopes of service and fulfilling project or task objectives.

4. Assist in gaining access to and make all provisions for access required for the
CONSULTANT to enter upon public and private property as required for the
CONSULTANT to perform services under this Contract.

5. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other
documents presented by the CONSULTANT and render decisions and comments
regarding them within a reasonable time so as not to delay the services of the
CONSULTANT.

ARTICLE 35 — NOTICE

All notices required in this Contract shall be sent certified mail, return receipt requested, and shall be
mailed to:

AUTHORITY: CONSULTANT:
Executive Director Heather Meyer, Project Manager - Aviation



Sebring Airport Authority AtkinsRealis Construction (USA), INC.
128 Authority Lane 1514 Broadway, Suite 202
Sebring, FL 33870 Fort Myers, FL 33901

ARTICLE 36 — LAWS AND REGULATIONS

CONSULTANT shall comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, orders and regulations relating to
performance of the Services and the protection of persons and property.

ARTICLE 37 —CHANGE ORDERS

No changes in the Services covered by this contract shall be made without prior written approval of
the Authority. Charges or credits for Services on the approved changes shall be as mutually
determined by the parties. Without invalidating this contract, the AUTHORITY may order extra
Services or make changes by altering, adding to or deducting from the Services with the contract price
being adjusted accordingly. All extra Services shall be paid for at the price agreed to between the
parties and no claims for any extras shall be allowed unless order in writing by the AUTHORITY with
the price stated in such order.

ARTICLE 38 — ASSIGNMENT

CONSULTANT shall not assign this contract, in whole or in part, or any monies due or to become due
hereunder, without the written consent of The Authority.

ARTICLE 39 — PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED

In addition to the notices, requirements and certifications included in the attached “Legal Provisions”
document, each and every term of “Legal Provisions” is incorporated herein by reference as if fully
included herein. Each and every other provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in
this document shall be deemed to be inserted herein and the contract shall be read and enforced as
though it were included, and if, through mistake or otherwise, any such provision is not inserted, or is
not correctly inserted, then upon application of either party, the contract shall forthwith be physically
amended to make such insertion or correction.

ARTICLE 40 — PUBLIC RECORDS

CONSULTANT is required to keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily
would be required by SAA in order to perform the service sought herein. CONSULTANT is
required to provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions
that SAA would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in
Ch. 119.07 et seq., Fla. Stat. or as otherwise provided by law. CONSULTANT must ensure
that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure
requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law and must meet all requirements
for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to SAA all public records in possession
of the contractor upon termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public records
that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All
records stored electronically must be provided to SAA in a format that is compatible with the

information technology systems of the public agency. IF CONSULTANT HAS
QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA



STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT MIKE
WILLINGHAM, THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS

at
863-314-1300, mike@sebring-airport.com or 128 AUTHORITY LANE,
SEBRING, FL 33870.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals
effective the date first written above.
WITNESSES

SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a
body politic and c

orporate of the State of
Florida 7 / ,
Coni O ) aal
W—‘ By ﬁ;{*) /// / V////&’
Prinf@ﬂ Name: _ JamiOlive = Stanley Wells! as its Chair or
. D. Craig Johnson, as its Vice Chair

\

_CQ&A&L
Printed Name: __A adcew Denpnatd Attest: M/

&~ Carl Cool, as its Secretary or
{

WITNESSES:

CONSULTANT: ATKINSREALIS USA, -
INC., a foreign profit corporation "',,,“ “‘\\\‘
It

PR

V' kEviw -maay u-_‘\,

Darin R. Larson, as its Vice President
//.//oéiu AN

Printed Name:



mailto:mike@sebring-airport.com

ATTACHMENT A

SCOPE OF WORK
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES
FOR THE FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS
AT SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR AIRPORTS

. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Sebring Airport Authority (SAA) owns and operates Sebring Regional Airport (SEF). At the
request of SAA (AUTHORITY), AtkinsRéalis (CONSULTANT) acting as Construction Manager
(CM), has drafted this scope of services to define the effort necessary to accomplish the Fuel
Farm Improvements (the “Project”) at SEF.

The project includes the upgrade to the fuel facilities currently located on the northeast side of the
terminal apron. AtkinsRéalis understands this project to include the following: removal and
disposal of the existing 1,000-gallon UL94 fuel tank and corresponding fuel dispenser system;
relocation of 1,000- gallon diesel fuel tank to the southeast side of the fuel farm. A new 10,000-
gallon UL94 fuel tank and associated equipment including transfer equipment, meter, hose, reel
system, sump recovery tank, and ladder/platform. The tank will be installed and be compliant with
DEP and NFPA requirements. This upgrade is intended to provide a useable self-serve fuel tank,
which will be connected to the existing QT PODM4000 and provide adequate fuel storage for the
airport. Additional work includes installing underground electrical and all required electrical work,
including potential electrical panel upgrades. This includes modifications to the existing 120/240V,
3-phase, 4-wire electrical system and controls system at the Sebring Fuel Farm. Installation of
Scully automatic shutdown system and the addition of a common tank electronic gauging system
to be connected to new and existing fuel tanks. Fuel farm fence modifications will be needed to
accommodate the new tank(s). The alternative bid includes designing, fabricating, delivering, and
installing, connecting and testing one (1) 12,000-gallon Jet-A companion tank, connected to the
fuel farms existing main tank infrastructure via above ground piping. The tank shall be above-
ground, double wall steel, and OSHA approved stairs/platform access shall be incorporated within
the existing infrastructure.

AtkinsRéalis will provide professional services for the project including construction administration
and technical support during construction and assist in the preparation of closeout documents.
The contract documents allow 60 calendar days from the notice to proceed to final completion of
construction plus an additional 30 calendar days for project closeout.

OWNER Sebring Airport Authority (SAA)
CM AtkinsRéalis
FAA Federal Aviation Administration

Il. SCOPE OF SERVICES

For the purposes of scope definition and CM fee development, the work has been divided into the
following tasks. Any modifications and/or revisions to these tasks will constitute a change in the
project scope and may require a revision to the compensation to be paid to the CM. These tasks
will begin once the AUTHORITY provides the CM with a written Notice to Proceed.

Page 1 of 6



Task 1: Project Administration and Coordination

This task involves the internal management of the contract including project bookkeeping, billing,
and coordination with project stakeholders. The Project Manager (PM) will be readily available to
the project team and the AUTHORITY to oversee necessary project related elements. The PM
will keep the AUTHORITY advised of the work progress, schedule, and anticipated review dates.
The PM will be the CM’s main point of contact and will be responsible for ensuring that the
project’s goals and objectives are met within the agreed upon schedule.

Task 2: Preparation of Bidding Documents

This task involves the preparation of the (1) one plan set, pdf format, and (1) one volume of
specification, pdf format, including technical specifications, federal provisions and special
provision, and project specific Sebring Airport Authority front end documents. AtkinsRéalis will
prepare front end documents for SAA to insert relevant information including bidding time and
location information and return AtkinsRealis for final compilation of volume of specifications for
bidding.

Task 3: Bidding Services

This task involves the assistance in bidding the project documents. AtkinsRéalis will attend (1)
one pre-bid meeting to review project with bidders and attend a field visit. AtkinsRéalis will handle
bidders’ questions, received via email and DemandStar, and issue addendums as necessary to
respond to bidders questions. AtkinsRéalis will also review bids and recommend the lowest
responsible bidder to the Sebring Airport Authority.

Task 4: Job Coordination Meetings (JCM) and Site Visits

In accordance with the Contract Documents, there will be a weekly job coordination meeting
(JCM) for representatives of the CM, AUTHORITY, and Contractor to review project progress and
coordinate work efforts. The CM will attend the JCM meetings to provide interpretations of and
review progress related to the Construction Documents. The CM will prepare minutes of each
meeting and distribute to the attendees.

The CM will attend and lead the Pre-Construction Meeting before the Contractor is provided with
a construction Notice to Proceed. The purpose of these meetings will be to review general
administrative procedures of the contract, review technical requirements, begin the submittal
process, and other items as defined in the Contract Documents.

The CM’s PM and/or appropriate technical leads will also make visits to the site during
construction. Such visits are not intended to be exhaustive in examining the Contractor’s work in
progress, but rather to provide a general observation of the work based on the Engineer’s
professional judgment. The CM will review the Contractor's work as observed for general
conformance with the Contract Documents. Note that site visits may be coordinated to happen
concurrently with regular project meetings, or they may be held at other times.

In addition, the CM’s PM and/or appropriate technical leads will attend the Substantial Completion
and Final Inspections. While at these inspections, the CM will review the work for general
conformance with the Contract Documents and assist the Contractor with determining a level of
completeness. The CM will assist the Contractor in compiling a list of items for inclusion in the
final punch list.

Page 2 of 6



For scope definition, the following number of visits is anticipated (inclusive of Pre-Construction
Conference, Substantial Completion Inspection, and Final Inspection):

e Project Manager — 7 visits (One (1) Pre-Construction Meeting, Six (6) weekly
meetings, One (1) Substantial Completion Meeting, and One (1) Final Inspection.)
 MEP/Civil/Site Engineer — 3 visits (One (1) Pre-Construction Meeting One (1)

Substantial Completion Meeting, and One (1) Final Inspection.)

Task 5: Shop Drawing Review

This task will include the CM’s review of shop drawings submitted by the Contractor as stipulated
in the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR will be responsible for collecting and logging
shop drawings and transmitting them to the CM. The CM will review the shop drawings and return
them to the CONTRACTOR with a review stamp/transmittal and necessary comments.

The Contractor will be required to submit signed & sealed shop drawings to the CM for review.
The CM’s review of shop drawings will be limited to general design concepts and general
compliance with the Contract Documents. Reviews by the CM will not relieve the Contractor of
the responsibility of compliance with the Contract Documents. The CM shall act as initial
interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents and judge of the acceptability of the
work. The CM shall have the authority to make decisions related to the interpretation of the
requirements of the Contract Documents pertaining to the execution and progress of the work.

Task 6: Responses to Contractor Requests for Information (RFI’s)

Under this task, the CM will prepare technical responses to the questions submitted by the
Contractor in the format of a Request for Information (RFI). The CM will provide RFI responses
to the CONTRACTOR.

The CM shall act as initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents and judge
of the acceptability of the work. The CM shall have the authority to make decisions related to the
interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents pertaining to the execution and
progress of the work. The CM shall also provide technical support and clarifications related to the
construction documents and shall provide any required revisions or supplemental information
related to the contract documents that may be required during construction.

Task 7: Contractor Applications for Payment

The CM will review and comment on Contractor’'s monthly applications for payment based on the
CM’s on-site observations, information provided by the Contractor, and the review of data and
schedules accompanying the application.

Task 8: Resident Project Representative (RPR) Services

Under this task, the CM will provide on-site Resident Project Representative (RPR) services for
the Project. The RPR shall serve as the liaison between the AUTHORITY and the CONTRACTOR
throughout the project. The foremost duty of the RPR is to observe construction for general
conformance with the Contract Documents. The RPR will be responsible for reporting to the
Project Manager, Engineer, and/or Airport when observing work that is unsatisfactory, faulty or
defective. The duties of the RPR will include:

Coordinate the Contractor’s mobilization to the site

¢ Maintain a daily construction log to include when the Contractor is on the job site, weather
conditions, changed conditions, list of visitors, testing activities/procedures and general
observations

Page 3 of 6



Monitor Contractor’s activities and construction schedule and coordinate activities with the
AUTHORITY and Airport Tenants

Review Contractor’s construction work plan, project communications, and site clean-up
procedures

Bulletin Board inspections

Attend bi-weekly progress meetings

Collect and Log shop drawings, RFls, change requests, etc

Take project progress photographs

Administrate change orders as necessary

Organize, prepare for, and lead the substantial completion and final inspections

Assist engineer in creating the Contractor’s punch list of unfinished items

Verify the Contractor’s completion of punch list items

Collect the Contractor’s As-Built information

Assist engineer in preparing final close-out documentation

Report any deviation from the contract documents or whether it is believed that work is
unsatisfactory, faulty or defective

Coordinate the quality assurance sampling and testing of materials and work to be
performed by independent testing laboratories

The Resident Project Representative shall have limited authority on site as follows:

Shall not authorize any deviation from the construction Contract Documents or substitution
of materials or equipment.

Shall not exceed limitations of Owner as set forth in the construction documents Contract
Documents.

Shall not undertake any of the responsibilities of the Contractor or Subcontractors.

Shall not advise on, issue directions relative to or assume control over any aspect of the
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction.

Shall not advise on, issue directions regarding or assume control over safety precautions
and programs in connection with the Contractor’s work.

Shall not accept shop drawings or sample submittals from anyone other than the
Contractor.

Shall not authorize the Owner to occupy the project in whole or in part.

Shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted by
others except as specifically authorized.

To best serve the project, it is assumed that there will be one (1) RPR will be on site for a total of
Twenty (20) days (Eight (8) hours a day), over the 60 days from Notice to Proceed to Final
Completion.

Task 9: DBE and Prevailing Wage Rate Monitoring and Compliance

The CM will complete wage rate interviews and monitor the DBE and prevailing wage rates for
the Project on an ongoing basis and ensure compliance with the Contract Documents.

Task 10: Preparation of Record Documents and Closeout

The Contractor will be required to provide signed & sealed as-builts by a registered PE in the
State of Florida. The CM will provide the AUTHORITY a PDF copy of the final as-built documents.
The CM will prepare the technical portion related to project closeout documentation in accordance
with FAA requirements. CM will prepare grant closeout documents for FAA and FDOT.

Page 4 of 6



Project Schedule
From official Notice to Proceed, including reviews, the following services will be

completed within the estimated Project Schedule:

Construction Phase Services 60 Days
Record Documents / Project Closeout 30 Days
Total Project Time 90 Days

lll. BASIC ASSUMPTIONS

The following is a list of assumptions forming the basis of the CM’s cost proposal included herein,
for providing the services detailed in the Scope of Services for this project. Any modification and/or
revision to these basic assumptions will constitute a change in the project scope and may result

in a revision to the CM’s cost proposal.

1. The AUTHORITY will provide all criteria and full information regarding their
requirements for the project including design objectives and constraints, space,
capacity and performance requirements, flexibility and expendability, and any

budgetary limitations.

2. The AUTHORITY will provide the latest edition of their standard “front end” documents

to the CM for incorporation into the bid documents.

3. The AUTHORITY will prepare and place the bid advertisement and conduct the bid
opening. The CM will provide electronic copy (PDF) of the documents to the
AUTHORITY for use in the bid process. The AUTHORITY will be responsible for

providing bid documents to prospective bidders.

4. The AUTHORITY will provide the CM with copies of each Bidder’s submission for use

during evaluation of bids.

5. Documents will be created in the CM’s standard format. All drawings will be created in
black and white AutoCAD format using English units. Technical specifications will be
provided in Master Spec standard format as determined appropriate by the CM.

6. Site investigations such as topographic survey, geotechnical borings, pavement cores,
subsurface utility locates, etc. will not be conducted by the CM. Bid documents will be
prepared utilizing the best available record information as provided by AUTHORITY.
It will be a requirement of the selected Contractor to conduct their own site

investigations as appropriate.

7. Stormwater permitting will not be required as part of this project either by the CM or

the Contractor.

8. No environmental wetlands permitting (federal and/or local) or mitigation will be

required for construction of this project.

Page 5 of 6



10.

11.

12.

No permitting for threatened or endangered species will be required for this project.

Conceptual plans and performance specifications provided under this scope of
services are for the purpose of obtaining bids only. They will not be considered
“construction ready” or “permit ready” and will not be signed and sealed by licensed
professionals. The selected Contractor will be required to sign and seal shop drawings
to be reviewed by the CM.

It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to obtain any permits necessary for
construction. The CM will not be applying for or obtaining any permits.

A CSPP will not be provided to the AUTHORITY or the FAA for this project by
AtkinsRéalis. A 7460-1 for temporary construction and crane will be submitted via
OEAAA website on behalf of the Sponsor by AtkinsRéalis.

END ATTACHMENT A

Page 6 of 6



Sebring Airport Authority
Agenda Item Summary

Meeting Date: July 17, 2025

Presenter: Andrew Bennett
Agenda Item: Interlocal Agreement — Webster Turn Construction Project
Background:

Attached is ILA between the SAA and CRA regarding the Webster Turn Drive
reconstruction project. FDOT and FL Commerce are providing grant funds to
assist with the completion of the improvements, but CRA funding has been
budgeted to assist with project costs that may exceed the awarded grant
funds. The ILA references $382,758.00 to support Bidding Services,
Construction, Engineering, and Inspection Services, Post-Design Services,
Landscaping, and Construction.

Requested Motion: Move to approve and authorize the Chairman or Vice
Chairman and Secretary or Assistant Secretary to execute the ILA.

Board Action:

Approved X
Denied

Tabled




Prepared by and Return to:

Sebring Airport Authority
128 Authority Lane
Sebring, Florida 33870

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT is entered into this 17" day of July 2025, between
SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a body politic created by Florida law (herein referred to as “SAA”)
and the SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT AND INDUSTRIAL PARK COMMUNITY
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, a body politic and corporate created pursuant to Part III, Chapter 163,
Florida Statutes (herein referred to as “CRA™).

WHEREAS, the SAA owns and leases real property and operates an airport located at the Sebring
Regional Airport and Industrial Park in Highlands County, Florida (herein referred to as the “Property”);
and

WHEREAS, the CRA was formed by the Highlands County Board of County Commissioners for
the purpose of assisting SAA in the development, funding and operation of the Sebring Regional Airport
and Industrial Park; and

WHEREAS, the CRA has determined that the use of tax increment revenues in the Park to provide
financial support for maintenance thereof is appropriate and consistent with the Community Redevelopment
Plan, as updated November 19, 2015 (the “Plan”); and

WHEREAS, the SAA has requested the CRA to fund the Bidding Assistance, Construction
Engineering and Inspection Services, Post-Design services, and Construction of the project entitled
“Webster Turn Drive Rehabilitation (herein referred to as the “Project”)”, a project specifically identified
in the Plan; and

WHEREAS, at a public meeting of the CRA on the 17" day of July 2025, the CRA voted to
approve the funding of the design, post design and construction of the Project; and

WHEREAS, the CRA finds that the Project will further economic development within the Park,
and the Project is consistent with and in furtherance of the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the SAA and the CRA find that the Project is a reasonable and necessary undertaking
for the SAA, and that financial assistance for the Project by the CRA is consistent with the purposes for
which the CRA was created and with the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the CRA has included the Project in its annual budget; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement is made and entered between the parties pursuant to Section 163.01,
Florida Statutes, the " Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969 ".

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. RECITALS. The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated in this Project
Assistance Agreement in their entirety.



2. TERM. This Interlocal Agreement will be effective as of the date of filing with the Clerk
of the Circuit Court of Highlands County and will remain in effect unless terminated by either one of the
parties hereto.

3. PROJECT ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS. The CRA finds that payment of funds in the
amount of Three Hundred Eighty-Two Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty-Eight Dollars and No/100ths
($382,758.00) for the Bidding Assistance, Construction Engineering and Inspection Services, Post-Design
services, and Construction of Project will benefit and enhance the CRA Area, and that financial assistance
to SAA is appropriate and furthers the purposes of the Plan, as set forth above.

4. NOTICES. Whenever any notice is required or permitted by this Agreement to be given,
such notice shall be by certified mail, overnight delivery or facsimile addressed to:

SAA:

Sebring Airport Authority
Attn.: Executive Director
128 Authority Lane
Sebring, FL 33870

CRA:

Sebring Regional Airport and Industrial Park Community Redevelopment Agency
Attn.: Chairman

128 Authority Lane

Sebring, FL 33870

Notice shall be considered given when deposited with the U.S. Postal Service or commercial
carrier, postage prepaid, or when received by the other party if by facsimile. Each party will be responsible
for notifying the others of any change in its address.

5. AMENDMENT. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms hereof shall be
binding unless the same is in writing, dated subsequent to the date hereof, and duly executed by each party.

6. MULTIPLE ORIGINALS. Multiple copies of this Agreement may be executed, each of
which shall be deemed an original. Recording is strictly prohibited and shall be an event of default by the
party causing the recording to be made.

7. HOLD HARMLESS. SAA agrees to save and hold CRA, its officers, agents and
employees harmless from any and all liabilities, claims, actions, damages, awards and judgments to the
extent allowed by law, arising from the SAA’s obligations contained herein to contract and supervise the
Project. However, nothing contained herein shall constitute a waiver by SAA of its sovereign immunity
and the limitations set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

8. PERMIT, LICENSES AND AGREEMENTS. SAA is responsible for obtaining all
permits, licenses and agreements required for the Project.

0. RECORDS. SAA shall document all expenditures of money in detail sufficient for a
proper pre-audit and post-audit report. SAA shall retain all records supporting the Project costs for three
(3) years after the fiscal year in which the final payment was released by the CRA, or until final resolution
of matters resulting from any litigation, claim or audit that started prior to the expiration of the three (3)
year record retention period.



10. INSPECTION. CRA reserves the right to inspect the Project at any reasonable time, as
well as the right to audit any and all financial records pertaining to the Project at any reasonable time. This
Interlocal Agreement can be unilaterally canceled and no further payments made by the CRA, if SAA
refuses to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters or other material made or received in
conjunction with the Interlocal Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.

11. EFFECTIVE. This Interlocal Agreement has been executed pursuant to Section 163.01,
Florida Statutes, and shall become effective upon execution by all parties.

12 BENEFIT. Nothing in this Interlocal Agreement shall be construed to benefit any person
or entity not a party to this Agreement. The expenditure of funds by CRA is for the improvement and
benefit of property located within the CRA Redevelopment Area and will benefit the CRA.

13. FILING EFFECTIVE DATE. As required by Section 163.01(11), Florida Statutes, the
Interlocal Agreement shall be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Highlands County after execution
by the parties, and shall take effect upon the date of filing.

IN WITNESS WHEREOPF, the parties hereto or their lawful representatives, have executed this
Agreement as of the date above written.

ATTEST: SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a body
politic created by Elorida law

Carf Cool, Secretary By: 7 /~/ /"/\_, JL

Stanley Wefls, Chairman
Date: JUJL! \q. a085

hY

.

b

ATTEST: INDUSTRIAL PARK COMMUNITY ¥
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, a bod)'f.‘

Stanley Wells, Chairman

Date: \)U’L“’l ‘q\ ao&s—

Date: _JL,LLL_.! \r‘"\ 30&5

(U8}

P

.
®.

politic and corporate created and operating mdef' -

Part Illﬁtefr/& Florida Statues "l:,,,“”“\\\\‘
77
Q\“ _:x’ F W
By: —

‘\\Illllllll A
Date: _\Tu\—q‘ \._‘\’l aOaS W RPORT )



RESOLUTION SAA 25-05

A RESOLUTION OF THE SEBRING AIRPORT
AUTHORITY TO APPROVE AMENDMENT S25-04 TO
THE 2024-2025 BUDGET.

WHEREAS, The Sebring Airport Authority is required to have an operating budget; and

WHEREAS, said budget is to be used as a tool to project revenues, expenses, and
reserves; and

WHEREAS, said budget is to be used as a control of costs and expenditures; and

WHEREAS, said budget can be amended from time to time by action of the Sebring
Airport Authority Board of Directors.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY A MAJORITY OF THE MEMBERS
OF THE SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Sebring Airport Authority hereby approves the 2024-2025 Budget
Amendment S25-04 as presented.

SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of July 2025.

\© ’
s(;}s‘}‘,’? ?.7,40;:.’;,, SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
S 0% :
(SESE. =¥ e~
s SEAL =t By:
A < 3 Mike Willingham, Ex. Director
"'I' t ®eesen’ : “s

II"’ “‘
1eagannst



x | | )
4 SEBRING AIRF  ’AUTHORITY 4
BUDGET AMENDMENT# S25-04
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING PERIOD: MAY 2025
7/17/2025 SUBMITTED BY:
SIGNED BY:

REVENUE CENTER ACCOUNT ACCOUNT NAME PRIOR BUDGET AS INCREASE DECREASE REVISED Reason:
- $ - $ - $ - l $ - ) o
. - - $ - $ - $ - | -
_ - | - S -
~ Total Revenue Increase/Decrease | B s - |s - |s - |8 - -
'COST CENTER (expenses) 0 o o
SAA 512-040-SAA | TRAVEL $ 25,000.00 | $ 15,000.00 | $ - |8 40,000.00 BUDGET UNDERSTATED
SAA 512-200-SAA | BAD DEBT EXPENSE $ - |s 41,000.00 | § ol 41,9_09_.gplqus_qqgmen
FBO _ 512-052-FBO_|OPERATING SUPPLIES '$  14,000.00 | $ 6,000.00 | § - |s 20,000.00 \BLEG;ET_U_NDERSIAIED
|
i . ‘ S ‘
Total Expenses Increase/Decrease B [s 39,000.00 | § 62,000.00 [§ - s 101,000.00 | [
a - Prior Month Current Month Current Month Revised il
Budgeted Revenue - Inc/(Dec) Expense - Budgeted
Operating Reserve Inc/(Dec) Operating
] B Reserve B
) o B $3,648,703.00] $ - s 62,000.00 $3,586,703.00| D
REQUEST #: S25-04 BOARD
APPROVAL:

TRANSFER TYPE:

o ITEM TO ITEM

x OPERATING RESERVE
x BY RESOLUTION # SAA 25-05

Executive Director

U

Mike Wi ngham




SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

MEETING DATE: July 17, 2025

PRESENTER: Colleen Plonsky

AGENDA ITEM: Declare Items of No Commercial Value and Items Valued
Below Threshold to be Removed from Assets/Inventory

BACKGROUND: The personal property described on the attached Exhibit A serves
no useful function and appears to have no commercial value. All items listed are
determined to be worn out, broken, obsolete, or under the threshold. Pursuant to Florida
Statute.274.06, if the Board determines that the property is without commercial value, it
may be donated, destroyed, or abandoned.

Recommend Action: Determine that the personal property serves no useful function and
declare the property surplus with no commercial value and authorize disposal by offering
to a charitable organization or by taking to the county landfill as referenced above.

REQUESTED MOTION: Move to approve as presented and authorize the staff to
dispose of the surplus personal property.

BOARD ACTION:

X APPROVED

DENIED

DEFERRED

OTHER



REMOVED INVENTORY

Date Removal Approved: 7/17/25

Asset Description Category Unit Cost Date Acquired Net Value Fixed Asset #
Corner Wood 30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 405.00 6/15/2000| $ 402/1392
Corner Wood 30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 405.00 6/15/2000| $ 402/1393
Corner Wood 30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 405.00 6/15/2000| $ 402/1394
Corner Wood 30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 405.00 6/15/2000| $ 402/1395
Wood 60"x30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 720.00 6/15/2000| $ 401/1650
Wood 60"x30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 720.00 6/15/2000| $ 401/1385
Wood 60"x30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 720.00 6/15/2000| $ 401/1386
Wood 60"x30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 720.00 6/15/2000| $ 401/1387
Wood 60"x30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 720.00 6/15/2000| $ 401/1388
Wood 60"x30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 720.00 6/15/2000| $ 401/1389
Wood 60"x30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 720.00 6/15/2000| $ 401/1390
Wood 60"x30" Table Conference Room Office Furniture $ 720.00 6/15/2000| $ 401/1391
Respons Black Roll Chair Conference Room Office Furniture $ 711.00 6/15/2000| $ 403/1427
Respons Black Roll Chair Conference Room Office Furniture $ 711.00 6/15/2000| $ 403/1428
Respons Black Roll Chair Conference Room Office Furniture $ 711.00 6/15/2000| $ 403/1429
Respons Black Roll Chair Conference Room Office Furniture $ 711.00 6/15/2000| $ 403/1430
Respons Black Roll Chair Conference Room Office Furniture $ 711.00 6/15/2000| $ 403/1431




REMOVED INVENTORY - B
Date Rémoval Approved: 7/17/25 — 3 B
Asset Description Category | Unit Cost Date Acquired Net Value Fixed Asset #
Respons Black Roll Chair Conference Room Office Furniture | $ 711.00 6/15/2000| $ 403/1432
Respons Black Roll Chair Conference Room Office Furniture ' $ 711.00 | 6/15/2000| ~ 403/1433
Respons Black Roll Chair Conference Room Office Furniture $ 711.00 | 6/15/2000| $ 403/1435
|Respons Black Roll Chair Conference Room | Office Furniture $ 711.00 6/15/2000| $ 403/1455
|Respons Black Roll Chair Conference Room |Office Furniture $ 711.00 6/15/2000| $ 403
\
$ 14,490.00 $

\

SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY:

I/ I —
Sl JIREW 2 —

7/17/2025
3 ( ‘
CHAIRMAN \DATE } o
» |
/ |
: /%/ 7117/2025 )
SECRETARY DATE




Sebring Airport Authority
Agenda Item Summary

Meeting Date: July 17, 2025

Presenter: Andrew Bennett
Agenda Item: Interlocal Agreement — Carroll Shelby Rehab Design Project
Background:

Attached is ILA between the SAA and CRA regarding the Carroll Shelby Rehab
Design project. FL Commerce is providing $300,000.00 in Rural Infrastructure
Grant funds to assist with engineering design services. The ILA references
$80,000.00 to support Professional Engineering Design and Bidding Services.

Requested Motion: Move to approve and authorize the Chairman or Vice
Chairman and Secretary or Assistant Secretary to execute the ILA.

Board Action:

Approved _X
Denied

Tabled



Prepared by and Return to:

Sebring Airport Authority
128 Authority Lane
Sebring, Florida 33870

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT is entered into this 17" day of July 2025, between
SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a body politic created by Florida law (herein referred to as “SAA”)
and the SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT AND INDUSTRIAL PARK COMMUNITY
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, a body politic and corporate created pursuant to Part III, Chapter 163,
Florida Statutes (herein referred to as “CRA™).

WHEREAS, the SAA owns and leases real property and operates an airport located at the Sebring
Regional Airport and Industrial Park in Highlands County, Florida (herein referred to as the “Property”);
and

WHEREAS, the CRA was formed by the Highlands County Board of County Commissioners for
the purpose of assisting SAA in the development, funding and operation of the Sebring Regional Airport
and Industrial Park; and

WHEREAS, the CRA has determined that the use of tax increment revenues in the Park to provide
financial support for maintenance thereof is appropriate and consistent with the Community Redevelopment
Plan, as updated November 19, 2015 (the “Plan”); and

WHEREAS, the SAA has requested the CRA to fund the design services and bidding assistance
of the project entitled “Carroll Shelby Rehab Design (herein referred to as the “Project”)”, a project
specifically identified in the Plan; and

WHEREAS, at a public meeting of the CRA on the 17" day of July 2025, the CRA voted to
approve the funding of the design, post design and construction of the Project; and

WHEREAS, the CRA finds that the Project will further economic development within the Park,
and the Project is consistent with and in furtherance of the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the SAA and the CRA find that the Project is a reasonable and necessary undertaking
for the SAA, and that financial assistance for the Project by the CRA is consistent with the purposes for
which the CRA was created and with the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the CRA has included the Project in its annual budget; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement is made and entered between the parties pursuant to Section 163.01,
Florida Statutes, the " Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969 ".

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

I. RECITALS. The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated in this Project
Assistance Agreement in their entirety.



2. TERM. This Interlocal Agreement will be effective as of the date of filing with the Clerk
of the Circuit Court of Highlands County and will remain in effect unless terminated by either one of the
parties hereto.

3. PROJECT ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS. The CRA finds that payment of funds in the
amount of Eighty Thousand Dollars and No/100ths ($80.,000.00) for the design services and bidding
assistance of Project will benefit and enhance the CRA Area, and that financial assistance to SAA is
appropriate and furthers the purposes of the Plan, as set forth above.

4. NOTICES. Whenever any notice is required or permitted by this Agreement to be given,
such notice shall be by certified mail, overnight delivery or facsimile addressed to:

SAA:

Sebring Airport Authority
Attn.: Executive Director
128 Authority Lane
Sebring, FL 33870

CRA:

Sebring Regional Airport and Industrial Park Community Redevelopment Agency
Attn.: Chairman

128 Authority Lane

Sebring, FL 33870

Notice shall be considered given when deposited with the U.S. Postal Service or commercial
carrier, postage prepaid, or when received by the other party if by facsimile. Each party will be responsible
for notifying the others of any change in its address.

5. AMENDMENT. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms hereof shall be
binding unless the same is in writing, dated subsequent to the date hereof, and duly executed by each party.

6. MULTIPLE ORIGINALS. Multiple copies of this Agreement may be executed, each of
which shall be deemed an original. Recording is strictly prohibited and shall be an event of default by the
party causing the recording to be made.

7. HOLD HARMLESS. SAA agrees to save and hold CRA, its officers, agents and
employees harmless from any and all liabilities, claims, actions, damages, awards and judgments to the
extent allowed by law, arising from the SAA’s obligations contained herein to contract and supervise the
Project. However, nothing contained herein shall constitute a waiver by SAA of its sovereign immunity
and the limitations set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

8. PERMIT, LICENSES AND AGREEMENTS. SAA is responsible for obtaining all
permits, licenses and agreements required for the Project.

0. RECORDS. SAA shall document all expenditures of money in detail sufficient for a
proper pre-audit and post-audit report. SAA shall retain all records supporting the Project costs for three
(3) years after the fiscal year in which the final payment was released by the CRA, or until final resolution
of matters resulting from any litigation, claim or audit that started prior to the expiration of the three (3)
year record retention period.

10. INSPECTION. CRA reserves the right to inspect the Project at any reasonable time, as
well as the right to audit any and all financial records pertaining to the Project at any reasonable time. This

2



Interlocal Agreement can be unilaterally canceled and no further payments made by the CRA, if SAA
refuses to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters or other material made or received in
conjunction with the Interlocal Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.

1 EFFECTIVE. This Interlocal Agreement has been executed pursuant to Section 163.01,
Florida Statutes, and shall become effective upon execution by all parties.

12, BENEFIT. Nothing in this Interlocal Agreement shall be construed to benefit any person
or entity not a party to this Agreement. The expenditure of funds by CRA is for the improvement and
benefit of property located within the CRA Redevelopment Area and will benefit the CRA.

13 FILING EFFECTIVE DATE. As required by Section 163.01(11), Florida Statutes, the
Interlocal Agreement shall be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Highlands County after execution
by the parties, and shall take effect upon the date of filing.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto or their lawful representatives, have executed this
Agreement as of the date above written.

ATTEST: SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a body

politic created b)/l)j Orlda -

Carl Cool, Secretary By:
Stanley Wells, Chairman

Date: -\_.')/Uv\&-{ lq\ MS Date: U‘u’u‘! \_:}a abas \\“:‘\lolllul,,

SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT Alig;
ATTEST: INDUSTRIAL PARK COMMUNITYZ ¢ SEAL

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, abody * 4
% / politic and corporatecreated and operatlng;undes .......
Part II1, Chapte/(63 Y

JFlorida Statues “,
Carl Cool, Secretary /

‘, \
TTITII A

By: ///Z% W%K
Date: ‘:S‘U/[J«l‘ r_\_\ aDas. Stanley Wells, Chairman

Date: ’\jui-t,{ \_}!&CES



Airport Executive

\g il MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS CENTER

News & Noteworthy Team Initiatives & Outreach
HGTV update * Highlight: Florida’s
Sebring named best Leadership in

town for retirees Advanced Air Mobility
Treasure Coast Students

at the Raceway

vV
—
_—
[
—
p—
o
L

Sebring News | July




TEAM INITIATIVES & OUTREACH

Sebring Real
Estate Stays
Resilient
Amid Seasonal
Slowdown

favoring small-town livability, workforce attraction,

despite the typical summer real

A recent article in the Highlands

living, affordability, and lifestyle ~ and long-term regional growth.

estate slowdown. Dubbed part
of the “HGTV Effect,” the area

benefits from national trends

News-Sun highlights how - _ o
Sebring continues to attract appeal. This aligns with Sebring’s

: broader efforts to promote
steady interest from home buyers

Sebring Recognized as
One of Florida’s Best

Towns for Retirees

Sebring has been named one of the 9 Best Florida Towns for
Retirees by World Atlas, and it’s easy to see why. Known for its
beautiful lakes, low cost of living, and relaxed pace, Sebring offers
the perfect blend of small-town charm and high-quality amenities.

For retirees seeking an affordable, welcoming community with

5 = - - ! 11 P i
year-round sunshine, Sebring stands out. Residents enjoy easy ac- b .,g‘" = L "
ol A el - T

even more appealing to new residents and long-time locals alike.

faa

cess to outdoor activities like boating, fishing, and golfing, as well

as a vibrant historic downtown, excellent healthcare services, and a . . . ,
c . At Sebring Regional Airport, we're proud to be part of what makes
strong sense of community. . . . . .
5 . . .y . . . this area such a desirable place to live, work, and retire. As our region
And with Sebring Regional Airport (SEF) conveniently located just . . o .
grows, we remain committed to providing the infrastructure and ac-

minutes from the heart of town, travel is always within reach. Whether o .
cess that support a thriving, connected community.

Read the full article on World Atlas 9 Best Florida Towns for

Retirees

it’s welcoming visiting family, planning quick getaways, or staying

connected to business and leisure destinations, SEF makes Sebring

SEBRING HOSTS
OPENING ROUND OF

iRacing and awards scholarships

STUDENT
INNOVATION

engineering and clean energy.

It’s a powerful example of how to transition into real-world rac-

IN MOTION AT
SEBRING RACEWAY
Sebring International
Raceway recently hosted
students from St. Lucie County
as they unveiled and tested
their self-built electric go-karts.
This STEM-focused program,
backed by Indian River State
College, promotes hands-

on learning in automotive

our region continues to sup-
port workforce development,
educational partnerships,

and community engagement
through transportation innova-

tion. Read more here

2025 SKIP BARBER
FORMULA IRACING
SERIES

Sebring International Raceway
was once again in the spotlight
as the 2025 Skip Barber Formula
iRacing Series kicked off its
new season on our track. The
virtual-to-real driver development

program identifies top talent from

ing. The Sebring opener featured
a competitive field of 20 drivers
and highlighted Sebring’s continu-
ing role in shaping the future of
motorsport through innovative

platforms.


https://www.worldatlas.com/cities/9-best-florida-towns-for-retirees.html
https://www.worldatlas.com/cities/9-best-florida-towns-for-retirees.html
https://www.iracing.com/2025-skip-barber-formula-iracing-series-preview-1-sebring-international-raceway/

NEWS & NOTEWORTHY

Director’s

Report
F%hhght

— Florida’s

Leadershlp

in Advanced
Air Mobility

UPCOMING
EVENTS
EAA AirVenture: July 21 - 27

FAC Conference: August 3 - 6
SAA/CRA Board Meeting:

August 21

SAA/CRA Board Meeting:
September 18

At the 2025 Paris Air Show, Florida made
national headlines with bold steps to

lead in Advanced Air Mobility (AAM).
Governor Ron DeSantis signed two major
bills—SB 1516 and SB 1662—that launch
the International Aerospace Innovation
Fund and Florida Transportation Research
Institute. These initiatives aim to fast-track
vertiport infrastructure, support hybrid-
electric and eVTOL aircraft, and strength-

en public-private partnerships statewide.

BUILDING

ﬂ.!_lF:_..__

FUTURE

Key announcements at the show included:

*  Wisk Aero, backed by Boeing, select-
ed Miami as the first U.S. launch city for

autonomous electric air taxis—supported
by agreements with Miami-Dade Aviation

and University of Miami.

*  French company AURA AERO an-
nounced plans to open its first U.S. facility
at Embry-Riddle in Daytona Beach.

These developments position Florida—
and by extension, regional airports like
Sebring—as key players in the future of
urban air mobility and next-gen aerospace

innovation.




DR2SEBRING

. MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS CENTER

Sebring Regional Airport
128 Authority Lane
Sebring, Florida 33870
www.sebring-airport.com

803.655.6444

4

With strategic access to major markets by land,
sea and air—Sebring Regional Airport and Commerce
Park offers a wide range of business advantages and
incentives to support your company’s future. In the heart ﬁ bisting &
of Central Florida, the 2,000-acre park is conveniently e
situated within a 150-mile radius of 85 percent of the
state’s population. Already home to Sebring International 4 gL site
Raceway, a premier sports car racing facility, the park is

uniquely positioned to accelerate your business.

Sebring International
Raceway

SITE MAP

Future
Boulevard Commerce Park
approx. 100 Ac.

Kenilworth

) Future Development @ Existing Industrial Park

@ Catalyst Site @ Airport Future Industrial Development

q q To US Highwa
@ Future Commerce Park @ Sebring International Raceway s

ACCELERATE YOUR BUSINESS’S POTENTIAL



https://www.sebring-airport.com

	Sebring Airport Authority Board Meeting Agenda 
	SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING 
	1. OPENING ITEMS 
	2. CONSENT AGENDA 
	3. MISCELLANEOUS 
	4. ACTION ITEMS 
	CONTINGENT ACTION ITEMS

	5. DIRECTOR’S REPORT
	6. DIRECTOR’S BUSINESS
	7. CONCERNS OF THE PUBLIC
	8. ADJOURNMENT

	June 2025 Paid List 
	June 2025 P-Cards 
	Accounts Payable Aged Invoice Report 
	Sebring Airport Authority Agenda Item Summary 
	FY 2025 AIRPORT INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT GRANT AGREEMENT 
	Part I - Offer 
	CONDITIONS 
	SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

	Part II - Acceptance 
	CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR'S ATTORNEY 


	ASSURANCES 
	Airport Sponsors 
	A. General. 
	B. Duration and Applicability. 
	1. Airport Development or Noise Compatibility Program Projects Undertaken by a Public Agency Sponsor.
	2. Airport Development or Noise Compatibility Projects Undertaken by a Private Sponsor. 
	3. Airport Planning Undertaken by a Sponsor. 

	C. Sponsor Certification. 
	1. General Federal Requirements 


	Federal Legislation 
	Executive Orders 
	Federal Regulations 
	Footnotes to Assurance (C)(1) 
	Specific Assurances 
	2. Responsibility and Authority of the Sponsor. 
	3. Sponsor Fund Availability. 
	4. Good Title. 
	5. Preserving Rights and Powers. 
	6. Consistency with Local Plans. 
	7. Consideration of Local Interest. 
	8. Consultation with Users. 
	9. Public Hearings. 
	10. Metropolitan Planning Organization. 
	11. Pavement Preventive Maintenance-Management.
	12. Terminal Development Prerequisites. 
	13. Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requirements. 
	14. Minimum Wage Rates. 
	15. Veteran's Preference. 
	16. Conformity to Plans and Specifications. 
	17. Construction Inspection and Approval. 
	18. Planning Projects. 
	19. Operation and Maintenance. 
	20. Hazard Removal and Mitigation. 
	21. Compatible Land Use. 
	22. Economic Nondiscrimination. 
	23. Exclusive Rights. 
	24. Fee and Rental Structure. 
	25. Airport Revenues. 
	26. Reports and Inspections. 
	27. Use by Government Aircraft. 
	28. Land for Federal Facilities. 
	29. Airport Layout Plan. 
	30. Civil Rights. 
	31. Disposal of Land. 
	32. Engineering and Design Services. 
	33. Foreign Market Restrictions. 
	34. Policies, Standards, and Specifications. 
	35. Relocation and Real Property Acquisition. 
	36. Access By Intercity Buses. 
	37. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. 
	38. Hangar Construction. 
	39. Competitive Access. 
	40. Access to Leaded Aviation Gasoline 


	Sebring Airport Authority Agenda Item Summary 
	CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES FOR THE TAXIWAY A REHAB DESIGN AT THE SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT 
	PREMISE. 
	ARTICLE 1 – PRICE 
	ARTICLE 2 – COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION DATES 
	ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENT OF INVOICES 
	ARTICLE 4 – TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE 
	ARTICLE 5 – TERMINATION 
	ARTICLE 6 -PERSONNEL 
	ARTICLE 7 – KEY PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT 
	ARTICLE 8 - SUBCONTRACTING 
	ARTICLE 9 – FEDERAL AND STATE TAX 
	ARTICLE 10 – AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
	ARTICLE 11 – INSURANCE 
	ARTICLE 12 - WARRANTY 
	ARTICLE 13 – INDEMNIFICATION 
	ARTICLE 14 – SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
	ARTICLE 15 – REMEDIES 
	ARTICLE 16 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
	ARTICLE 17 – EXCUSABLE DELAYS 
	ARTICLE 18 – ARREARS 
	ARTICLE 19 –DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
	ARTICLE 20 – INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT RELATIONSHIP 
	ARTICLE 21 – CONTINGENT FEES 
	ARTICLE 22 – ACCESS AND AUDITS 
	ARTICLE 23 – NONDISCRIMINATION 
	ARTICLE 24 – HARASSMENT-FREE WORKPLACE 
	ARTICLE 25 – PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 
	ARTICLE 26 – DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
	ARTICLE 27 – COMPLIANCE WITH DAVIS-BACON ACT REQUIREMENTS 
	ARTICLE 28 – SURVIVAL 
	ARTICLE 29 – ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT 
	ARTICLE 30 – ENFORCEMENT COSTS 
	ARTICLE 31 – AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE 
	ARTICLE 32 - SEVERABILITY 
	ARTICLE 33 – AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATION 
	ARTICLE 34 – AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
	ARTICLE 35 – NOTICE 
	ARTICLE 36 – LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
	ARTICLE 37 – CHANGE ORDERS 
	ARTICLE 38 – ASSIGNMENT 
	ARTICLE 39 – PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED 
	ARTICLE 40 – PUBLIC RECORDS 

	ATTACHMENT A SCOPE OF WORK DESIGN PHASE SERVICES FOR TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION AT SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT SEBRING, FLORIDA FEBRUARY 2025 
	I. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT SCOPE 
	III. SCOPE 
	Taxiway A Mill and Overlay 
	Taxiway A2 Connector Reconstruction 
	Taxiway Run-Up Area Mill and Overlay 
	Airfield Electrical Upgrades 
	Task 1: Project Administration and Coordination 
	Task 2: Preliminary Site Review 
	Task 3: CATEX/Burrowing Owl Survey and Permitting
	Task 4: Design Development Phase (60% Phase) 
	Task 5: Final Design Phase (100%) 
	Task 6: Issued for Bid Documents 
	Task 7: Bidding Assistance 
	Anticipated Project Schedule 
	Key Milestones 



	ATTACHMENT B BASIC ASSUMPTIONS DESIGN PHASE SERVICES FOR TAXIWAY A REHABILITATION AT SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT SEBRING, FLORIDA FEBRUARY 2025 
	Sebring Airport Authority Agenda Item Summary 
	FY 2025 AIRPORT INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT GRANT AGREEMENT 
	Part I - Offer 
	CONDITIONS 
	SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

	Part II - Acceptance 
	CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR'S ATTORNEY 


	ASSURANCES 
	Airport Sponsors 
	A. General. 
	B. Duration and Applicability. 
	1. Airport Development or Noise Compatibility Program Projects Undertaken by a Public Agency Sponsor.
	2. Airport Development or Noise Compatibility Projects Undertaken by a Private Sponsor. 
	3. Airport Planning Undertaken by a Sponsor. 

	C. Sponsor Certification. 
	1. General Federal Requirements 


	Federal Legislation 
	Executive Orders 
	Federal Regulations 
	Footnotes to Assurance (C)(1) 
	Specific Assurances 
	2. Responsibility and Authority of the Sponsor. 
	3. Sponsor Fund Availability. 
	4. Good Title. 
	5. Preserving Rights and Powers. 
	6. Consistency with Local Plans. 
	7. Consideration of Local Interest. 
	8. Consultation with Users. 
	9. Public Hearings. 
	10. Metropolitan Planning Organization. 
	11. Pavement Preventive Maintenance-Management.
	12. Terminal Development Prerequisites. 
	13. Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requirements. 
	14. Minimum Wage Rates. 
	15. Veteran's Preference. 
	16. Conformity to Plans and Specifications. 
	17. Construction Inspection and Approval. 
	18. Planning Projects. 
	19. Operation and Maintenance. 
	20. Hazard Removal and Mitigation. 
	21. Compatible Land Use. 
	22. Economic Nondiscrimination. 
	23. Exclusive Rights. 
	24. Fee and Rental Structure. 
	25. Airport Revenues. 
	26. Reports and Inspections. 
	27. Use by Government Aircraft. 
	28. Land for Federal Facilities. 
	29. Airport Layout Plan. 
	30. Civil Rights. 
	31. Disposal of Land. 
	32. Engineering and Design Services. 
	33. Foreign Market Restrictions. 
	34. Policies, Standards, and Specifications. 
	35. Relocation and Real Property Acquisition. 
	36. Access By Intercity Buses. 
	37. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. 
	38. Hangar Construction. 
	39. Competitive Access. 
	40. Access to Leaded Aviation Gasoline 


	Sebring Airport Authority Agenda Item Summary 
	Sebring Regional Airport Fuel Farm Improvements 
	CONTRACT
	WITNESSETH:

	LEGAL PROVISIONS 
	Miscellaneous 
	Funding. 
	Licensing. 
	E-Verify. 

	Legal Provisions and Certifications 
	Conflict. 

	CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964, TITLE VI – CONTRACTOR CONTRACTUAL REQUIREMENTS 
	1.1 Compliance with Regulations.  
	1.2 Nondiscrimination. 
	1.3 Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment. 
	1.4 Information and Reports. 
	1.5 Sanctions for Noncompliance. 
	1.6 Incorporation of Provisions. 
	Non-Discrimination. 

	EEO COMPLIANCE 
	STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS - 41 CFR Part 60.4.3 
	AIRPORT AND AIRWAY IMPROVEMENT ACT OF 1982, SECTION 520 -GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS 
	CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES - 41 CFR PART 60-1.8 
	Notice to Prospective Federally Assisted Construction Contractors: 
	Notice to Prospective Subcontractors of Requirements for Certification of Non-Segregated Facilities: 

	CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES 
	NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION - 41 CFR PART 60-2 
	LOBBYING AND INFLUENCING FEDERAL EMPLOYEES 
	Accounting/Records. 

	CONTRACT WORKHOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT 
	REQUIREMENTS 29 CFR PART 5 
	1. Overtime Requirements. 
	2. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages. 
	3. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages. 
	4. Subcontractors. 

	ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS 
	DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES 
	Policy. 
	Contract Assurance (§26.13). 
	Prompt Payment. 
	DBE Obligation. 
	DBE Administration. 
	Energy Conservation Requirements. 
	Rights To Inventions. 
	 Contract Time. 
	Owner’s Recourse. 

	CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBAREMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION 
	CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
	PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS 
	ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE 
	SPONSOR CERTIFICATION FOR PROJECT PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
	SPONSOR CERTIFICATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECT FINAL ACCEPTANCE 
	SPONSOR CERTIFICATION FOR SEISMIC DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION 
	49 CFR SUBTITLE A (10-1-03 EDITION) 
	Veteran’s Preference. 
	State Residents Preference. 
	Punch List. 
	Payment for Purchases of Construction Services. 
	Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. 

	Drug-Free Workplace 
	Scope. 
	Effective Date. 
	Types of Testing: 
	Conditions of Testing: 
	Testing Procedures: 
	Release and Review of Test Results: 
	Challenges to Test Results: 
	Consequences of Positive Test Results/Disciplinary Action: 
	Drug/Alcohol-Free Workplace Awareness/Education Program: 
	Rehabilitation: 
	Searches: 

	Conclusion. 

	INSURANCE 
	BAN ON TEXTING WHILE DRIVING 
	GRANT ASSURANCES 
	SIGNAGE 

	SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
	CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES FOR THE FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT AT THE SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT (ATKINSREALIS) 
	PREMISE. 
	ARTICLE 1 – PRICE 
	ARTICLE 2 – COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION DATES 
	ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENT OF INVOICES 
	ARTICLE 4 – TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE 
	ARTICLE 5 – TERMINATION 
	ARTICLE 6 - PERSONNEL 
	ARTICLE 7 – KEY PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT 
	ARTICLE 8 - SUBCONTRACTING 
	ARTICLE 9 – FEDERAL AND STATE TAX 
	ARTICLE 10 – AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
	ARTICLE 11 – INSURANCE 
	ARTICLE 12 - WARRANTY 
	ARTICLE 13 – INDEMNIFICATION 
	ARTICLE 14 – SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
	ARTICLE 15 – REMEDIES 
	ARTICLE 16 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
	ARTICLE 17 – EXCUSABLE DELAYS 
	ARTICLE 18 – ARREARS 
	ARTICLE 19 –DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
	ARTICLE 20 – INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT RELATIONSHIP 
	ARTICLE 21 – CONTINGENT FEES 
	ARTICLE 22 – ACCESS AND AUDITS 
	ARTICLE 23 – NONDISCRIMINATION 
	ARTICLE 24 – HARASSMENT-FREE WORKPLACE 
	ARTICLE 25 – PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 
	ARTICLE 26 – DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
	ARTICLE 27 – COMPLIANCE WITH DAVIS-BACON ACT REQUIREMENTS 
	ARTICLE 28 – SURVIVAL 
	ARTICLE 29 – ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT 
	ARTICLE 30 – ENFORCEMENT COSTS 
	ARTICLE 31 – AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE 
	ARTICLE 32 - SEVERABILITY 
	ARTICLE 33 – AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATION 
	ARTICLE 34 – AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
	ARTICLE 35 – NOTICE 
	ARTICLE 36 – LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
	ARTICLE 37 – CHANGE ORDERS 
	ARTICLE 38 – ASSIGNMENT 
	ARTICLE 39 – PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED 
	ARTICLE 40 – PUBLIC RECORDS 

	ATTACHMENT A SCOPE OF WORK CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE FUEL FARM IMPROVEMENTS AT SEBRING REGIONAL AIRPORT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR AIRPORTS 
	I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
	II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
	Task 1: Project Administration and Coordination 
	Task 2: Preparation of Bidding Documents 
	Task 3: Bidding Services 
	Task 4: Job Coordination Meetings (JCM) and Site Visits 
	Task 5: Shop Drawing Review 
	Task 6: Responses to Contractor Requests for Information (RFI’s) 
	Task 7: Contractor Applications for Payment 
	Task 8: Resident Project Representative (RPR) Services 
	Task 9: DBE and Prevailing Wage Rate Monitoring and Compliance 
	Task 10: Preparation of Record Documents and Closeout 
	Project Schedule 


	III. BASIC ASSUMPTIONS 

	Sebring Airport Authority Agenda Item Summary 
	INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

	RESOLUTION SAA 25-05 
	SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY BUDGET AMENDMENT# S25-04 
	SEBRING AIRPORT AUTHORITY AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
	REMOVED INVENTORY 

	Sebring Airport Authority Agenda Item Summary 
	INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

	Airport Executive BRIEF
	CONTENTS
	TEAM INITIATIVES & OUTREACH 
	Sebring Real Estate Stays Resilient Amid Seasonal Slowdown 
	Sebring Recognized as One of Florida’s Best Towns for Retirees
	STUDENT INNOVATION IN MOTION AT SEBRING RACEWAY 
	SEBRING HOSTS OPENING ROUND OF 2025 SKIP BARBER FORMULA IRACING SERIES 


	NEWS & NOTEWORTHY 
	Director’s Report Highlight – Florida’s Leadership in Advanced Air Mobility 






